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LETTER TO THE SPEAKER

OF PARLIAMENT

Speaker of the National Assembly
The Honourable Ms Baleka Mbete, MP
P. O. Box 15
Cape Town
8000
COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY (CGE) ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
Section 181(5) of the Constitution of South Africa, read together with section 40(1)(e) of
the Public Finance Management Act of 1999, requires all state institutions supporting
constitutional democracy to report their activities and performance of their functions to
the National Assembly at least once a year.
The Commission for Gender Equality would like to table this report to the National
Assembly in accordance with these legal requirements. Accordingly, we respectfully
place for your receipt and consideration bound hard copies of the Annual Report for
the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
We trust that you will find the report both informative and interesting.
Yours faithfully,

______________________

Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer

2

Annual Report 2015-2016

FOREWORD FROM THE

CHAIRPERSON
It gives me great pleasure to present the last Annual Report
in my capacity as the Chairperson of the Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) of
South Africa. I was appointed on 1st June 2012 and my term ends on 31st January 2017.
I take this opportunity to thank Parliament and the Speaker, the President of South
Africa, His Excellency, Mr. Jacob Zuma and the South African public for affording me
this invaluable experience.
Upon my appointment as Chairperson, I was conscious of the fact that the CGE was
founded to give credence to aspirations of women’s liberation struggle which had
reverberated in South Africa through landmark events of 1913, 1956 as well as the
culmination of Women’s Coalition in the 1990’s. As I reflect on my tenure at the CGE,
I am proud of the fact that the aspirations of our past heroines are being actualised
through the focus areas of the CGE Act (39 of 1996) and the Constitution.
During the year under review, the current group of Commissioners have focused on
the key thematic issues related to gender equality, which include poverty, economic
empowerment, health, education, cultural, religious and traditional issues, substantive
equality and the application of international instruments on gender issues. During this
period, the CGE published a number of reports that deal with fundamental issues on
gender and challenged government and private sector to advance the gender agenda.
The CGE continues to apply effective, creative and innovative ways of raising awareness
on gender based discrimination and abuse, securing redress, and monitoring
transformation of gender relations at all levels of society. This has been achieved
through research programmes, handling individual and systematic complaints, media
engagements, making submissions to parliament, advocating and lobby on gender
equality matters.
During my tenure as Chairperson, the CGE has received favourable outcomes from
the preceding years, whereby the institution received unqualified audits from 20122015 as well as a clean audit in 2016. This is indicative of the journey that the CGE has
travelled in relation to the financial management processes. What remains important
in this Annual Report is that the Auditor-General has indicated that the CGE leadership
has provided effective leadership, based on a culture of honesty, ethical business
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practices and good governance, thereby enhancing and protecting interests of the
institution. This is testimony to the fact that the CGE is committed to the highest levels
of corporate governance and in keeping with this commitment. CGE Commissioners,
Managers and Staff continue to pay special attention and focus on the governance
of risk management within the organisation. I am pleased to announce that that the
clean audit outcome was achieved for the year under review. Commissioners continue
to provide valuable oversight through various CGE internal structures. Participation in
important internal processes, oversight functions and plenary functions were achieved
according to high standards.
The CGE family is thrilled about the clean audit because we all know that this is a result of
our efforts in being prudent and that contrary to this, the audit findings would have arguably
reflected material misstatements or adverse findings in relation to our compliance regime.
The achievement of the clean audit is attributed to the CGE family which had put in place
strategic interventions and strengthening of risk and integrity management.
As I make my exit from the CGE, it is important for the new leadership to sustain our
current status of “clean administration” by continuously implementing and monitoring
controls in all audit focus areas.
In relation to programmed work and its outcomes, the CGE worked with stakeholders
which include Parliament, Civil Society Organisations, Faith Based Organisations, Private
Sector, all structures and spheres of government as well as multilateral and regional
organisations such the United Nations, African Union, amongst others.
We call upon government and its partners to move towards the enactment of 50-50
legislation which will enforce entities to implement the 50-50 quota system. There
should be stringent measures to penalise defaulters in this regard.
The Non-Consideration of the report of the Ad-Hoc Committee on Review Chapter and
Associated Institutions poses unstable and unpredictable future for the CGE. It is my
plea that this matter be resolved by the fifth Parliament as it creates uncertainty due to
the lack of its resolve.
Funding of the CGE remains a problem and we request Parliament and the Treasury
to assist CGE to increase its budget allocation. This will ensure that the CGE is able
to advance its mandate. Funding for gender equality and women empowerment
organisations such as the Ministry of Women, Women Caucuses in Legislatures, gender
equality structures in local councils, Portfolio Committees responsible for Gender
Equality and Women Empowerment as well as SALGA Women’s Commission are
adequately funded.
Although CGE continues to leave an indelible mark, it is with extreme pain that one
has to acknowledge that despite the highly lauded commitment to gender equality in
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our Constitution, South African society remains deeply entrenched in patriarchy. We
strongly believe that the information provided in this Annual Report will not only lead
to informative discussions amongst relevant stakeholders and broader gender equality
sector, but it will inform policy discussions, programme implementation and the future
of the South African Gender Equality Trajectory.
I believe that the constant interaction through various forms of internal communication
between Commissioners, Management and Staff has served as a pillar in dealing with
past challenges. Our CEO has also been a strong pillar of strength behind the success
of CGE’s operations. Sisi and your team, keep it up!
I would like to express my gratitude to the offices of the Presidency, the Speaker,
Honourable Minister, Ms. Suzan Shabangu, and Chairperson of the Portfolio Committee
on Women in the Presidency, Honourable, Ms. Thandi Memela and Parliament for their
support offered in discharging our Constitutional mandate.
I wish to further express my sincere and heartfelt thanks to Commissioners and CGE
staff who have worked tirelessly to deliver on the CGE mandate. I wish to thank my
Deputy Chairperson, Ms. Thoko Mpumlwana who supported me as the Chairperson
since day one. Ngiyabonga Ma, Inkosi ibe nawe!
I wish to thank my family, my wife (Londy Shozi), my children, my mother, my uncles,
aunts and entire extended Shozi family for their unwavering support whilst serving as
Chairperson of the CGE.
It is always difficult to say goodbye. But nonetheless, Goodbye CGE!
Salani kahle Inkosi ibe nani. Ngithi kini nonke Unwele olude, nime njalo nje. The Zulu
idiom states that “Abake babonana baphinde babone”.
I thank you.

Mr Mfanozelwe Shozi
Chairperson
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OVERVIEW BY THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CGE continues to develop, manage or conduct public information and education
programmes to foster public understanding of matters linked to the promotion of

gender equality as well as its role in supporting constitutional democracy. Over the

years, this function has taken a number of forms ranging from outreach and advocacy
programmes, education and information workshops and extensive use of the media

advocacy, dialogues, information sessions and campaigns at both national and
provincial levels, particularly aimed at the most vulnerable women and persons in

society. Focus for this year ranged on a number of gender related issues which include
domestic violence, intimate partner violence and rape against women in general and

sex workers and young girls in particular, but also persistent acts of extreme brutality,
prejudice and violence towards members of the Lesbian, Gay, Bi-sexual, Trans-sexual
and Intersexed community.

We do not derive pleasure in reporting that acts of gender based violence continue
to blight this society, in the context of a plethora of national policy and legislative
frameworks, constitutional guarantees and rights to gender equality, national and
international instruments and strategies and programmes of action to combat gender

based violence, and numerous institutions including law enforcement agencies
established to protect, promote and attain gender equality in the country. Yet these

challenges continued unabated during the period under review, despite gallant efforts
of institutions such as the CGE to put the spotlight on these issues through strategic
use of the media to publicise our messages.

In spite of these challenges, we are proud to report that during the Financial Year under

review, the CGE carried out and completed a full Annual Programme of Action in line
with its constitutional mandate. We identified four strategic objectives which guided
our work:

6
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1.

To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative

2.

To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant

framework that promotes attainment of gender equality

stakeholders to educate and raise awareness on issues of gender equality,
challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action against

infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate
redress
3.

To monitor state compliance with regional and international conventions,
covenants and charters which have been acceded to or ratified by the
Republic, relating to the objects of the Commission.

4.

To build an effective, efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its
constitutional mandate on gender equality.

Our programme of action for this financial year was structured in terms of four broad
categories as outlined below:
•

Monitoring and Evaluation Programme

•

Investigations and Complaints Handling Programme

•

Public Education and Information Programme

•

Liaison and Cooperation with Like-Minded Institutions

I am therefore proud to highlight a number of key activities and achievements from
these four broad programmes of action as encapsulating some of the hard work that
the Commission’s staff engaged in during the year under review:
Monitoring and Evaluation Programme
In this category of programme action the CGE carried out evaluations of the selected
policies and practise of selected public/state and/or private and civil society

organisations to determine the levels of compliance with relevant national policy and

legislative frameworks, as well as compliance with regional and global/international
instruments to which South Africa is signatory. In this regard our Research and Policy

Department carried out a number of studies on key policy areas with significance for
our work in promoting, protecting and attaining gender equality in South Africa as
identified in our Annual Performance Plan (APP):
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•

Assessing Gender Transformation in The Mining Sector: the mining
sector remains historically one of the last bastions of male domination
and women’s exclusion. While tremendous programme has been made
in terms of government formulating and passing the necessary gender

transformative policies and legislation since the dawn of democracy in

1994, progress on the ground has been very slow, and the findings and

recommendations contained in our study point to these challenges. The
study therefore helps the CGE to put the spotlight on the problem of slow
progress in terms of gender transformation in the mining sector
•

Assessing National Programmes On Gender Based Violence: this

programme activity has been a continuing priority focus areas of the CGE
for the past six years. In the period under review, the assessment sought to

determine the extent of government prioritisation of gender based violence
through national policies and programmes of action, especially through
the Department of Social Development and the Department of Women

in the Presidency. The CGE published a report with recommendations,
which highlight some of the persistent institutional weaknesses and
programmatic challenges that the state institutions mandated to combat
gender based violence continue to face in South Africa.
•

Assessing Compliance with the African Gender Development Index (AGDI):
this is an important collaborative study, carried out in conjunction with the
United Nations Economic Commission for Africa (UNECA). It sought to

determine the extent to which South Africa, as a signatory of various global/
international instruments, has put the necessary policies and programmes
in place to ensure compliance with its international obligations to promote

gender equality and the rights of women. A clear message from the

study is that the country has done well in terms of putting the necessary
enabling policies and legislation in place. However, the country continues

to face challenges in terms of effective implementation of these policy and
legislative frameworks. The study did also indicate that the country has
done well in terms of gender equality in access to education for boys and
girls at primary school level.

8
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Investigations and Complaints Handling Programme
The complaints management programme of the CGE is commanded by one of our
strategic objective which aptly prescribes the need to “take action against infringements

of gender rights” as well as making sure that we implement appropriate redress of such

infringements. It is therefore in this context that CGE committed its efforts in managing
gender related complaints from the public, referrals from other chapter 9 institutions
as a means to achieve the strategic objective referred to in the latter. It should be noted

that in fulfilling this strategic objective, the CGE is given the powers by the CGE Act
(39 of 1996) to also initiate systemic investigations (on gender rights violations) on
its own accord. During the year under review the CGE managed 1143 cases, some of

which include maintenance matters, cases related to estate and gender discrimination
amongst others.

The question as to how the CGE reaches the broader public is often a matter that

remains top of mind in relation to the management of the actual cases and related
activities. This is where key consideration is made on external factors that affect the

manner in which we operationalise and manage investigations and cases. The external
factors that I refer to include spatial issues, the geographical spread of communities
against the positioning of CGE offices in all provinces, and the attempts to reach the
general populace of South Africa with minimal resources. It is for this reason that we
undertake outreach, education and legal advice clinics in all provinces of the country.
Public Education and Information Programme
The CGE’s efforts in fostering an understanding of our mandate, is in part a fulfilment
of our mandate in promoting the discourse of gender rights in South Africa. By virtue

of the fact that our mandate presents a broad perspective on the notion of “public”,
means that we are compelled to find creative methods of reaching South Africans in
all four corners of the country. The enormity and sparsely populace, requires us to find
mechanisms that aid operations in educating the public. Some of these mechanisms

include, but not limited to; campaigns, dialogues, as well as stakeholder engagements.
During the year under review, the Public Education and Information (PEI) department
of the CGE worked closely with the Legal department, undertaking joint activities

of community outreach which included legal clinics, community dialogues and

stakeholder engagements. This multipronged approach has bore fruits in as far as
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adequate reach of audiences is concerned. It has also aided our drive in exploring

creative means of cutting costs as well as value that is derived from community based
work from which audiences are readily available for multiple purposes, i.e. education

and information as well as laying complaints on gender issues. It was through this and
many other programmes that the PEI department was able to actualise community

based work in the form of dialogues. As I have mentioned in the preceding paragraphs,
the notion of “public” is quite broad in relation to our mandate. It is also for this reason
that we continuously utilise radio programmes to educate the far flung communities
about our mandate.

In light of the fact that communities are organised through representative institutions

as well as community based institutions, the regular engagements make it easier for
us to interface with communities through their representative institutions. Some of

these institutions are Houses of Traditional Leaders in various provinces, Community
Based Organisations, Religious based institutions, amongst others. I am pleased to

inform you that in our efforts to convey messages through community based media,
stakeholder engagements and dialogues, the discourse of gender equality was well
received by various audiences. In the section that deals with PEI in this annual report

there are more details on the resolutions that emanate from these engagements and
educational programmes.

Liaison and Cooperation with Like-Minded Institutions
CGE Act calls on the CGE not only to maintain a close working relationship with
institutions, bodies, or authorities with similar objectives to the Commission such as the
South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC), Independent Electoral Commission
(IEC), the Public Protector, but also, and more importantly, “to liaise and interact with

any organisation which actively promotes gender equality and other sectors of civil
society to further the objectives of the Commission”.

In this financial year the CGE worked closely with the SAHRC, the South African

Broadcasting Corporation (SABC), Disabled South Africa (DSA) and the Cansa
Association of South Africa to commemorate Human Rights Month. Through these

partnerships and collaborations, a number of interventions took place across the
nine provinces. We also partnered with Amnesty International, the United Nations
Population Fund (UNFPA), the Foundation for Human Rights (FHR) and the Centre for
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the Study of Violence and Reconciliation (CSVR) in hosting a consultative dialogue

on “Localising and monitoring the implementation of Gender Equality and Women’s

Empowerment targets in SDGs” at the 60th Session of the Commission on the Status

of Women, New York.

During the under review, the CGE strengthened its liaison function and serves as

a member on the Human and Social Sciences Committee of the United Nations,
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO). Gender equality is one
the key priority focus areas and is of paramount importance in assisting to create
sustainable and peaceful societies.

I conclude by emphasising that it gives us no amount of pleasure to report our
achievements and highlights amidst continuing challenges, especially the broader
challenges facing society in general and which would require the efforts of more than

a single institution such as the CGE to confront and overcome. In other words, our
country continues face enormous challenges to confront and defeat the scourge of

gender inequality and the challenge faces us all, including our political leadership,
leadership within civil society (especially our religious and traditional leadership
sectors), business and the labour sector. A collective effort, accompanied by strong
institutions and sufficient financial resources and expertise, is indispensable to create
a society free from gender oppression and inequality.
I thank you.

Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

4

4.1. Composition of Commission
The Commission for Gender Equality Act, No 39 of 1996 as amended, provides for a
maximum of 12 Commissioners, consisting of no fewer than two part-time Commissioners
and a maximum of seven full-time. The Commission has eleven Commissioners, four of
them part-time and seven full-time. The commissioners are:		

Mr M Shozi
Chairperson and Full-time Commissioner

Ms T Mpumlwana

Deputy Chairperson and Full-time

Ms N Bata

Full-time Commissioner

Commissioner

Dr N Maphazi

Full-time Commissioner

1212

Mr M Botha

Ms J Hicks

Part-time Commissioner

Full-time Commissioner

Ms N Mazibuko

Dr W Mgoqi

Ms L Nare

Part-time Commissioner

Full-time Commissioner

Full-time Commissioner

Ms P Sobahle

Ms F Nzimande

Part-time Commissioner

Part-time Commissioner
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Commissioners exercise governance in terms of an approved Commissioners’ Handbook,
which provides a framework of Commissioners’ oversight of and interface with the
secretariat, and conduct their public office roles as commissioners.
The plenary of commissioners is the final decision-making body of the Commission for
Gender Equality (CGE). It sits four times a year and considers reports from management
and Commissioners. Plenary meetings are supplemented by tele-plenary meetings, which
are convened at the discretion of the chairperson and any commissioner who motivates the
chairperson to convene such a meeting, to consider urgent matters. Extraordinary plenary

Special plenary

30 March 2016

19-21 May 2015
28-29 July 2015

Open and closed
plenary

21-23 October 2015
16-18 February 2016

29

May 2015

24 August 2015

19 November 2015

Tele-plenary

28 January 2016
8 February 2016
8
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is called in-between plenary meetings to consider issues that might arise that would need
plenary’s attention. The following table indicates the number of plenaries held during the
financial year of 2015-2016.
In line with its statutory obligations to account to parliament for the implementation of its
mandate, annual performance plan and budget, as well as advise parliament on matters
relating to gender equality, the following presentations were made to parliament on the
work of the Commission.
Table 1
ITEM

DATE

PRESENTATIONS TO PARLIAMENT

1.

CGE to brief Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency on the 4th
quarterly report from January-March a 2015 and associated budget.

26 May 2015

2.

Briefing the Portfolio Committee on Sports and Recreation on the CGE
Investigation report on SAFA

8 September 2015

3.

CGE to brief Portfolio Committee on Rural Development Land Reform: One Woman, 28 October 2016
One Hectare of land

4.

Brief Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency on the 2nd quarterly
report 2015/16.

26 January 2016

5.

CGE to brief Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency on the
2nd
quarterly report from July – September 2015.

2 February 2016

-

Responses to the Auditor General’s office on concerns in the Annual
Report of the CGE

-

Audit Action Plan as per the AG’s concerns

6.

Joint sitting of the National Assembly and the National Council of Provinces –
State of the Nation address by the President.

11 February 2016

7.

CGE to brief Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency on the 3rd
quarter report 2015/16

23 February 2016

8.

Presentation on One Woman One, One Hectare of Land to the Portfolio
Committee on Women in the Presidency.

8 March 2016

9.

Briefing on the Woman One Hectare Campaign to the Portfolio Committee on
Rural Development and Land Reform

8 March 2016

4.2. Standing committees
As part of its oversight and governance framework, the Commission has established
the following standing committees:
•
•
•
•
•
•

14 14

Management Committee
Finance Committee
Human Resource Committee
Information Technology and Communications Committee
Good Governance Committee
Strategic Planning, Annual Report, Monitoring and Evaluation Committee
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•
•

Research and Education Committee
Risk Management Committee.

4.3. The role of committees
The CGE has established committees to enable commissioners to ensure the effective
implementation of objectives and lend support thereto as required. The committees’
objectives are:
a)

To provide input, advice and assistance in addressing strategic and policy
issues and challenges

b)

To identify significant emerging issues affecting the implementation of
programmes and develop solutions to these issues for plenary approval

c)

To make recommendations concerning their theme or function for the
purpose of further developing the CGE’s policies relating to this theme

d)

To formulate the integration of committee issues into CGE’s strategic
planning, to guide the implementation of designated projects, and to
monitor and evaluate CGE activities around this theme

e)

To report back regularly to plenary

f)

To table matters that need the decision of the Commission

g)

To deliberate on issues referred to the committee by0 plenary and provide
recommendations to plenary

h)

To monitor project implementation, budgeting and expenditure against
the budget.

4.4 Stakeholders
In line with the Commission’s mandate to network with like-minded institutions in the
pursuit of the promotion, protection and attainment of gender equality in South Africa,
the Commission engages with a broad range of international, state, statutory and civil
society institutions. The Commission interacted with the following stakeholders in the
implementation of its 2015-2016 Annual Performance Plan.
Chapter 9 institutions
South African Human Rights Commission
Independent Electoral Commission
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Cultural, Religious, Linguistic Rights Commission
Public Protector South Africa
Chapter 10 institutions
Public Service Commission
ICASA
Government departments, local government and provincial legislatures
Department of Rural Development and Land Affairs
Department of Women in the Presidency
Department of Social Development
Department of Economic Development
Department of International Relations and Cooperation
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
Department of Justice and Constitutional Development
Department of Monitoring and Evaluation
International gender commissions
Zimbabwe Gender Commission
Institutions of higher learning
University of Pretoria
Tshwane University of Technology
North West University
University of the Witwatersrand
University of South Africa
Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University
Media
South African Broadcasting Corporation
National Community Radio Forum
National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa
E-News Channel Africa
African News Network
New Age
Sowetan
Multi-lateral Organisations
Oxfam
European Union

16 16
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Non-governmental organisations
Sonke Gender Justice
Gender Links
Men’s Forums
Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa
Sex Workers Education and Advocacy Taskforce
Her Rights Initiative
African Centre for Constructive Resolution of Disputes
Embrace Dignity
Centre for Conflict Resolution
African Centre for the Constructive Resolution of Disputes
Ilitha La Bantu
Imbumba Yamakhosikasi Akomkulu
Kwanele
National Democratic Institute South Africa
Other institutions
Eskom
Rand Water
Military Ombud
Tobeka Madiba-Zuma Foundation
Commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration
Commission of Employment Equity
Namibian Employment Commission
Parliament and legislatures
Northern Calpe Legislature
Eastern Cape Legislature
Mpumalanga Legislature
Gauteng Legislature
Political parties
African National Congress
Democratic Alliance
Inkatha Freedom Party
Economic Freedom Fighters
Congress of the People
Freedom Front Plus
National Freedom Party
Annual Report 2015-2016
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Religious and traditional organisations
Provincial Houses of Traditional Leadership
South African Council of Churches
African Methodist Episcol Church
Unions
Congress of South African Trade Unions
United Nations agencies
United Nations: Women
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation
United Nations Human Rights: Office of the High Commissioner
United Nations Funds for Population
United Nationals Senior Women Talent Pipeline Project

4.5. International and regional liaison
4.5.1.
		

The United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation
(UNESCO) General Conference, 4-18 November 2015 held in Paris
The 38th General Conference took place from 4-18 November 2015. It
should, however, be noted that CGE received an invitation to attend from
10-12 November 2015 as a member of the South African UNESCO Human
and Social Sciences Commission. UNESCO strives to build networks
among nations that enable this kind of solidarity, by:
•

Mobilising for education: so that every child, boy or girl, has
access to quality education as a fundamental human right and as a
prerequisite for human development.

•

Building intercultural understanding: through protection of heritage
and support for cultural diversity. UNESCO created the idea of World
Heritage to protect sites of outstanding universal value.

•

Pursuing scientific cooperation: such as early warning systems for
tsunamis or trans-boundary water management agreements, to
strengthen ties between nations and societies.

Gender equality is one of UNESCO’s two global priorities, with a
commitment to promot equality between women and men across the
Organisation’s mandate. Gender equality is not only a fundamental
human right, but a necessary foundation for the creation of sustainable

18 18
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and peaceful societies.
4.5.2.

National Women’s Peace Dialogue, South Sudan, 24-25 November 2015
The workshop of women in South Sudan was towards implementing
the new peace agreement signed in Addis Ababa at the African Union
(AU). Those sisters are yearning for a peaceful country and require a lot
of support. Violence has torn their families, communities, their institutions
and their country apart. The journey towards peace and nation building in
South Sudan will be long and solidarity within them is critical.

4.5.3.
		

United Nations Induction Programme for Commissioners of the 		
Zimbabwean Gender Commission, 1-4 February 2016
The Commission participated in the induction of Commissioners of
the Zimbabwean Gender Commission from 1 to 4 February 2016. The
Commission was tasked to share the South African experience and also
provide guidance on the legal framework guiding the South Commission
for Gender equality.

4.5.4.
		
		

Attendance at the 8th African Union Gender Pre-summit which was

held on 18-21 January 2016, African Union Headquarters, Addis
Ababa, Ethiopia.

The Gender pre-summits organised by the AU Women, Gender and
Development Directorate (WGDD) take place on the margins of the AU
summits, joining together key actors in the gender equality and women’s
empowerment sectors to deliberate and review critical developments in
the gender equality arena, with the aim of influencing discussions and
decisions during the pending AU summits. The forum, which was initially a
conglomerate for civil society organisations (CSOs) has now been coined
to bring together African ministers responsible for gender and women’s
affairs, regional economic communities, AU organs, the private sector, UN
agencies, CSOs and development partners.
The 8th AU Gender Pre-summit titled ‘2016 African Year of Human Rights
with Particular Focus on the Rights of Women’ was likewise aimed at tabling
fundamental issues within the gender equality arena. The gathering
coincided with very important continental and global milestones within the
sector, given that 2016 marks the 30th anniversary of the coming into force
of the African Charter on Human and People’s Rights, the beginning of the
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second phase of the African Women’s Decade 2010-2020, 36 years since the
adoption of the Convention on the Elimination of all Forms of Discrimination
Against Women (CEDAW), the 21st anniversary of the 1995 Beijing Declaration
and Platform for Action, the 2nd consecutive year that the continent prioritises
the agenda on gender equality and women’s empowerment1, and the
establishment of the first bureau of the AU Specialized Technical Committee
(STC) on gender and women’s empowerment.
The overall objective of the pre-summit was to update, discuss, and
assess the extent of the implementation of commitments, especially the
Declaration of the 2015 Year of Women’s Empowerment and Development
Towards Africa’s Agenda 2063, as well as the Mid-Term Review of the
African Women’s Decade. This was to identify future priority areas of
action, including the implementation of the 2016 year of Human Rights
with a focus on the rights of women, and call for greater acceleration in
the effective implementation of commitments on gender equality and
women’s empowerment.
4.5.5.
		

Commission on the Status of Women 60th session held in New York,
March 2016
The 60th session adopted a different process in the sense that a ‘political
declaration was signed upfront. The declaration reaffirmed the Beijing
Platform for Action, as well as commitments to transformative action and
increased investment’. The declaration further welcomed the role played
by civil society and confirmed the expiry date of 2030 for gender inequality.

CGE Delegation Commission on the Status of Women 60th session held in New York, March 2016
Left to Right: Researchers Ms W Mofokeng & Ms L Mohlakoana-Motopi, CEO Ms K Maema, Commissioner Ms N Mazibuko,
Chairperson Mr M Shozi

1
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The African Union Heads of State and Government had declared 2015 ‘Year of Women’s Empowerment and Development Towards Africa’s Agenda 2063’.
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ORGANISATIONAL &

ACCOUNTING STRUCTURE

5

Under the CGE Act, the Commission is composed of a mix of full and part-time
commissioners, with a chairperson and deputy chairperson, which forms the executive
authority in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) is an invited ex-officio member of the Commission in plenary meetings.
The CEO is the accounting officer under the PFMA, accountable to the commissioners
for the day-to-day functioning of the organisation. The CEO appoints staff to support
these operations and functions of the Commission.

Chairperson

Spokesperson
Deputy Chairperson

Commissioners

Chief Executive Officer
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Accounting officer and secretariat organisation structure
Note: Each provincial office is managed by a provincial coordinator with support staff.
The primary purpose of the provincial office is to:

Vacant

Vacant

Mr Tshepo Nosi
Northern Cape: PC

Ms Makhosazana Nxumalo
Kwa-Zulu Natal: PC

Mr Nceba Mrwebo
Eastern Cape: PC

Mr Tshepang Mokgokong
Limpopo: PC

Ms Keketso Maema
CEO

Mr Moshabi Putu
CFO

Dr Thabo Rapoo
Director: Public & Research

Advocate Kamraj Anirudhra
Director: Parliamentary Liason
Officer

Mr Mofihli Teleki
Manager: Communications

Mr Thys Monosi
Manager: IT

Ms Zanele Ncwane
Gauteng: PC
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Mr Rabbuh Raletsemo
North West: PC

Ms Zanele Ncwane
Gauteng: PC

Mr Rabbuh Raletsemo
North West: PC

Ms Thabiso Ngada
Western Cape: PC

Vacant
Free State: PC

Ms Joan de Klerk
Director: Public Education
& Information

Mr Tshepo Nosi
Northern Cape: PC

Ms Molta Mavuso
Mpumalanga: PC

Ms Molta Mavuso
Mpumalanga: PC

Ms Marissa Van Niekerk
Director: Legal Services

Mr Cedric Seaba
Manager: Internal Audit

Ms Makhosazana Nxumalo
Kwa-Zulu Natal: PC

Mr Nceba Mrwebo
Eastern Cape: PC

Mr Tshepang Mokgokong
Limpopo: PC

Ms Thabiso Ngada
Western Cape: PC

•

promote gender education at provincial level

•

create ease of access for all people across the geographical and rural
spread of South Africa

•

facilitate gender reporting and redress through outreach programmes

•

solicit provincially based gender data that informs the strategic direction
and research of the Commission.
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MANDATE, VISION

& MISSION

6

The legislative mandate of the Commission derives from the following Acts.

6.1. The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1996
The CGE is a state institution established under the first Constitution of the Republic of
South Africa in 1996 to strengthen constitutional democracy. The CGE is independent,
subject to the Constitution and law, and accountable to the National Assembly. A
positive constitutional duty is placed upon all other organs of state to promote the
effectiveness of CGE.
The Bill of Rights is the cornerstone of South African constitutional democracy. Herein is
enshrined the rights of all people to the democratic values of human dignity, equality and
freedom; the state is required to respect, protect, promote and fulfil these human rights.
The CGE’s obligation to strengthen constitutional democracy focuses on the attainment
of gender equality in all spheres of life. This recognises that the prevailing environment
of gender inequality requires positive action by both the state and private sectors, if this
equality is to be attained. Establishing a constitutional institution with the sole purpose
of achieving gender equality is recognition by the Constitution that gender equality
would not be achieved if it was merely treated as a generalised human right.
Section 187(1) of the Constitution of South Africa reads: “The Commission for Gender
Equality must promote respect for gender equality and the protection, development
and attainment of gender equality.” The CGE is a catalyst in pursuit of this aim. Section
187(2) grants the CGE “the power, as regulated by national legislation, necessary to
perform its functions, including the power to monitor, investigate, research, educate,
lobby, advise and report on issues concerning gender equality”.
In addition, the CGE has the power to institute proceedings in terms of Section
20(1)(f) of the Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 4,
2000 (PEPUDA).
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6.2. The Commission for Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996, as amended
Section 11 of the CGE Act provides that the Commission:
(a)

shall monitor and evaluate policies and practices of organs of state at any level,
statutory bodies or functionaries, public bodies and authorities, and private
businesses, enterprises and institutions, in order to promote gender equality,
and may make recommendations that the Commission deems necessary

(b)

shall develop, conduct or manage information programmes and education
programmes, to foster public understanding of matters pertaining to the
promotion of gender equality and the role and activities of the Commission

(c)

shall evaluate any Act of Parliament, any system of personal and family law or
custom, any system of indigenous law customs or practices, or any other law
in force at the commencement of this Act, or any law proposed by parliament
or any other legislature after the commencement of this Act, affecting or likely
to affect gender equality or the status of women, and make recommendations
to parliament or such other legislature with regard thereto

(d)

may recommend to parliament or any other legislature the adoption of new
legislation which would promote gender equality and the status of women

(e)

shall investigate any gender-related issues of its own accord or on receipt
of a complaint, and shall endeavour to resolve any dispute or rectify any
act or omission by mediation, conciliation or negotiation, provided that
the Commission may at any stage refer any matter to:
• the Human Rights Commission to deal with it in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution and the law
• the public protector to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of
the Constitution or
• any other authority, whichever is appropriate

24 24

(f)

shall, as far as is practicable, maintain close liaison with institutions, bodies
or authorities with similar objectives to the Commission, in order to foster
common policies and practices and to promote cooperation in relation to
the handling of complaints in cases of overlapping jurisdiction or other
appropriate instances

(g)

shall liaise and interact with any organisation which actively promotes
gender equality and other sectors of civil society to further the objects of
the Commission
Annual Report 2015-2016
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(h)

shall monitor the compliance with international conventions, international
covenants and international charters, acceded to or ratified by the Republic,
relating to the objects of the Commission

(i)

shall prepare and submit reports to parliament pertaining to any such
convention, covenant or charter relating to the objects of the Commission

(j)

may conduct research or cause research to be conducted to further the
objects of the Commission

(k)

may consider such recommendations, suggestions and requests concerning
the promotion of gender equality as it may receive from any source.

Our Vision Our Mission Our Values
A society free from all forms
of gender oppression and
inequality.

•
•
•
•

•

To promote, protect, monitor
and evaluate gender
equality through research,
public education, policy
development, legislative
initiatives, effective
monitoring and litigation..

Our values are anchored
in the supremacy of the
Constitution and the rule
of law, and we perform all
our functions with an ethos
grounded in the following
values:

Independence – we impartially perform our duties without fear or favour, mindful of
the independence of our office.
Professionalism – we timeously execute our responsibilities with the utmost care and
diligence responsive to the society we serve.
Accountability – we always give an account of our actions and decisions.
Ethical behaviour – we maintain high standards of
• Trustworthiness and honesty
•

Respect and empathy

•

Integrity.

Teamwork – we support and work in collaboration with our colleagues, state organs
and civil society to maximise the attainment of our objectives.
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7

STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVES

The CGE has translated its constitutional mandate and obligation into four strategic
objectives to guide the organisation. These form the organisational framework for
compliance, governance and effective functioning and the strategic pillars for the
implementation of the Commission’s mandate and vision.
Strategic
Objective
No. 2:
To protect and

promote gender

Strategic
Objective
No. 1:

equality by engaging

To ensure the

awareness on issues

creation and

implementation
of an enabling

legislative framework
that promotes the

attainment of gender
equality.

with relevant

stakeholders to

educate and raise

Strategic
Objective
No. 3:
To monitor state

of gender equality,

compliance with

perceptions and

international

Strategic
Objective
No. 4:
To build an

effective, efficient
and sustainable

institution that will

challenge patriarchal

regional and

fulfil its constitutional

stereotypes, and

conventions,

equality.

take action against
infringements of

covenants and

charters which have

gender rights through

been acceded to

appropriate redress.

Republic, relating

the implementation of

mandate on gender

or ratified by the

to the objects of the
Commission
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LEGISLATIVE

REFORM

8

8.1. Policy and legislative submissions
The CGE constantly analyses existing and proposed legislation from a gender-equality
perspective in accordance with the mandate and strategic objective ‘to ensure the creation
and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment
of gender equality’. This is undertaken to strengthen constitutional democracy and to
promote the realisation of gender equality enshrined in the Constitution and Bill of Rights.
Submissions are made to parliament and other legislation-making organs to improve both
the content and implementation of relevant legislation with the understanding that gender
equality is pivotal in nation-building and the attainment of the envisaged outcomes of the
National Development Plan (NDP).
Table 2
DATE
6 April 2015

BILL
Comments to the Department
of Cooperative Governance
and Traditional Affairs on the
customary practice of Initiation

SYNOPSIS
The draft paper seeks to regulate rituals related to birth,
adulthood, marriage and ancestor worship. The CGE
evaluation of this proposed policy revealed that it contained
important gender -related matters. Accordingly, the CGE
proposed recommendations that were aimed at ensuring
that the proposed policy would meet constitutional muster.
Revisions were proposed by the CGE to Paragraphs 2, 6, 7, 8
and 10 aimed at gender mainstreaming. The most significant
proposal was to provide for the right to refuse virginity testing.
The reason was that this is related to the right to dignity,
freedom of association and privacy of a person.

19 June 2015

Draft regulations under
Section 43(3) of the Prevention
and Combating of Trafficking
in Persons Act 7 of 2013
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The regulations are promulgated under the Prevention of
Trafficking in Persons Act in order to give effect to the law
that was promulgated in 2013. The entire legislation aims
to address a serious source of violence which affects both
men and women but, particularly, young boys and girls.
Accordingly, the CGE supported the regulations so as not to
delay implementation of the primary legislation.
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Table 2 continued
DATE

BILL

SYNOPSIS

2 July 2015

Comments made to the
Presidential Remuneration
Committee on the Education
Sector

A review of the remuneration within the education sector
is necessary. Accordingly, the CGE supported the initiative
and proposed revisions that would ensure an equitable
representation of women in all decision-making positions
within the education sector.

13 July 2015

Employment Equity Act :
Revised Draft Code of Good
Practice on the Employment of
Persons with Disabilities

The draft code aims to protect persons with disabilities from
unfair discrimination in the workplace. Furthermore, the code
directs employers to implement affirmative action measures to
redress discrimination.
The CGE supported the code and proposed revisions to
paragraphs 2, 3.1, 3.3, 4.2, 5, 6, 7.4.2, 8.6 and 14.2.5. These
revisions aimed to ensure that gender-related gaps and issues
of legality were addressed.

15 July 2015

Judicial Matters Amendment
Bill – B2-2015.

The purpose of the bill was to:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Amend the Magistrate’s Court Act
Amend the Prescribed Rate of Interest Act of 1975
Regulate the pension benefits of magistrates
Amend the Special Investigations Units Act of 1996
Amend the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act
Amend the Promotion of Equality and Prevention of
Unfair Discrimination Act.

Then CGE supported the Bill and recommended that
reporting obligations be assigned to the minister in order to
ensure accountability.
19 August 2015

The Children’s Amendment Bill This bill seeks to align the Sexual Offences Act and Children’s
– B 13 -2015
Act to the Constitutional Court judgments in J v NDPP and C
vs Department of Health.
The CGE supported the bill and proposed changes to
Clauses 2 and 3 which are intended to extend greater
protection to children against potential sexual violence.
The CGE also proposed revision to Clause 4 in order to protect
the best interest of children who are not a threat to society.

21 August 2015

The Children’s Second
Amendment Bill. B14-2015

The aim of the bill is to amend the Children’s Act 38 of 2005.
The CGE supported the bill and proposed the following
revisions:
(i) Inclusion of the definitions ‘ gender’ and ‘gender equality’.
(ii) Safety considerations to be tightened when a child
is removed from his/her home and placed in safety.
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Table 2 continued
DATE
27 August 2015

BILL
The Draft Victim’s
Empowerment Support
Services Bill

SYNOPSIS
The draft bill seeks to establish a statutory framework for the
promotion and upholding of the rights of victims of crime
and violence. In essence the bill is pitched at providing a
framework for integrated and multi-disciplinary coordination
of victim empowerment and support.
The CGE supported the bill and made recommendations
on almost each and every clause. The primary focus was to
ensure that minimum norms and standards will be set out in
policies aimed at empowering and supporting victims; the
definition of secondary victimisation is not to be confused
with indirect victims and policies that are developed by the
various departments will be coordinated effectively.

7 September
2015

Unemployment Insurance
Contributions Act 2002,
proposed reduction in
insurance contributions

12 October 2015 Criminal Matters Amendment
Bill

The proposed amendment seeks to reduce UIF
contributions to a maximum of 1% of R1000 irrespective of
the remuneration of any person.
The CGE proposed that any surplus be utilised to extend
maternity benefits instead of introducing a cap to UIF
contributions.
The level of crime relating to essential infrastructure used to
provide or distribute basic services to the public, particularly,

ferrous and non-ferrous metal structures, is unacceptably high.
This poses a risk to, among others, public safety, stable electricity
supply, provision of water, communication and transport. It
is common cause that disruption in services regarding the
aforementioned products has a negative impact on the South
African economy. Essential infrastructure-related offences are
becoming more sophisticated and often committed by armed
and dangerous criminal organisations.
In terms of the above this bill seeks amendments to the law
pertaining to infrastructure-related offences by providing
for more strict provisions that deal with bail applications and
sentences of offenders who ‘tamper with’, damage or interfere
with infrastructure that delivers basic services to the public.
The CGE supported this bill and proposed minor changes
to ensure the rectification of certain provisions which are
ambiguous.

12 October 2015 Draft Taxation Laws
Amendment Bill -2015

This bill was drafted to amend the Income Tax Act of 1962
which was further amended by the Taxation Laws Amendment
Act of 2013 and 2014.
Implications of this Act are:
(i) an increase in the one-third portion of a pension
that can be withdrawn in a lump sum from R75 000
to R247 000
(ii) an increase in the deductions that may be claimed
in respect of contributions to pension funds to
27.5% of remuneration to a cap of R350 000 per
annum.

The CGE supported this bill because it would encourage
retirement savings for all South Africans, particularly, working
women.
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Table 2 continued
DATE
3 November
2015

BILL
Draft Regulations Relating
to Sexual Offences Courts (
Sexual Offences and Related
Matters Act 32 of 2007)

SYNOPSIS
This draft regulation focuses on the efficiency and
effectiveness of sexual offences courts. It aims to provide
protective measures for victims to be available at designated
courts. It also seeks to address the needs of people with
disabilities.
The CGE supported this regulation and proposed revisions
aimed at addressing gender- related concerns, including
the needs of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, or Intersex
(LGBTI) individuals.

3 November
2015

Regulations on Community
Schemes Ombud Service

The Department for Human Settlements drafted this set of
regulations in line with the Community Scheme Ombud Act
9 of 2011.
The CGE supported the regulations and proposed a clause
that aimed to extend protection to older persons, single
parents, women and child-headed households.

21 December
2015

Labour Laws Amendment Bill – This bill was introduced as a private members bill aimed at
PMB 5 - 2015
the following :
To provide for parental adoption and
commissioning parental leave
(ii) For the right to claim parental and commission
parental benefits from the UIF.
(i)

The CGE supported the regulations which aimed to extend
benefits to all parents, which include same-sex couples and
fathers because the existing legislation is skewed towards
extending parental benefits to mothers.
The CGE also proposed a new regulation aimed at providing
universal protection to all parents, including the selfemployed and professional women who are excluded from
contributing and claiming benefits under the BCEA and UIF.

3030

10 January 2016

CGE Amendment Act

The CGE proposed substantive amendments to the CGE
Act. These are necessary in order to align the powers and
functions of the Commission to both the Constitution and
statutes that were promulgated in furtherance of the Bill of
Rights. These statutes include PEPUDA and the Employment
Equity Act .

20 January 2016

Immigration Amendment Bill

This bill seeks to amend the Immigration Act 13 of 2002.
The CGE proposed a revision which relates to minors. This
was necessary to protect the best interest of minor children
in instances where they are accompanied by adults who
contravene the Act.

31 January 2016

Comments on the Revised
Discussion

The CGE supported the discussion document as this is a
necessary step which will lead to regulation of Ukuthwala.
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9.1. Interventions
9.1.1
		
			

Partnership with the African Centre for Constructive Resolution and
Disputes (ACCORD) and the UN Senior Women’s Talent Pipeline
26-27 January 2016
The Commission engaged ACCORD and the UN field personnel to discuss
and strengthen the UN Senior Women’s Pipeline Project in South Africa. The
project is part of the initiatives of the secretary general of the UN to attract
and retain senior female leaders in filed operations and to implement UN
Resolution 1325 which focuses on peace and security. The Senior Women’s
Talent Pipeline was launched in 2014 and is interested in the areas of political
affairs, civil affairs, public information, rule of law, and security studies.

9.1.2
		
			

National Consultative Dialogue on Racism, Racial Discrimination,
Xenophobia and Related Intolerances which was from 29 February1 March 2016
South Africa hosted the Third UN World Conference against Racism, Racial
Discrimination, Xenophobia and Related Intolerance. The conference
adopted the historic Durban Declaration and Programme of Action which
urges “states to establish and implement without delay national policies
and action plans to combat racism, racial discrimination, xenophobia and
related intolerance, including their gender based manifestations”.
Subsequently, in December 2015, Cabinet has since granted approval to
publish the draft NAP for broader public comment. The Department of
Justice and Constitutional Development (DoJ&CD) will convene a national
consultative dialogue event to mark the commencement of the public
consultation process on the National Action Plan (NAP) to Combat Racism,
Racial Discrimination, Xenophobia and Related Intolerance.
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The Commission participated in the National Dialogue hosted by the
DoJ&CD and presented a paper.
9.1.3

Gender Summit 5 Africa which was held on 28-30 April 2015
This Summit was about creating regional and global multi-stakeholder
communities committed to enhancing scientific excellence by: removing
gender bias from science knowledge-making; advancing gender equality
in science structures and practices; and applying understanding of gender
issues to advance more sustainable and effective research and innovation.
The overarching theme of the events was ‘Quality Research and Innovation
through Equality’. The theme for this Africa Summit was poverty alleviation
and economic empowerment through scientific research and innovation:
Better knowledge from and for Africa as the world’s fastest-growing
continent in terms of economy and development, with an exceptional
opportunity for prosperity mainly due to our natural resources and human
capital. African researchers have the skills and capacity to produce multidisciplinary research with the potential to positively impact on African
communities and society at large. The Gender Summit Africa stimulated
meaningful conversations to strengthen Africa’s research and development
agenda as we reflect upon how science, technology, infrastructure, capital
and skills could be used to realise the continent’s full potential for the
benefit of all its people.

9.1.4

Maternity benefits and law reform
A meeting was held with the United States Solidarity Centre to strategise
on collaborating with the Commission and Congress of South African
Trade Unions (COSATU) in relation to maternity benefits.
In taking
the matter further, the Commission attended COSATU’s International
Gender Conference, by developing a presentation on findings and
recommendations on maternity benefits, and developing questions to
guide Commission discussions on this issue.

32 32

Annual Report 2015-2016

Commission for Gender Equality

9.1.5
		

First-hand experience on living conditions at Chatsworth Refugee
shelter, 2015
On 17 April 2015 South Africa experienced an outbreak of xenophobic
violence directed at foreign nationals. This violence erupted in Durban.
There are many speculations as to what actually triggered the attacks on
foreign nationals.
The purpose of the visit to the Chatsworth refugee shelter was to
assess the conditions under which the victims of xenophobic violence,
particularly women and children, were accommodated.
The Commission’s overall conclusion was that the Chatsworth shelter
operated within the minimum required standards. While some of the
minimum standards were met by the KwaZulu-Natal provincial government,
some were not met. On the issue of security, the study concludes that
adequate security was provided to the foreign nationals who reported
feeling safe and protected. However, while the site was easily accessible
through two access gates, on both these gates the CGE team felt that
the security guards did not exercise adequate and due care in terms of
controlling access to the site through the screening of vehicles as well as
their passengers.
It was further found that the premises were not clean enough. The Expanded
Public Works Programme was in place to keep the premises clean; however
the Commission was not impressed by the state of ablution facilities and the
yard as a whole. There were strips of toilet paper, used sanitary pads and an
unacceptable amount of refuse that was lying all over the yard. What was of
major concern was that the children were playing with the dirty water from
the toilets.
In relation to health standards, the Commission concluded that health
standards could have still been improved. A supply of condoms could have
helped to prevent unwanted pregnancies and prevent the spread of sexually
transmitted diseases. A full-time mobile clinic could have helped provide ease
of access for medical care for the foreign nationals. What the CGE team noted
was that there was no chronic medication available for foreign nationals. This
increases the risk of patients relapsing. The only arrangement that existed
was for emergency cases where patients had to be taken to RK Khan by an
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ambulance. Moreover, pregnant women have special needs over and above
ordinary women. These could be have been prioritised. Pre-natal and postnatal clinics could have ensured that the pregnant women’s health needs and
their babies were taken care of.
The CGE team also concluded that the foreign nationals had enough clothing
as well as blankets to protect them from the harsh weather conditions. This is
in spite of some complaints noted from the refugees regarding clothing not
being appropriate for religious and cultural reasons.
The Commission found that adequate nutritious meals were provided to the
refugees. While the issue of cultural and religious preferences with respect
to food was raised, the Commission concluded that sufficient healthy meals
were provided.
The Commission also found that children were dropping out of school
due to being held at the shelter and concluded that the right of access to
education of the children was violated by the site management and the
KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Department of Education by failing to ensure that
the children continued to attend school even while housed at the shelter.
9.1.6
		

The South African Local Government Association (SALGA) National
Women’s Lekgotla which was held on 29 September 2015
The theme for this Lekgotla in 2015 was ’ Women of South Africa Unite to
bring an effective Change to the Continent: Moving Women’s Agenda
Forward and Beyond 2016’
The SALGA Women’s Lekgotla reviewed the progress made by government
in implementing the goals of the SALGA Women’s Commission. It further
provided an opportunity for civil society, including grassroots women, to

hold debates and share experiences, lessons, and good practice. This took
place through provincials which were held in a build-up to the national
event that was arranged. Emphasis on overcoming remaining obstacles and
new challenges, including those related to the upcoming local government
elections of 2016 were discussed. The Lekgotla was viewed as an opportunity
to form learning and sharing networks. In discussions 50/50 representation
was one of the key focus areas, which also included relating to gender-based
violence, HIV and AIDS, and xenophobia.
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10

10.1 Legal
10.1.1.

Complaints management
In line with our strategic objectives ‘to take action against infringements of
gender rights’ and ‘the implementation of appropriate redress’, managing
complaints of violations of gender rights and determining appropriate
redress for the complainant and sanction for the transgressors is an important
function. The CGE receives complaints from the public, referrals from the
Human Rights Commission and the public protector, in addition to initiating
investigations on its own accord into systemic gender-rights violations.
The legal department opened 1143 files in the financial year 2015/6. The
following table depicts the number of files opened and closed during the
2015/2016 financial year.

Table 3
PROVINCE
Gauteng

FILES OPENED

FILES CLOSED

124

119

3

58

176

156

Western Cape

91

79

Mpumalanga

176

193

North West

96

81

Free State

59

77

KwaZulu-Natal

78

107

Eastern Cape

188

200

Northern Cape

152

165

1143

1235

Head Office
Limpopo

TOTAL
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Figure 1
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The allowing table indicates the nature of complaints opened by the Commission for the
year under review.
Table 4
NATURE OF
COMPLAINT

GP

HO

LP

WC

MP

NW

FS

KZN

EC

NC

TOTAL

13

0

6

17

5

2

5

17

5

23

93

Domestic violence

5

0

2

0

11

8

6

1

6

13

52

Maintenance

3

0

46

2

22

26

5

3

10

29

146

Divorce

12

0

10

4

18

3

8

7

8

16

86

Custody & access

10

0

5

6

5

5

6

2

6

5

50

Estate

6

0

25

0

50

5

8

2

14

8

118

Gender-based
violence

4

0

7

20

6

9

0

16

11

1

74

16

0

3

4

7

1

0

1

2

1

35

Labour

7

0

1

13

8

5

8

0

9

5

56

Unlawful eviction

3

0

1

0

8

0

0

1

0

3

16

Claim for
restitution

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Tradition/ culture

0

0

3

0

0

2

1

0

4

0

10

Others

45

3

66

25

36

30

12

28

113

48

406

TOTAL

124

3

176

91

176

96

59

78

188

152

1143

Gender
discrimination

Sexual
harassment/abuse

36 36
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As is evident from this table, maintenance matters are the most reported complaints
for the financial year, followed by estate complaints and thirdly gender discrimination.
10.1.2.

Outreach, education and legal advice clinics
The legal department of CGE, in collaboration with the public education
and information department has adopted an aggressive campaign to
conduct outreach, education, and legal advice clinics in both urban and
rural settings. Key partners include community advice centres, women’s
shelters, government departments, fellow Chapter 9 organisations,
traditional leaders, CSOs, NGOs, and community leadership structures.
The Department conducted a total of 154 outreach and legal clinics. A
total of 317 files were opened as a result of these clinics.

10.1.3.

Litigation
Women’s Legal Centre (WLC) Trust vs President of the Republic of South
Africa & 3 others
CGE entered as amicus curiae in the above matter, which is being heard in
the Western Cape High Court Division. In essence, the WLC is seeking an
order stating the following.
1.

Compelling the executive and legislative branches of government to
table and promulgate legislation that recognises Muslim marriages
under South African Law. The WLC, in doing so, seeks to compel the
executive and legislature to meet their constitutional obligations as
entrenched in Sections, 9(1), (2)(3) and (5), 10, 15(1) and (3), 28(2),
31 and 34 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa.

2.

Alternatively, the WLC seeks an order declaring the Marriage Act 25
of 1961 and the Divorce Act 70 of 1979 to be unconstitutional to the
extent that they fail to recognise Muslim marriages.

3.

Additionally, the WLC seeks an order declaring the Recognition of
Customary Marriages Act 120 of 1998 to be unconstitutional to the
extent that it fails to recognise Muslim marriages.

CGE was entered as amicus curiae. The matter was set to be heard in the
new financial year.
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10.1.3.1

Mary Govender v Malek
This matter is brought in the Durban Equality Court. The complainant
is Mary Govender, a litigant in the Magistrates Court. During court
proceedings, a judicial officer, Acting Regional Court Magistrate, Ismail
Malek, allegedly made disparaging and insulting comments in open
court about the complainant’s clothes. He had allegedly made comments
in relation to the complainant’s chest area which was exposed.
The complainant was allegedly embarrassed and humiliated in
open court by a presiding officer. The issue is not whether her dress
was seen to be appropriate but whether the magistrate conducted
himself in a manner which respected the ethos of the court as well
as the rights enshrined in the Constitution.
The principles of equality, human dignity, sex and gender all make
this issue very pertinent to the Equality Court’s jurisdiction.
The matter will be heard in the new financial year.

10.1.3.2

SL & 3 Others v Minister of Home affairs & 2 Others
CGE entered as amicus curiae in this matter in the Gauteng Local
Division on an urgent basis. Thai nationals were held at Lindela
Repatriation Centre. There were allegations of sex work and human
trafficking. CGE was admitted with the view to investigating the
circumstances of women held at the Centre and whether it would
be appropriate to deport them back to their country of origin.
CGE found in its investigations that there is a possibility of the
women being part of a trafficking ring, and as such all role players
should have acted in terms of the appropriate legislation. The
court held inter alia that:
The applicants shall be released from Lindela upon receipt of this order.
The First Respondent, alternatively the Second Respondent, shall
be responsible to immediately escort the applicants to a designated
place of safety referred to section 19(1)(b) of the Combating of
Human Trafficking Act 7 of 2013 and hand the applicants into the
care of the persons in charge of that facility.
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4.

The name and address of the facility was ordered to remain
confidential and shall not be published or disclosed.

5.

The names of the applicants are not to be published.

6.

Should the applicants require medical treatment, the First,
or alternatively the Second respondent, shall take the
applicants to a suitable medical facility for the required
treatment and thereafter the applicants to the facility.

7.

The relevant provisions of the Act shall be evoked and effect given
thereto by the First and Second Respondents, the Department of
Social Development (DSD) and any other relevant department
of state.

8.

Should the Department of Social Development find that
the applicants are not victims of human trafficking that:a. the applicants be ordered to remain in the place of
safety or another accredited organisation until such
time as their status in the Republic is regularised and
that they have the lawful right to remain.

Further, alternatively, that:a. Should the applicants not procure the right to lawfully
remain within the Republic that the First Respondent
shall be entitled to deal with them in terms of the
Immigration Act or other applicable legislation.
9.

The First and Second Respondents are to immediately
process any persons arrested on the raid conducted in
terms of the Prevention and Combating of Trafficking of
Persons Act.

In this matter CGE ensured that the applicants received the
necessary treatment and safekeeping as prescribed by the
Combating of Trafficking of Persons Act.
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10.1.4.

Systemic investigations

10.1.4.1.

Investigation on the Transformation of the Judiciary
The legal department has completed the report and submitted
to all the concerned stakeholders for input and comments. The
investigative report and follow-up on remedial action will be
conducted in the new financial year.

10.1.4.2.

Maternal health investigation
The Department assessed the responses provided by the
Department of Health. The national Department proposed to have
an independent investigative committee to investigate the coerced
sterilisation allegation. The Department is currently exploring this
proposal with the national Department of Health. The investigation
is still on-going. The national Department is yet to respond to the
Commission on the manner in which the independent investigative
committee would be structured and operational. It is anticipated
that the investigation will be finalised in the new financial year.

10.1.4.3.

Sex work investigation
The release of SALRC Project 107: Sexual offences and specifically
the sub-project: adult prostitution. The Department has written
correspondence to the minister of justice to keep the Commission
abreast of the developments pertaining to SALRC Project 107:
sexual offences and specifically the sub-project: adult prostitution.

10.1.5.

Gender Transformation Hearings

10.1.5.1.
		

Review of progress of recommendations made to private and
public entities
The Department compiled a consolidated employment equity
report indicating progress or the lack thereof by departments and
entities that were called before the Commission. The rationale of
the report was to highlight the institutions that have, and those that
have not, managed to implement the recommendations of the
Commission. The Department dispatched correspondence to the
transformation entities to get an update on progress made in terms
of compliance with the recommendations of the Commission. The
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transformation institutions responded to the Commission’s request
for updates and the Department compiled its final report.
The Department reviewed the progress of recommendations
made to the transformation entities and found that the majority
of them have made tremendous progress in ensuring that
there is transformation in their respective workplaces. The
recommendations of the Commission have been considered by
the institutions, and this has enabled the institutions to comply with
the employment equity legislations. Entities received a red card
(non-compliance) or a green card for compliance.
10.1.5.2.

One gender transformation hearing of 3 universities
The Department identified the University of Pretoria, North West
University and Tshwane University of Technology for the purposes
of the gender transformation hearing. The Department prepared
detailed questionnaires to the three institutions and asked the
vice chancellors to make oral submissions during the hearings,
which were held on 23-24 November 2015. All three institutions
attended the hearings.
The Department reviewed the submissions made by the three
institutions and found that the institutions have in place the
necessary gender-related policies; however, it further found that
there are still challenges in achieving the employment equity
targets as set out in their respective employment equity plans. The
employment of women and persons with disability at senior and
top management remains critical at all three institutions.

10.1.6.
		

Evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of national justice
facilities in addressing gender discrimination
The Department had an engagement with key stakeholders in the Justice
Cluster on the 2014-2015 court monitoring report during February 2015.
The commission shared its findings on the courts monitored during the
financial year 2014/2015.
For the year under review, the Department dispatched questionnaires to
the relevant court managers and further made impromptu visits to the
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courts. Court personnel and complainants were interviewed to assess
their satisfaction with the services rendered by the courts.
The Department observed that there are courts that are experiencing
challenges in terms of service delivery. This impedes access to justice. The
Department found that the equality courts monitored are not functional
due to the lack of cases reported. In the case of the maintenance courts,
the Department found that the majority of them are functional, but
observed the challenge of service delivery where there is a high incidence
of complainants. The shortage of maintenance staff members often results
in disgruntled members of the community. The Department observed, for
example, the delay in serving protection orders under domestic violence.
In the sexual offences court, it was observed that not all magistrates’ courts
have existing sexual offences courts.
A report has been drafted indicating the Commission’s findings on court
monitoring. An engagement will be held with the justice cluster in the
new financial year in respect of our findings.

10.2.
10.2.1.

Research
Gender barometer
The Gender Barometer is an annual assessment carried out by the CGE on
progress made by selected state, private or civil society entities towards
gender mainstreaming and transformation in South Africa. In the 2015/16
financial year, The Gender Barometer assessment focused attention on
the private sector, particularly the mining sector. Two mining houses –
African Rainbow Minerals (ARM) and Anglo-American were selected
as case studies. For each of the two mining houses, three subsidiaries/
local mining operations were selected in addition to the corporate head
office for assessment of progress on gender transformation. For ARM,
the assessment included the following subsidiaries: Khumani Iron Ore,
Two Rivers Platinum and Nkomati Nickel Mine. For Anglo American, the
following subsidiaries were assessed: Kumba Iron Ore, Anglo Platinum
mine and Anglo Coal mine. The reason for this was to determine whether
or not the patterns of progress or lack thereof in terms of gender
transformation at company corporate head office were also reflected
at subsidiary company level. The CGE’s decision to focus attention on

42 42

Annual Report 2015-2016

Commission for Gender Equality

gender mainstreaming in the mining sector in the 2015/16 financial
year, apart from its constitutional mandate, was also driven by the
traditional image of the mining sector, underpinned not only by strong
and persistent perceptions but also real experiences, as one of those
sectors of society that remain a strong domain of male dominance and
privilege, and therefore considered unsuitable for women. The Gender
Barometer assessment therefore sought not only to determine the extent
to which selected entities within the mining sector were making efforts
to comply with relevant policy and legislative frameworks (this in line
with the CGE strategic objective 1) but also assessing progress through
formal internal company processes, procedures and activities to promote
achieving gender equality in the workplace. A report containing findings
and recommendations has been published and will be distributed to
relevant stakeholders and policy makers in the sector.
Emerging issues: The findings contained in this report show that the mining
sector remains a male-dominated sector of the South African economy.
The two mining houses that were assessed (including their subsidiaries)
were found to be largely neglecting the imperative to promote gender
equality and transformation in their gender staff profiles, as well as the
gender profiles of their senior leadership structures (i.e. at board of
directors and senior management levels). The findings show insignificant
differences between the main/head office of the two mining companies
and subsidiaries. In the majority of cases, we found that the companies’
officials appeared unaware of or uninformed about key legislative and
policy frameworks relating to gender equality and transformation. Some
of them had put in place token programmes or insignificant internal
initiatives that were formally aimed at promoting what is usually termed
as ‘diversity’ but obviously inadequate as measures for promoting gender
transformation within these companies.
10.2.2.

African Gender Development Index (AGDI)
This project sought to assess the country’s compliance with a range of
international instruments (i.e. treaties, protocols, declarations, conventions,
etc.) on gender mainstreaming that the country has signed up to and
ratified. The project was carried out within the guidelines provided by, and
with support from, the United Nations Economic Commission for Africa
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(UNECA). The project was also supported by a National Advisory Panel
comprising representatives from various institutions, including public,
private and civil society organisations. The process sourced information
mainly from government institutions to determine progress achieved with
respect to the two components of the project: The Gender Status Index
(GSI) as well as the African Women Progress Scoreboard (AWPS). A report
was compiled with findings and recommendations, and will be used in a
series of public engagements with relevant stakeholders to disseminate
the findings of this study.
Emerging issues: This study identified a number of issues through the
findings. It shows that the government has made significant progress in
terms of introducing the necessary policy and legislative frameworks (i.e.
policy and legal reforms) to promote and advance gender equality and
transformation, as well as adapting international instruments, treaties and
protocols on gender equality and transformation. However, the study has
found that, among other key areas, effective implementation of these policy
and legislative frameworks, as well as the effectiveness and resourcing
of the relevant institutions to implement these legislative and policy
reforms, remains a major challenge. Also, while the study has discovered
that significant progress has been made in the key sector of education,
where it is clear that major progress in gender equality is being achieved
in terms of enrolments of boys and girls at primary and secondary school
levels, the study also shows high dropout rates for both boys and girls,
and high repeat rates among boys at primary and high school levels. The
high dropout and repeat rates among boys appear to undermine some of
the gains being achieved in the area of education as it appears to show a
significant level of neglect of the plight of boys in the area of primary and
high-school education.
10.2.3.

Gender-based violence report
For this financial year CGE continued to focus attention on the institutional
and programmatic reforms and initiatives in the area of combating genderbased violence which were introduced during the 2015/16 financial year.
The project sought to assess the programmes currently under way by the
key Department of Social Development DSD), together with others such
as the Ministry of Women in the Presidency, to determine the prospects,
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successes and challenges faced by these institutions in dealing with
gender-based violence in the country. In particular, the project assessed the
effectiveness of the coordination of the programmes, projects and related
activities of these institutions across the country, including coordination
between national and provincial government institutions, in combating
gender-based violence.
A report was compiled and published containing the findings and
recommendations. The report is being distributed to relevant stakeholders
and policy makers in the country.
Emerging issues: The key issue emerging from this work is the lack of a clear
and effective national coordination strategy that coordinates the work of all
key institutions involved in the government national programmes to combat
gender-based violence, both at national and provincial level. In particular,
there was a lack of effective coordination of the work of the various key
ministries comprising the Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) set up by
Cabinet in 2012 to focus attention on national government efforts to combat
gender- based violence (DSD, Justice, Police, NPA and Women’s Ministry). In
addition, we found that there was a lack of coordination between national
programmes under the leadership of the DSD, and provincial programmes
and activities aimed at combating such violence. This has resulted in
significant fragmentations and uncoordinated approaches/responses to
the issue by various national and provincial departments and their entities.
This project also created opportunities for collaboration and a partnership with
the United Nations Population Fund (UNFPA) as well as the Swedish Embassy.
10.2.4.

Victims Charter project
This project was based on the CGE’s decision for the current financial year to
assess the responses and related concrete steps taken by state institutions
in order to address the findings and recommendations contained in a
number of reports on the Victims Charter published by CGE between
2009 and 2012. These reports were based on CGE’s evaluation of the work
carried out by a number of national government departments (i.e. Social
Development, Correctional Services, Health, Justice, NPA and SAPS)
in implementing the Victims Charter, particularly in realising the seven
rights of the victims of crime as outlined in the Charter. For this financial
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year, the Commission focused its attention on reviewing the work of the
departments of Social Development, Health and Correctional Services to
assess the extent to which steps were taken by each department to address
issues raised through the findings and recommendations contained in the
reports published by the CGE. A report has been compiled.
Emerging issues: the assessment found that the departments had
addressed some of the recommendations raised by CGE, while partially
addressing or completely failing to address others. Limited progress was
noted in a few areas; however, issues such as limited budgets and resource
allocations, poor state of facilities, failure to provide Victims Charter-related
training/skills development to staff and lack of effective monitoring and
evaluation systems persisted as areas of concern. Most importantly, the
findings indicated that the efforts to implement the Victims Charter by some
of the Justice, Crime Prevention and Security (JCPSC) cluster departments
were characterised by a lack of interdepartmental coordination as the
DoJ&CD, a department charged with the coordination mandate of the
Victims Charter, was no longer actively involved in the coordination of the
implementation of this Charter by the national ministries concerned.
10.2.5.
		

Project Assessing Women’s Representation in Local Governmen
–2016 Elections
In the light of the CGE Act no. 39 of 1996, the CGE continues to support
democracy through monitoring the country’s election processes to assess
gender equality and representation for women in the country’s institutions
of governance. The CGE has monitored previous national, provincial and
local government elections in the recent past (i.e. 2009, national and
provincial elections, 2011 local government elections and the 2014 national
and provincial government elections). The purpose of this work is to assess
the extent to which political parties are embracing the constitutional, policy
and legislative imperatives to promote gender mainstreaming within their
structures and within institutions of government. It is also to determine
the extent to which political parties in South Africa are complying with
relevant regional and international instruments (i.e. treaties, declarations
and protocols) geared towards addressing historical gender imbalances
in the country. This project will be completed after the local government
elections in August 2016, culminating with the compilation of a report
containing findings and recommendations.
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10.3.

Public education and information

This department is responsible for developing, conducting and managing education
and information programmes. This function ensures fostering public understanding on
matters relating to gender and gender equality. The CGE has also engaged in dialogues
and information-sharing sessions with communities, traditional leaders, faith-based
organisations, Chapter 9 institutions and NGOs on a range of gender-related issues
such as gender-based violence and LGBTI.
10.3.1.

Campaign on women’s empowerment and gender equality
Despite a progressive legislative framework addressing women’s
empowerment and gender equality, the empowerment of women

remains a serious challenge for the majority of women in South Africa.

Significant advances towards empowerment have been made through
a wide range of programmes that have been implemented. Despite the
progress made, gender inequality still remains a major challenge. The key
challenges identified included transformation of gender relations, gender
and poverty, affecting women in rural areas in particular, uneven access
to resources, access to employment, access to economic empowerment,
and access to land, which has impacted on the achievement of gender
equality and the empowerment of women.
There are seven interdependent priorities which are the minimum necessary
to empower women and alter the historical legacy of female disadvantage
that remains in most societies of the world. These seven priorities are:
•

Establish high-level corporate leadership for gender equality.

•

Treat all women and men fairly at work – respect and support
human rights and non-discrimination.

•

Ensure the health, safety and well-being of all women and men
workers.

•

Promote education, training and professional development for women.

•

Implement enterprise development, supply chain and marketing
practices that empower women.

•

Promote equality through community initiatives and advocacy.
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The Commission embarked on a women’s empowerment and gender
equality campaign to highlight the issues that women experience,
which include the seven priority areas, in discussions with stakeholders
at community level. One of the focus areas included discussing genderbased violence, which impacts on all areas of women’s development and
empowerment. The campaign formed part of the 16 Days of Activism
commemoration. A number of issues were raised by participants in the
interventions held, namely:

10.3.2.
		

•

Women indicated that they were not supported to establish cooperatives for business opportunities.

•

Women felt they were not informed about economic opportunities.

•

They indicated that there were high levels of unemployment among women.

•

Women felt that there were issues of discrimination in the workplace
and these were often not addressed

•

There is inadequate support for boys and girls and this often results
in a high school drop-out rate.

•

Elderly women indicated that they often suffer from abuse.

Engagements with traditional leadership and the religious sector on
gender equality
The CGE’s strategic plan requires that the CGE forge partnerships and
collaborations with various entities across sectors to promote gender
and protect gender equality. The Houses of Traditional Leadership and
traditional councils were identified as key role-players who have an
influence in their constituencies on traditional and cultural practices that
might have a negative impact on eradicating gender discrimination and
ultimately achieving gender equality.
Traditional leaders and religious leaders are the custodians of cultural
traditional and religious practices. In many communities, traditional and
religious leaders are respected and play a pivotal role in giving guidance
on the day-to-day activities of communities.
Provinces engaged the Provincial House of Traditional Leaders (PHTLs)
and facilitated the signing of Terms of Reference (ToRs) or MoUs which
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would outline working relations and information sharing in issues of
cultural and religious practices that impact on the achieving of gender
equality. This intervention was implemented in seven of the Commission’s
nine provinces for the financial year 2015/2016.
Key and emerging issues raised include the following.

10.3.3.

•

Traditional leaders in some provinces are reluctant to engage in
cultural practices that impact on gender equality. Some traditional
leaders feel strongly about their role as the custodians and protectors
of cultural issues and practices.

•

Stakeholders in tribal communities complained about the
registration of customary marriages, inheritance and succession,
and implications relating to inheritance once a spouse has passed
on. Wives are often subjected to some form of discrimination when
discussions on inheritance ensue.

•

Women in traditional settings are often not given a voice and can therefore
not express their concerns relating to empowerment on their human rights.

•

Traditional leaders feel that they should be given a greater
opportunity to participate and comment on policy shifts as the
custodians of cultural and traditional practices.

Programmes with LGBTI communities
The rights of LGBTI South Africans are clearly stated in Chapter 2 of the
Constitution, Bill of Rights, Section 9(3). This firmly obliges South Africa
to adopt a comprehensive human rights approach to same sex or LGBTIrelated rights. However, it has been found that a gap exists between
constitutional rights and the protectors of LGBTI persons and the actual
realisation of these rights.
In spite of an enabling legal environment, the lived experience for many
an LGBTI person tells quite a different story. On the most extreme end
of the wide spectrum of discriminatory experiences, there have been
frequent extreme reports of young black lesbian women being raped
under the banner of ‘corrective rape’ which often ends in murder. Gay men
and transgender persons are often targets of physical violence and labour
discrimination, marginalisation, exclusion, and targeted victimisation by
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public institutions intended to provide services and protection.
Certain trends have been highlighted relating to the numerous media
reports on the death and abuse of LGBTI individuals, particularly black
lesbians, gays, transgender and inter-sexual women in townships and
rural communities within the country. It is against this background that the
CGE noted with great concern the extent of gross acts of violence against
LGBTIs, the intervention of which can be sought through awareness and
educational programmes as well as the justice system in South Africa.
The Commission partnered with LGBTI organisations in three provinces to
educate the communities on the rights and challenges of LGBTI persons. A
number of key issues were raised during the engagements held, namely:
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•

Transgender individuals fall victim to incidences of hate crimes or
verbal and sexual abuse when they venture out in public.

•

Involvement of community organisations and faith-based institutions
in bridging the racial, gender and social class divide within the LGBTI
community so as to illicit solidarity within that community itself and
between persons who are not part of the LGBTI community.

•

Facilitating a dialogue which would educate and provide a safe
space to individuals who are still ‘in the closet’ to speak about the
dangers and consequences of revealing their sexual orientation to
family, friends and colleagues.

•

There is a growing need for training in human rights and HIV/AIDS
awareness due to the general lack of understanding around issues of
human rights and equality. This understanding is based on racial equality
and trying to illustrate equality through gender, sex, or sexual orientation,
where judgement and hatred concerning sexual orientation surfaces.

•

Within the intersexed community the idea of surgery is widely
accepted but this is a huge form of discrimination against intersexed
persons. It results in people dealing with so many issues as if an
identity has been forced on them – not chosen. Many intersexed
adults feel the need for corrective surgery because of the pressure
that society places on the individual to conform.
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•

10.3.4.

Incidents of ‘corrective rape’ and hate crimes against lesbian women,
particularly black women, are occurring more frequently in South
Africa, thus necessitating in-depth research, focused education
campaigns and targeted stakeholder engagement, including
criminal justice facilities and faith-based institutions to raise greater
awareness around LGBTI issues.

Total number of people reached through interventions

Table 5
PEOPLE REACHED DURING REPORTING PERIOD
PROVINCE

MALE

FEMALE

TOTAL

Eastern Cape

927

1333

2260

Free State

338

313

651

Gauteng

400

950

1350

KwaZulu-Natal

234

402

636

Limpopo

699

1908

2607

Mpumalanga

535

1059

1594

Northern Cape

541

936

1477

North West

770

1137

1907

Western Cape

925

1669

2594

5369

9707

15076

TOTAL

Figure 2

Number of people reached
1908

1669

1333
1059

925

541

Western Cape

Limpopo
Male
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535

402

Mpumalanga

234

Kwazulu Natal

400

Gauteng

313

Free State

Eastern Cape

338

1137
770

North West

699

936

Northern Cape

950

927

Female
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10.3.5.

Outreach areas covered by the Commission

Table 6
PROVINCE

DISTRICT

URBAN

RURAL

Amothole District

Village 7; Ncerha
Village; Idutywa;
Madantsane;
Postdam; Zeleni
Village

Sarah Baartman

Ikhwezi; Jansenville; Port Alfred

Waterford; Klipplaat

Buffalo City District
(Metro)

King Williams Town;
Majarantiyeni - informal
settlement; East London

Ndevana Village;
Embekweni Village;
Nkqonkqweni
Village

Cacadu District

Grahamstown
Ndibela Village;
Mgwalana Village

OR Tambo District
Nelson Mandela Metro

Port Elizabeth

Great Kei Local
Amahlathi Local
Eastern Cape

Mlungisi Township

Chris Hani District

Cofimvaba

Joa Gqabi District

Sterkspruit

Frances Baard District

Galeshewe; Beaconsfield

Emthanjeni District

De Aar

ZF Mgcawu District

Upington

John Taolo Gaetsewe

Kuruman

Bojanala

Rustenburg

Moruleng; Ledig;
Phatsimi

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Mafikeng; Leherutshe

Khunwana; Zeerust;
Ramatalbana;
Setlopo; Klein
Marico; Majaneng;
Atamelang;
Vrisgewacht;
Danville;
Naauwpoort

Dr Kenneth Kaunda

Macquuassie Hills; Klerksdorp

Matloang

Dr Ruth Segomotsi
Mompathi - Morokweng
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Sotho Village
(Mooiplaas);

Salt Lake

Morokweng; Taung,
Ganyesa
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Table 6 continued
PROVINCE

KwaZulu- Natal

DISTRICT

Annual Report 2015-2016

RURAL

Ethekwini Municipality

Vumengazi

Ethekwini Muinicipality

Mbumbulu;
Kwamakutha;
Marrianhill

Port Shepstone

Gamalakhe

Madeni Municipality

Mandlini

Umhlabuyalingana

Ngwanase;
Phongola

Ilembe District

Gauteng

URBAN

Stanger

Maphumulo;
Ophindweni

Khahlamba District

Emazizini (Bergville)

Eshowe District

Kwashange

Mzinyathi District

Nquthu

Mvuthi Local Municipality

Msinga

Johannesburg Metro

Sandton; Randburg;
Marshalltown; Alexandra;
Braamfontein; Orange Farm;
Johannesburg; Booysens;
Meadowlands; Parktown;
Turfontein

East Rand

Tembisa

Sedibeng

Nellmapius

Thwane Metro

Pretoria

Emfuleni West Rand

Poortjie

City of Tshwane

Suurman & Stinkwater
(Hammanskraal); Atteridgeville

Lesedi Local Municipality

Ratanda

Orange Farm;
Ratanda
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Table 6 continued
PROVINCE

Free State

DISTRICT

URBAN

Gariep District

Springfontein;
Edenburg;
Trompsburg;
Petrusburg

Thabo Mafutsanyane

Makholokoeng;
Qwaqwa

Matheo District

Parkweg SAPS

Mangaung Metro

Bloemfontein

Fezile Dabi District

Sasolburg; Welkom; Parys

City of Cape Town

Cape Town; Emfuleni;
Khayelitsha; Atlantis

Cape Agulhas

Westen Cape

Theunissen;
Winburg

Villiersdorp;
Bredasdorp
de Doorns; Brandvlei;
Stellenbosch

Wellington; Ashton;
Robertson

Overberg Municapility

Caledon

Kaaimansgatt

West Coast District

Mooreesburg

Ceres; Malmesbury

Saldanha Bay

Vredenburg

Witzenberg Municipality

Wosely

Govan Mbeki

Hendrina

Mbombela

Nelspruit

Daantjie

Nkomazi

Tonga

Bushbuckridge

Wales
Emalahleni; Kwamhlanga

Pixeley Ka Seme
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Ficksburg

Cape Winelands

Nkangana

Mpumalanga

RURAL

Middleplaas
Wakkerstroom

Thaba Chweu

Graskop

Gert Sibande

Secunda; Carolina

Driefontein;
Grootvlei

Ehlanzeni District

Mbombela; Lydenburg

Waterval-Boven;
Embonisweni;
Ronaldson; Casteel;
Msogwaba;
Mataffin;
Mganduzweni
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Table 6 continued
PROVINCE

Northern Cape

DISTRICT

URBAN

RURAL

Pixley Ka Seme

Colesberg

Prieska;
Niekershoop

Emthanjeni District

De Aar

ZF Mgcawu District

Upington

John Taolo Gaetsewe

Kuruman

Namaqua

Springbok

Frances Baard

Kimberley; Galeshewe;
Beaconsfield

Modimolle

Modimolle

Lebowakgomo;
Moletjie

Capricon

Polokwane; Marlot

Blood River; Goerge Marakula High

Dithakong;
Mapoteng; Bendell

School; Ga Phofu;
Slyplaas; Sekgopye

Limpopo

Vhembe

Madombidza;
Mudulani; Thohonyandou; Makwarela; Makhado;
Madombidzha; Elim
Hlanganani

Mokopane

Mohwelereng

Aganagang

Mtalala

Sekhukhuni

Steelpoort; Fetakgomo; Dresdeng;
Ga Moloi; Mphanama; Motetema

Mopani

Nkowankowa; Nwamintwa

Waterberg District
Mopani District
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10.3.6.

Education Programme through Community Radio Stations

Table 7
COMMUNITY RADIO STATIONS

LISTERNERSHIP PER DAY

Capricorn FM

578 000

Makhado FM

91 000

Giyani FM

57 000

Radio Turf

55 000

Inanda FM

85 000

Forte FM

28 000

Vuma FM

65 000

Smile FM

35 000

Jozi FM

520 00

Iqhayiya FM

27 000

Univen FM

180 000

North West FM

65 000

Mambatho FM

57 000

Radio Qwaqwa

187 000

Sekgosese FM

215 000

Mdantsane FM

116 000

Valley FM

103 000

OFM

79 000

Kasi FM Mpumalanga

67 000

Kasie FM Voslorus

152 000

Barberton Community Radio Station

58 000

Mohodi FM

49 000

Greater Tzaneen FM

32 000

Letlhabile Community Radio

36 000

Vaaltar Community Radio

155 000

Alex FM

270 000

Rainbow FM

69 000

Bushbuckridge Community Radio

187 000

Radio Khwezi

140 000

Radio Motheo FM

264 000

Riverside FM
Radio Teemaneng

69 000
123 000

Namaqua FM

82 000

Bush Radio

59 000

Alfred Nzo Community Radio
Unitra FM
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10.4.
10.4.1.

Provincial Highlights
Eastern Cape
The challenges the provincial office has been confronted with, include,
traditional leadership complaints; femicide; Ukuthwala; witchcraft-incited
murders; initiation-related deaths (circumcision); gender discrimination;
domestic violence and its connection with shared homes; sexual
harassment; and human trafficking.
In addressing these challenges, the provincial office focused on public
engagements, public hearings, strengthening relations with relevant
entities, as well as policy dialogues.
Court monitoring
The Eastern Cape office conducted site visits to seven facilities of the DoJ,
namely equality courts; maintenance courts; domestic violence courts and
sexual offences courts. Site visits and administration of questionnaires was
conducted in the following courts: Mqanduli Magistrates Court (rural),
Libode Magistrates Court (rural), Zwelitsha Magistrates Court (urban),
Forth Beaufort (urban), Somerset East Magistrates Court (urban), GraaffReinet (farming) and Jansenville (rural).
In the last quarter of the year under review the provincial office in
collaboration the research unit hosted a policy dialogue on gender-based
violence at Buffalo City metro municipality. Participants in the dialogue
varied, from CSOs and government departments. The research team
tabled the findings and recommendations of the research to participants
and these findings were largely accepted by the participants. Attending
the dialogue were representatives from the SAPS, DSD and NGOs.
Public education
The education programme in the province was designed to raise awareness
and promote empowerment and sensitise communities on the mandate
of the CGE, i.e. in particular, where it concerns traditional leaders and the
religious sector. Although the Eastern Cape has signed an MoU with the
Eastern Cape House of Traditional Leaders, there have been no specific
programmes conducted jointly with the House; nevertheless the education
officer has managed to conduct awareness sessions with traditional councils
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in the areas of Engcobo and Joe Gqabi. The Forum for Institutions that
Support Constitutional Democracy (FISD) continues to play a pivotal role
in addressing human rights issues that affect communities where forum
members have conducted programmes. The emphases on the sessions
with traditional leaders was around the promoting of constitutional values,
promoting the mandate of the CGE, and raising awareness on harmful
traditional practises.
Highlights and achievements by Eastern Cape
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•

Collaborated with forum that supports constitutional democracy
during Women’s Month, Good Governance Week and Human Rights
Months. The office has also made presentations on the Independent
Electoral Commission (IEC) stakeholders’ engagements around
women representation.

•

Successfully assisted Dutywa Women’s Support Centre in the case
that they brought to the office on murder and, because of pressure
from the CGE and other stakeholders, such as Sonke Jender Justices,
the accused in the murder case was sentenced to a year in prison.

•

The office has partnered and made presentations on different
platforms around gender-based violence, women’s representation
and empowerment in both public and private sectors.

•

The office held sessions with traditional leaders under the Herschel
Traditional Council, in order to establish working relations and
sensitising traditional leaders on gender-based violence and harmful
traditional practices.

•

The office contributed to the discussion paper on Ukuthwala hosted
by the Law Reform Commission at Lusikisiki.
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10.4.2.

Gauteng
In discharging the CGE mandate in the province of Gauteng, a number
of programmes and initiatives were undertaken with priorities expended
on the following issues (but not limited to): collaborations with Gauteng
provincial legislature for the purpose of making valuable contributions to
provincial gender machinery, awareness of LGBTI issues, participation in
men’s forums and partnerships with like-minded organisations.
Collaborative initiatives with Gauteng provincial legislature
During the year under review the provincial office increased efforts in
strategic stakeholder engagements with the provincial legislature and
office of the premier. By virtue of the fact that the Gauteng provincial
government (office of the premier in particular) is responsible for enabling
the functions of a provincial gender machinery, strategic work relations
occurred during the period under review.
The many engagements that were held between the CGE provincial
office and key provincial government structures culminated in a number
of activities through the CGE provincial office, which rendered support
and specialist advice. These activities included workshops, dialogues with
stakeholders in the gender field, and gender budget training.
What remained important throughout the collaborative efforts was the
exchange of critical information on gender issues, with reference to
trends that emerge time and again from CGE’s research reports, and other
emergent issues within the social strata. Through this, the CGE provincial
office took part in dialogues on virginity testing and sex work, as well as the
round-table discussion on Thought Leadership. Apart from the dialogues
which intended to disseminate information, the provincial office of the CGE
made a contribution to the annual provincial gender plan of Gauteng and
further gave inputs to the province’s annual report. The working relationship
between provincial government and CGE’s provincial office also led to an
invitation by the province for the CGE to exhibit public education information
as part of Women’s Month commemorative activities.
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Programme activities related to men and gender
The legal and public education initiatives in the province delivered a
number of activities in order to promote men’s forums in raising awareness
on gender equality issues. The awareness initiatives were conducted in
the form of outreach to communities, with topics that were designed to
educate men on domestic violence, creating safe spaces for women and
girls, and the Maintenance Act.
LGBTI initiatives
It should be noted that the provincial office forms part of the Gauteng
Provincial Task Team on LGBTI, which falls under the auspices of the DoJ&CD.
It is through this network that the office is able to reach stakeholders and
participate in several programmes by invitation on a regular basis. Some
of these included the office’s participation in discussion forums on hate
crimes in LGBTI communities, together with CSOs, Gauteng Council of
Churches and academia, among others.
Special project: Pink Drive campaign
During the year under review, the office continued (from the previous
financial year) with their collaborative work and partnership with the
Pink Drive, the SA National Taxi Council (SANTACO) and Future Life. The
campaign aimed to promote breast-cancer awareness, thus encouraging
communities to make use of testing facilities. For the year under review,
the campaign was rolled out in Soweto, at Baragwanath taxi rank, where
the minister of health and MEC of roads and transport graced the occasion
and participated in the proceedings of the day. For the provincial office, this
became an opportunity to engage with members of the public on gender
equality issues for the purposes of promoting the mandate of the CGE. The
campaign from the perspective of the CGE was also important in promoting
sustainable development goals which relate to gender and social issues.
Strengthening of relations with local government
In recognition of the fact that local authorities play a critical role in the
work of the provincial office, it was a priority to ensure that the working
relationship continues. Local government is important in relation to
making sure that the provincial office of the CGE gains easier access to
communities, stakeholders and community role players in the area of
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gender equality. It is through the relationship of the CGE’s provincial office
and municipalities (or metros) such as Ekurhuleni, Tshwane, Sedibeng,
West Rand (Randfontein and Merafong), and the City of Johannesburg,
that a number of communities-based programmes and outreach were
conducted. It is also through these relationships that the provincial office
received numerous invitations on relevant platforms, to address the public
during commemorative events such as Women’s Month and 16 Days of
Activism, and many others.
Awareness of legal services and the law on matters of equality
Apart from the legal services that are often undertaken through receiving
gender-based complaints and court monitoring processes, the provincial
office took part in a number of outreach activities, in collaboration with
other Chapter 9 institutions, workshops on sexual harassment in the
workplace. In other instances, the office was invited to join government
departments on national initiatives such as Access to Justice Week and
Child Protection Week.
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10.4.3.

KwaZulu-Natal
Engagements with Islamic women
The provincial office held dialogues with Islamic women. Issues that came
out of the meeting confirmed that:
•

Young women are either forced or groomed to consent to
arranged marriages at a very young age.

•

While boys are provided with developmental education, girls are
taken to religious schools, where they are further groomed to be
wives and learn home-keeping skills.

•

Islamic marriage and divorce laws are very discriminatory to women.
Men can divorce women only by pronouncement, while women are
not so much at liberty to divorce men, both in terms of their religion
and the act itself, to the extent that if they decide to leave they stand
to lose everything, including maintenance and their home.

Widowhood summit
The office partnered with the office of the premier in hosting a summit
on widowhood. The summit was attended by approximately 450 widows.
The departments of national treasury, SARS, the master’s office, the
Government Employment Pension Fund (GEPF) and CGE attended and
participated in the discussions. Issues raised related mainly to how South
African tax laws affect and push widowed people to poverty due to
administration gaps. Other issues relate to customs and religious belief
pressures and discrimination, particularly of widows. These beliefs are
seen to be extending to public places where women are supposed to
receive services without prejudice. In summary the summit resolved that:

62 62

•

The implementation of tax laws, issuance of letters of authority,
and transfer of property ownership, need to be reviewed to avoid
indirect discrimination of widowed persons.

•

Traditional and religious leadership needs to be engaged to address
practices that violate rights.

•

The Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA)
department should be engaged in implementing succession laws.

•

The establishment of integrated ‘one-stop’ houses in every district
municipality to assist widows/ers to apply for death certificates,
contact with insurance houses and deceased spouse’s employer,
and any other admin, in one place.
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10.4.4.

Limpopo
The Limpopo province is plagued by a few social issues that constantly
clash with human rights and the Constitution. Within this province
we experience a persistence of maintenance and estate matters; the
CGE is inundated with complaints on these two issues, Secondly, the
province is also permeated by the witchcraft phenomenon; it has been
established that witchcraft killings are rampant within the province –
women, particularly old women, are being accused of witchcraft and
therefore killed. Gender-based violence is also a serious challenge within
the province; femicide and sexual assault (rape) are everywhere in the
province, and the statistics for gender-based violence are escalating daily.
The challenge of this violence is also linked to the abuse of commercial
sex workers and abuse of LGBTI persons.
In November 2015, the office conducted a dialogue with women
traditional leaders and traditional leaders’ wives. The dialogue was about
raising awareness of the CGE mandate and strengthening relationships
with traditional leadership and to ensure that traditional practices are in
sync with the human rights approach and the values of the Constitution.
The objective was also to build a relationship with them so that they
may be change agents within their communities, using their influence as
leaders. Inter alia we are hoping that they can mobilise women in their
respective communities in fighting all the social ills, such as abuse, gender
discrimination, harmful traditional practices, gender-based violence and
all other related issues. The dialogue was attended by women from the
following traditional councils: Tisane, Mamone, Mampane, Masomela,
Swazi Mnyama, Bengwenyama, Marota Mokgane, Maepa, Kgare and
Mahlangu. The dialogue was held in Sekhukhuneland at Ga Moloi village.
In September 2015 the office hosted the portfolio committee on women in
the presidency for a legal clinic in Tzaneen. The main issues discussed on
the day included maintenance, estates, successions, customary marriages
and issues pertaining to witchcraft. Other issues that came out during
reflections and question time were those concerning child custody.
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10.4.5.

Mpumalanga
The provincial office undertook several projects in line with the mandate of
the CGE, meeting the strategic objectives of the institution through public
education, legal services, and stakeholder relations. The key highlights of
the provincial office include, but are not limited to, the following: provincial
summit on customary marriages, dialogues on gender-based violence, as
well as campaigns on traditional leadership and the religious sector.
Employment equity hearings
The office recommendations on the employment equity report to the
Department of Public Works and also pledged to assist the department
in implementing the recommendations. The provincial office also hosted
a workshop on gender mainstreaming to the Mbombela municipality
as a result of the recommendations of the employment equity report.
Apart from the efforts in mainstreaming and rendering assistance for
implementing this report, the province also took part in the national
employment equity hearings.
In an effort to conduct performance assessments of political parties’
stance on gender equality, the province conducted several research
projects with a number of government departments. Closely linked to the
research function of the institution, the provincial office was responsible

for coordinating policy dialogues with policy and decision-makers from
the Department of Community Safety, Security and Liaison.
Stakeholder relations
Closely linked to the function of legal services within the province, the office
held several meetings with institutions supporting democracy, as well as
the chief courts operations officer from the Department of Constitutional
Development and Correctional Services to strengthen working relations
as a means to resolving some of the cases.
In an effort to promote the Customary Marriages Act and prevent the
phenomenon of early childhood marriages, the provincial office held
several engagements with women’s organisations and religious and
community leaders on legislation pertaining to customary marriages and
early childhood marriages. These engagements culminated in a provincial
summit on customary marriages. Apart from the summit, there had been
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other forms of engagements with local authorities, i.e. Nkangala and
Ehlazeni on matters pertaining to cultural practices and gender equality.
In the year under review the provincial office signed an MoU with the
Public Service Commission (PSC), and a number of terms of reference with
other institutions, such as the SACC, Grip and Sonke Gender Justice, and
Emalahleni local municipalities.
Public education
Some activities of public education took place in the form of information
sessions as well as dialogues within the province. Themes of the latter
included gender-based violence, gender transformation and gender
and poverty. Key stakeholders in these forums consisted of civil society
organisations, religious institutions and women in traditional councils.
In the year under review, the province undertook gender mainstreaming
workshops in Gert Sibande and Nkangala District municipalities. In
collaboration with other Chapter 9 institutions, the provincial office took part in
the Human Rights campaign to create awareness on human rights violations.
Mpumalanga Provincial Stakeholder
Engagement
From Left to Right: Mr C Jacobs (Public
Service Commission), Ms M Mavuso, Mr
M Letsoalo, Commissioner F Nzimande,
Mr L Mabuza, Ms N Govender (Public
Service Commission)
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10.4.6.

Northern Cape
Stakeholder relations
During the year under review, the provincial office continued to strengthen
relations with like-minded institutions on issues pertaining to gender and
gender equality. These include NGOs, faith-based organisations (FBOs),
the Premier’s Office, and House of traditional leaders, among others. Some
of these engagements have culminated in MoUs signed between the CGE
and other institutions, close collaborative projects, and invitations to share
projects within communities of the province, especially in rural areas.
Some of the collaborative projects include the outreach programme
which was held in Colesberg, Kwa-Zamuxolo, Kuyasa and RIemvasmaak.
The outreach programme was undertaken in collaboration with the
Chapter 9 forum in the province. Some of the stakeholder engagements
in the province have also led to the strengthening of working relations
with organisations such as the Pan South Africa Language Board (Pansalb),
SALGA and Office of the Premier.
Public education (awareness programmes)
The approach and focus on educational programmes of provincial offices
was largely based on disseminating information on gender rights as a
means to ensure that communities are able to report problems related to
violations of gender issues and discrimination. The public education drive
of the provincial office consisted of information sessions that were hosted
in a number of areas in the province, including, but not limited to, Francis
Baard, John Taole Gaitsewe, Pixley Ka Seme, ZF Mgcawu and Namakwa
municipalities. It was through these information sessions that community
members with whom the provincial office was engaged were able to lay a
number of gender-based complaints to the provincial office.
Work with traditional leaders
During the year under review, the provincial office held consultative meetings
with the Nama-Khoi traditional leaders on issues of common interest within
the context of gender. The engagements with traditional leaders led to the
sharing of important public spaces where key issues from communities
were discussed during events such as Women’s Month. For example, during
Women’s Month, the CGE organised outreach work in Kuruman, Dithakong
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village, with attendance of government organisations such as Home Affairs,
Agriculture, Social Development and Education. This event occurred under
the auspices of traditional leaders of the area visited.
Women’s empowerment programmes
In regard to the subject matter of women’s empowerment, the provincial
office undertook a number of activities with the aim of promoting issues
pertaining to this empowerment. These activities took place at different
times of the financial year, with a number of stakeholders and partners on
board. Some of these were organised by the provincial office, while others
were organised by partners and collaborators such as SALGA Women’s
Legotla. The programmes on women’s empowerment took place in the
form of information sessions, public presentations, and dialogues. The
province organised a number of these activities in areas such as Bersig,
Nababeep, Concordia, Steinkopf and Pofadder. Some of these activities
coincided with local and international commemorative days such as the
International Women’s Day, International Rural Women’s Day and the
locally based Women’s Month. Among some of the highlights of women’s
empowerment programmes were the dialogues held on 50/50 gender
parity for elections, and sustainable development goals. It is worth noting
that the CGE in the province assisted the Department of Education
(provincial) to launch the female principal forum.
Human Rights programme
In line with the requirements of the Annual Performance Plan, the provincial
office organised events in order to celebrate women who work within
the gender field, in particular health, counselling and trauma. This event
was undertaken with the participation of the South African Broadcasting
Corporation (regional office), Disabled South Africa, and The Cancer
Association of South Africa. Throughout the month of March, i.e. Human
Rights Month, the provincial office used regional media in order to promote
issues pertaining to gender rights.
Gender- based violence
Gender based violence has become a scourge in the province of Northern
Cape. In response to the problem, the provincial office undertook a number
of activities in order to partly deal with the problem. One of the highlights
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of these activities includes the provincial office’s representation of one of
its clients at the CCMA. At the same time, the office continued (during the
year under review) to monitor cases of domestic violence, sexual offences
and equality courts, as well as devising the means to hold government
accountable on making sure that frameworks that prohibit gender-based
violence are upheld.
Employment equity hearings
The provincial office conducted employment equity hearings with entities
such as the DoJ&CD, the Department of Education, SAPS, De Beers
Consolidated Mining, and Pikwane Diamonds. From these hearings various
recommendations were made for the purpose of correcting the state of
affairs in relation to gender equity, transformation and mainstreaming.
The provincial report highlights the initiation and formalising of stakeholder
relationships and collaboration of programmes in future for services to be
delivered to communities, especially in the rural areas.
The broader outlook of the provincial office work and identification with
the role of the Commission has improved a lot. Positive feedback from
stakeholders at different forums regarding the work of the office is also
good news for the CGE generally.
Beyond the stakeholder’s engagements the office also responded to
strategic partners’ invitations for presentations to key stakeholders.
Since the beginning of the initiation period (during the year under
review), no death incident has been reported in the province. This results
from a number of engagements in the past three years, which led to
the development and implementation of the bylaws in the Phokwane
municipality. The CGE and task team members were commended by the
Chairperson of the Provincial House of Traditional Leaders, Kgosi Pule
Bareki, on 23 June 2015 during the opening of the at the Northern Cape
Provincial Legislature (NCPL).
The office has signed an MoU with the House of Traditional Leaders, the
Office of the Speaker of the Northern Cape provincial legislature and one
critical highlight was the meeting of CGE with the NC Premier, Ms. Silvia
Lucas, on 17 February 2016.
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Engagement with the traditional leadership
Consultative meetings were held on 28 May 2015 with the Nama-Khoi
traditional leaders, as well as religious leaders at the Platfontein community
centre in Platfontein. To further support the awareness programme CGE
and the SABC partnered with XK FM which is in Platfontein, and the CGE
had various interviews on human and gender rights programmes from
April to May 2015.
As part of Women’s Month programmes, the office attended a CGE
stakeholders’ engagement event in Kuruman in the village of Dithakong,
where traditional leaders formed part of the day. The community attended
this important session where stakeholders from the Departments of Home
Affairs, Agriculture, Social Development and Education were present.
Engagement with the Heads of Department (HoDs) on the 8 Principles
The CGE office with the Office on the Status of Women (OSW) collaborated
on this session. The outcome was the interaction of officials regarding the
50/50 goal and job access. The Commission presented on the Results Based
Monitoring and Evaluation – a tool to be used if change is to yield results.
On 29 September 2015 the province addressed the Carnarvon men’s event
in collaboration with the Department of Social Services. The presentation
centred on the role of men as agents of change within their families,
workplaces and society in general. It was well organised and attended. The
men committed to taking the advice of the CGE to formalise a local men’s
forum, which will be formed by different sectors within the community.
The session was motivational and informative for all participants, which
included, the SAPS, church leaders, community members and officials from
the different departments in Carnarvon.
A dialogue was held with different women’s unions (denomination)
organised by the office. The objective of the dialogue was to encourage
the role of women in raising gender issues affecting women in the church
and how best they can use the CGE.
International Women’s Day
The office commemorated International Women’s Day in Upington,
focusing on gender equality and the 50/50 gender parity in preparation
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for the local elections. The event was attended by the premier and the
MEC’s Gender Focal Person (GFP) officials and community members from
all five districts of the province.
Commemoration of Human Rights Month
The office organised its human rights event specifically to celebrate
women who deal with gender matters, such as abused women, trauma,
and health issues affecting women. The event was well organised and it
formed one of our highlight events in March. The event was addressed by
the regional manager of the SABC, the secretary of Disabled South Africa,
Cansa manager and the Commission. Each of these leaders addressed the
women on the importance of self-worth, understanding your health rights
within a relationship as well as being conscious of cancer as a disease.
Beyond empowerment, the event focused on meeting new stakeholders
and possibly looking into turning this event into an annual one, consistent
with the International Women’s Day and the Human Rights Month.
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10.4.7.

North West
Intervention on LGBTIs
The North West province is plagued by a number of violent acts against
women and general human rights abuses. It was also disturbing to realise
that some of this abuse was committed by children or grandchildren after
drugs and alcohol abuse. In one instance a teenager murdered her mother
because she didn’t cook meat for supper – obviously the perpetrator was
intoxicated. Although the LGBTI community is small in the province, they
have not escaped the wrath of ruthless abusers. The North West office has
made efforts to put the LGTI agenda in the mainstream of the Commission’s
mandate. A number of workshops with the community, including our faithbased partners, were held to address issues of discrimination against the
LGBTI community. We have also ensured that the LGBTI organisation is
represented in the provincial task team coordinated by the DoJ&CD.
Engagement with stakeholders
The office has maintained a good working relationship with various
stakeholders, such as the faith-based community through the National
Interfaith Council of South Africa (NICSA), the Chapter 9 Institutions
through the FISD and various government departments in the Victim
Empowerment forum (VE forum). It should be added that there is an
ongoing and working relationship with stakeholders, not only limited to
discussion meetings. For instance, with the VE forum, six police stations
monitoring visits were conducted to establish compliance with the victimfriendly services charter.
Engagements with traditional leadership
In this reporting period, the North West office has facilitated workshops for
chiefs and their respective communities, despite not having an MoU with
the PHTL. We are hoping they will realise the importance of the MoU and
sign in the new financial year.
Commemoration of International Rural Women’s Day
We further conducted a dialogue with rural women on 15 October 2015.
The focus was on women and poverty and was in line with the UN Women’s
celebration of International Rural Women’s Day. The speakers included
rural women involved in agriculture, one of them a commercial farmer,
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Ms. Mutloane, who shared good practices as a successful businesswoman
in the Ngaka Modiri Molema municipality and encouraged women to
get involved in businesses which were mainly male-dominated. She
encouraged them to form cooperatives in order for them to access funds.
The Department of Rural Economic Agricultural Development official of
the Tswaing Local District dealt with the programmes and opportunities
that the Department is having for rural women to take advantage of.
He indicated that there are different programmes in the Department of
Agriculture which are funded by the department and other stakeholders
from the government departments and the private sector. Women were
encouraged to make proper use of funds provided by the Department for
them to start projects.
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10.4.8.

Free State
The Free State province undertook several programmes during the year
under review in response to the requirements of the Annual Performance
Plan through public education, stakeholder relations and legal services.
Public education programmes
The office took part in the ‘Men as Agents of Change’ at an International
Men’s Day event in Bloemfontein organised by the DSD and also conducted
joint workshops on gender-based violence with the Department of Public
Works in Qwaqwa and Sasolburg. The office also held various dialogues
with different schools in the Villiers area in partnership with the South
African Democratic Teachers Union (SADTU), SAPS, the Education Labour
Relations Council (ELRC), the Department of Education, the religious
sector and traditional leaders. These dialogues also placed an emphasis
on policy-related issues such as sexual harassment and its manifestations
(causes and consequences). Another gender-based violence programme
undertaken in the form of community dialogue is the Victim Empowerment
project against gangsterism, which was conducted in partnership with
religious organisations and civil society organisations in the community of
Hennenman (Fezile Dabi District).
A consultative meeting was held with Mangaung Metro for training
on gender mainstreaming. In this particular instance the EXCO (senior
management) of Mangaung allowed the CGE to do a presentation on
gender mainstreaming as it pertains or applies to local government. In
a bid to provide inputs of emerging issues pertaining to gender in the
province, the education officer and the legal officer (national) conducted
women’s empowerment and gender equality dialogues, with like-minded
stakeholders on common thematic focus areas, such as Ukuthwala, antiracism, issues on persons with disabilities, LGBTI rights, and the celebration
of International Women’s Day.
Legal activities
The legal officer managed to conduct four legal clinics through the Access
to Justice Week/Campaign jointly with the Department of Justice in areas
such as Petrus Steyn, Excelsior, Theunissen and Trompsburg. It should be
noted that there was no education officer in this province, yet the legal
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officer also managed to do court visits/monitoring despite all the capacity
challenges in the office.
Stakeholder relations
In line with the objective of strengthening relations with stakeholders, the
office made presentations on its mandate to PANSALB and the University
of Free State (UFS).
Although there is an MoU that was signed in the previous financial years
with traditional leaders in the province, this could not be reviewed for
the current financial year, hence there were no joint activities/initiatives
with traditional leaders in this period but working relations have been
revived. The office also participated in numerous consultative meetings
with Chapter 9 institutions with the aim of resuscitating the existence
and significance of this particular forum (FISD), which differs from the
Chapter 9 forum based on provincial dynamics but doing more or less
the same work.
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10.4.9.

Western Cape
In an effort to meet the requirements of the Annual Performance Plan of
the institution, Western Cape office utilised its public education and legal
services in reaching out to communities and stakeholders in the human
rights and gender sectors.
One of the key focal aspects in the delivery of the mandate within the
province was to ensure that relations between the CGE and stakeholders
are strengthened in order to promote current and future collaborations
with like- minded institutions.
By virtue of the fact that the province does not have coordinating
institutions such as the gender machinery as well as GFPs in all provincial
departments, compelled the resident Commissioner in the province and
provincial staff to hold several engagements with provincial figureheads
as a means to advance stakeholder relations in the province.
The province managed to cover the following focal areas of gender-related
issues: LGBTI, land issues, and gender-based violence among others.
These focal areas were promoted to communities through community
dialogues, outreach programmes, and stakeholder workshops. Part
of the objective for hosting these activities was to raise awareness of
communities and stakeholders on gender-related matters with the aim
of transforming communities on such issues. In the light of the current
challenges pertaining to LGBTI communities and their rights as they relate
to the Civil Unions Marriages Act, the provincial office held a workshop
with stakeholders who work with LGBTI communities in the province to
unpack rights-based issues from the Act with the purpose of developing a
concept document that served as a guide on how LGBTI marriages ought
to be handled by institutions such as the Department of Home Affairs.
In regard to gender-based violence, the provincial office hosted dialogues
in schools, with the aim of educating the youth and school teachers on
the current plight of this violence in schools.
In relation to matters pertaining to land, the provincial office collaborated
with the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform in Cape Town
as a means to impart information and empower women on land rights.
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Stakeholder relations
During the year under review, the provincial office spearheaded the
founding of the Khayelitsha stakeholder engagement/forum. The provincial
office initiated this forum with the objective of creating a platform of
engagement on issues of gender inequality and gender-based violence
in Khayelitsha township, targeting NGOs, FBOs, traditional leaders and
government departments operating in Khayelitsha.
Another milestone was the provincial office’s involvement in helping to
launch the Atlantis stakeholder forum in collaboration with the Department
of Local Government. It is envisioned that these forums would function as
a catalyst in bringing communities together in the fight against genderbased violence and abuse by cooperating with local government entities
and CSOs.
Gender mainstreaming: Gender mainstreaming programme with the
Provincial Department of Local Government with a special focus on
promoting gender, disability and youth in municipality service delivery
programmes in the province.
One of the key highlights of the provincial office was the gender
mainstreaming project which was conducted with the Department of Local
Government, whose main focus was to promote gender equality among
people with disabilities and the youth in service delivery programmes.
Lastly, the provincial office undertook a flagship project from the
office investigating the slow pace of transformation in the judiciary by
monitoring all Judicial Service Commission interviews.
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0ne (1) status report
on gender policies
and practices using
the gender barometer
tool

Report on the
Status of Gender
Policies and Practices in the Public

One status report
on gender policies and practices
using the gender
barometer tool

Investigation
report
on Gender transformation in tertiary institutions guided by the
Concept Paper

One (1) gender One (1) gender
t ra n s f o r m at i o n t r a n s f o r m a t i o n
hearing of 3 uni- hearing report
versities

Review of prog- Nine (9) EE re- One (1) consolidated
ress of recommen- ports
reflecting review report to Pardations made to recommendations liament
private and public entities

1. To monitor equality and evaluate the promotion of gender
equality and relevant policies
and practices of the public and
private sector and report parliament

ANNUAL TARGET

PERFORMANCE BASELINE
INDICATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES

One (1) status report
on gender policies and
practices
using the gender barometer
tool finalised

Achieved

One (1) investigation
report on gender transformation drafted and
finalised

Achieved

One (1) consolidated
report compiled and
submitted to parliament

Achieved

ACHIEVED/NOT
ACHIEVED

No variance

No variance

No variance

VARIANCE/ REASON

No corrective
action

No corrective
action

No corrective
action

CORRECTIVE
ACTION

PERFORMANCE REPORT 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

Planned Outcome : Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender equality (50/50)

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 1: To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment of gender equality

Table 8
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78 78

3. To conduct performance assessments of political parties and
the public and private sectors on
the effective implementation of
gender equality legislation policies and practices

No corrective
action

No variance
Achieved
One (1) assessment
report on the implementation of 365 days
programme and Its supporting structure finalised

No corrective
action

No corrective
action

No variance

One (1) assessment report on women’s representation in political
parties in local government finalised

Achieved

CORRECTIVE
ACTION

Upon
analysing
the No corrective
number of bills which action
called for submission,it was
found that that more bills
called for comments and
therefore the Commission
was required to respond.
Over- achieved by six (6)
submissions

1 Report on the imple- Achieved
No variance
mentation of the Vic- One (1) report on the
tims Charter
implementation of the
Victims Charter finalised

One (1) Assessment
report on the implementation of 365 days
programme on GBV

One (1) Assessment report on
the implementation of 365 days
programme
on
GBV and its Supporting structure

An
assessment
report prepared
on
the
implementation
of the 365 days
programme
on
GBV
and
its
supporting
structures

Audit report of New indicator
the implementation of the Victims
Charter

An Assessment report
on women’s representation in political
parties in local government

One (1) assessment report on
women’s
representation in political parties in local
government

An
assessment
report on women’s representation in political
parties in local
government

Number of sub- Twelve (12) Sub- Sixteen (16) submis- Achieved
missions made missions per year sions per year
for
legislative
and policy enhancement of the
Twenty Two (22) submisgender equality
framework
sions finalised and submitted to parliament

2. To initiate and/or participate
in the review of the legislative
framework in all spheres of government that impact on gender
equality

ACHIEVED/NOT
ACHIEVED

VARIANCE/ REASON

PERFORMANCE REPORT 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

PERFORMANCE BASELINE
INDICATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES z

ANNUAL TARGET

Planned Outcome : Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender equality (50/50)

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 1: To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment of gender equality
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Number of dia- Three (3) national
logues with pol- policy dialogue
icy makers convened ( based on
research studies
conducted in the
previous financial
year and integrated with key CGE
campaigns)

Two (2) policy dia- Partially achieved
Two (2) dialogues could
logues conducted at
not be held because
the national level and
dates could be secured
two (2) dialogues conducted at provincial
forum for HoDS
One (1) national policy
dialogue and one provincial dialogue were
conducted with HoDs

HoD
forum
will communicate dates for
dialogues in
the new financial year

PERFORMANCE REPORT 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

5. To convene policy dialogues
with relevant policy makers, national and provincial on recommendations to promote gender
equality contained in research
reports and research activities

ANNUAL TARGET

No corrective
action

PERFORMANCE BASELINE
INDICATOR

4. To evaluate the implementa- Evaluation report One (1) Consoli- One (1) Consolidated Achieved
No variance
dated report
court monitoring retion and effectiveness of nation- on courts
One (1) Consolidated
al justice facilities in addressing
port
court monitoring report
gender discrimination.
finalised

SUB-STRATEGIES z

Planned Outcome : Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender equality (50/50)

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 1: To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment of gender equality
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80 80
corrective
The No
C o m m i s s i o n action
has
been
responsive
to
the
demands
of the public
through public
awareness
initiatives
The
Commis- No
corrective
sion has been action
responsive
to
the
demands
of the public
through public
awareness initiatives

Nine hundred (900) Achieved
complaints attended
to in terms of CGE
Complaints
manual
and a consolidated
report on substantive One thousand, one hundred
and fourty three (1143) comissues
plaints received and attended to.

Seven
hundred
and twenty (720)
complaints
received

One hundred and Ninety (90) outreach Achieved
eight (108) out- and legal clinics per
A total of one hundred and
reach and legal year
fifty four (154) clinics were
clinics per year
held

No of outreach
and legal clinics conducted in
provinces

CORRECTIVE
ACTION

Seven hundred
and twenty (720)
complaints received attended
to in terms of the
CGE complaints
manual (as prescribed by the
complaints manual)

1. To timeously investigate complaints of violations of gender
rights and identify appropriate
redress

ACHIEVED/ NOT ACHIEVED VARIANCE

PERFORMANCE REPORT 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

ANNUAL TARGET

BASELINE

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES

Planned Outcome: A society educated in constitutional rights to gender equality that demonstrates the transformative behaviour of the
obligation to respect and uphold gender equality. To further ensure effective and efficient application of social justice for victims of gender
violations.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 2: To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise
awareness on issues of gender equality, challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action against infringements of
gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress.
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Women and empowerment
campaign was conducted in
each province

Achieved

No
corrective
action

corrective
To use public Fifty four (54) me- Fifty four (54) radio Achieved
Radio slots No
media platforms dia slots
slots
were conducted action
to disseminate
Fifty eight (58) radio slots through NCRF
gender equality
and SABC radio
were conducted
education and
stations. SABC
provided slots,
information
additional slots.
variance

Nine (9) report on outreach, advocacy and
media campaign conducted in provinces
guided by a Concept
Paper

JSE and sex work
reports to be
finalised in the
first quarter of
the new financial
year.
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No variance

ANNUAL TARGET

3. To develop co-ordinated pro- Number
of Nine (9) reports on
grammes to promote gender c o - o r d i n a t i o n coordinated camequality
campaign
de- paigns
veloped with targeted stakeholders on gender
discrimination

BASELINE

Awaiting comments from the
SALRC on sex
work. Sign-off
report on maternal health still
needs to be finalised.

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

2. Initiate an investigation into A Systemic in- Three (3) systemic Two (2) systemic inves- Partially achieved
tigations conducted
systemic violations of gender vestigation
investigations:
rights and identify remedial ac1. transformation
tion.
of the judiciary.
Judicial investigation report
2. Decriminalisawas drafted and finalised
tion of sex work.
3. Maternal health

SUB-STRATEGIES

Planned Outcome: A society educated in constitutional rights to gender equality that demonstrates the transformative behaviour of the
obligation to respect and uphold gender equality. To further ensure effective and efficient application of social justice for victims of gender
violations.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 2: To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise
awareness on issues of gender equality, challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action against infringements of
gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress.
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82 82

Number of intervention programmes
on
gender
violations
initiated
with traditional
leadership and
religious sector

4. To initiate interventions for the
sustainable development and
promotion of gender equality by
addressing violations in the social,l
cultural, political, economic, security, and human rights dimensions

ANNUAL TARGET

One (1) consol- New indicator
idated
report
on
engagement with stakeholders on the
C o m m i s s i o n ’s
mandate
and
thematic focus
areas

Twenty four (24) stake- Achieved
holder engagements
by
Commissioners
on the Commission’s
mandate and thematic
focus areas
Fifty eight (58) engagements
by Commissioners were held

Two (2) reports on joint coordinated programmes were
LGBTI sector and human
rights campaign

Achieved

No
corrective
action

corrective
Emerging No
issues required action
response from
Commissioners,
h e n c e
meetings with
stakeholders
exceeded the
stated target

No variance

No
corrective
action
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Nine (9) Interven- Seven (7) provincial re- Achieved
No variance
tion programmes port guided by a Con(One per prov- cept Paper
ince)
Seven (7) reports on engagements with traditional leadership and religious sector was
produced.

BASELINE

5. To collaborate with organs of No of joint pro- Two (2) joint co- Two (2) joint coordiwith ordinated
pro- nated programme per
state civil society and other insti- grammes
grammes
province
tutions for the effective develop- stakeholders
ment, protection, promotion and
attainment of gender equality

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES

Planned Outcome: A society educated in constitutional rights to gender equality that demonstrates the transformative behaviour of the
obligation to respect and uphold gender equality. To further ensure effective and efficient application of social justice for victims of gender
violations.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 2: To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise
awareness on issues of gender equality, challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes and take action against infringements of
gender rights through the implementation of appropriate redress.
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2. To interact with and present
reports to national, regional and
international bodies on state
compliance with conventions,
covenants and charters acceded
to or ratified make recommendations for improvements and monitor implementation

No corrective action

Achieved
No variance
Two (2) reports were developed and tabled at plenary,
namely, the attendance at
UNESCO general conference
and attendance at the AU
Summit

Two (2) reports on attendance at international and regional
events

Engagements
with stakeholders on CGE attendance at international and
regional events

Two (2) reports
on attendance at
international and
regional events

No corrective action

Achieved
No variance
One (1) presentation done at
CSW 2016 at high level panel
discussion which was held

CORRECTIVE
ACTION

Number of pre- One (1) presenta- One (1) presentation
sentations made tion conducted
conducted
to relevant national regional
and international stakeholders

VARIANCE

No corrective action

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE REPORT 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

One (1) report on One (1) AGDI report Achieved
No variance
AGDI
published
One (1) AGDI report drafted
Gender Develand finalised
opment Index
(AGDI)

ANNUAL TARGET

No corrective action

BASELINE

Three (3) Reports Two (2) assessment re- Achieved
No variance
on
International ports
Two (2) reports were develconventions, coveoped, namely, SADC protocol
nants and charters
and the African Protocol

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

1. To conduct annual reviews and Number of asreaudits of state compliance with sessments
obligations under the conven- ports on regiontions covenants and charters and al protocols and
to report on a regular basis to charters
Parliament and the Office of the Number of reSpeaker of Parliament
ports on Africa

SUB-STRATEGIES

Planned Outcome: Continuous improvements in the legislation policies and practices to advance gender equality (50/50)

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 3: To monitor state compliance with regional and international conventions, covenants and charters which
have been acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the objects of the Commission
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ANNUAL TARGET
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Approved delegation of Achieved
No variance
authority
Delegation
document has been finalised

Hundred precent (100%) Achieved
No variance
of identified policies re- Policies have been
viewed as per Implemen- reviewed and aptation plan
proved

Review the delegation New indicator
of authority between
the Office of the Chair
and the CEO as directed by the CGE Act and
align to the new business model

Annual review and/or Approved policies
development of all applicable policies

VARIANCE

1. To maintain optimal governance
and
oversight
structures and policies between Commissioners and the
Secretariat.

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE INDI- BASELINE
CATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES

No corrective action

No corrective action

CORRECTIVE ACTION

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 4: To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender equality.
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PERFORMANCE INDI- BASELINE
CATOR

ANNUAL TARGET

Annual Report 2015-2016

ment strategy so
that it promotes
effective efficient
and economic utilisation of resources
as well as accountability
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One review report on Not achieved
CGE’s work since its inception (20 year review)
Spending within budget:
Funded APP cost controls and sound financial
position

Report on achieve- New indicator
ments and failures
since its inception (20
year review)

Efficient management
of resources towards
an effective service delivery

Review the CGE busi- New indicator
ness model

No corrective action

CORRECTIVE ACTION

Revised business model Achieved
No variance
approved
Business model was
reviewed and approved

No corrective action

No corrective action

RFQ was sent out, the Services of the review
cost was too high.
to be procured in the
first quarter of the
new financial year

Achieved
No variance
APP has been costed
and
spending
is
taking
place
accordingly

Approved management
strategy and its implementation based on delegation of authority and
revised polices

2014/2015 Budget
where
deviation
does not exceed five
percent (5%) of plan

VARIANCE

Achieved
No variance
Financial
Management strategy and
policy has approved

It will be based on
the outcome of the
AGSA audit that is
underway

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

Approved
financial Existing (2012/2013)
management strategy policies and procebased on delegation of dures
authority and revised
and approved policies
and procedures.

2. To maintain the Clean audit report from 2012/13 audit re- Clean audit report
port
financial manage- the AGSA

SUB-STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 4: To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender equality.
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Redefine and link to ICT
business applications to
CGE revised business
model

Partially achieved
SAGE VIP has been
updated and implemented

Legal case management
and the
internal audit software
could
not be purchased
due
to
budgetary
constraints

Consideration
for
purchasing the case
management
and
internal audit software to be concluded in the first quarter
of the new financial
year.

No corrective action

No variance
Implementation of Cloud Achieved
service
Cloud services have
been implemented
and are operational
New indicator

No corrective action

CORRECTIVE ACTION

Develop and design ICT policy and strat- Standardised
opera- Achieved
No variance
operational standards egy
tional model and proce- Standardised operfor ICT environment
dures
ational model and
procedure have been
drafted and finalised

VARIANCE

No corrective action

A percentage (%) of New indicator
resolutions to reported
IT incidents

3. To develop and
maintain an IT infrastructure
that
supports and promotes the organisational objectives
of the CGE

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

Eighty percent (80%) of Achieved
No variance
registered queries
All IT incidents received have been
attended to and resolved

PERFORMANCE INDI- BASELINE
CATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 4: To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender equality.
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PERFORMANCE INDI- BASELINE
CATOR

ANNUAL TARGET

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

VARIANCE

Annual Report 2015-2016

and practices

Achieved
No variance
EAP was implemented and the report was
drafted and finalised

No corrective action

No corrective action

Achieved
No variance
Compliance report was
drafted and finalised

Implementation of the
culture audit to be finalised in the first quarter of
the new financial year

No corrective action

No corrective action

No corrective action

Achieved
No variance
HR awareness was
conducted with staff
members

Action plan was develImplementation plan to Partially achieved
change culture
Culture audit was oped, The implementaconducted.
tion was delayed to due
to low response rate

Conduct annual staff HR Awareness pro- One (1) awareness proawareness workshops gramme
gramme for each office
on HR policies and
and/or job family
changes in basic conditions of employment
Compliance report

Organisational culture New indicator
audit

Programme EAP report
Maintain and report on EAP
the implementation of an Composite report
organisation wide Employee Assistance Programme (EAP)

Fully automated PMDS Achieved
No variance
system
The PDMS system has
been fully automated

Maintain PMDS system Manual system
and ensure that APP is
translated into individual
performance measures

Achieved
No variance
The VIP system has
been fully automated

Fully automated system

Automation of work- New indicator
place skills plan and
employment
equity
modules in VIP Payroll

No corrective action

CORRECTIVE ACTION

PERFORMANCE REPORT 1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

No variance
4. To develop and Develop training annu- One (1) training plan One (1) training plan im- Achieved
plemented
Training plan was deimplemented
implement
com- al training report
veloped and impleprehensive HR polmented
icies
procedures

SUB-STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 4: To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender equality.
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No corrective action

No variance
Media releases linked to Twelve (12) media Four (4) media monitor- Achieved
For our monitoring reprogrammed work of CGE releases on pro- ing reports
grammed work
ports were produced

5. Review the communications strategy and policy that
promotes and enhances a positive
public image of the
CGE

No corrective action

No corrective action

No corrective action

Fact sheets for all focal Achieved
No variance
areas of the CGE
Fact sheets were produced for interviews
that were conducted.

No variance
Manage media and Two (2) key national Functional media and com- Achieved
Partnership
with
communication part- partnerships for all munication partnerships
SABC and NEMISA
nerships
CGE programmes
were concluded
No variance
Four (4) comprehensive Achieved
communication campaigns Four (4 media campaigns were held
One (1) complete stake- Achieved
No variance
holder database
One stakeholder database was finalised
Approved
branding Achieved
No variance
strategy and plan
Branding
strategy
and plan was developed and approved

Development of fact New indicator
sheets for all CGE programmes

Manage communica- New indicator
tion campaigns

Lead a process to de- Existing database
velop and maintain a
national and provincial
stakeholder database.

Review branding strate- New indicator
gy in line with the CGE
Corporate Identity Manual

No corrective action

No corrective action

No corrective action

Twelve (12) Opinion Achieved
pieces annually
Fifteen (15) opinion
pieces were published

Opinion pieces linked New Indicator
to programmed work
of the CGE

No variance
No corrective action
The target was exceeded because there was
a need to respond to
emerging issues

CORRECTIVE ACTION

No variance
To ensure a thorough Communications and Review and develop a Achieved
three-year communication Communications strategy
review of communica- media audit
tion strategy
strategy
was reviewed and updated

VARIANCE

5. Review the communications strategy and policy that
promotes and enhances a positive
public image of the
CGE

ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE INDI- BASELINE
CATOR

SUB-STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE NO. 4: To build an effective efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender equality.
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CORPORATE SUPPORT

SERVICES
12.1.
12.1.1

12

Information technology (IT)
Overview
The IT unit of the CGE undertook an IT infrastructure upgrade, which
proved to be a mammoth task for those involved in the process. During
the IT infrastructure project roll-out great lessons were learned, especially
at a point where the installation process took place. This was indeed a new
path for driving CGE business through ICT. The changeover included data
migration on Microsoft office 365 cloud environment, virtualisation as well
as: Network (LAN and WAN) equipment implementation, server equipment
implementation, desktop and laptop implementation, VPN / internet access
implementation and collaboration service implementation. The success
and realisation of the IT infrastructure project rested on the ITC committee
which is an oversight pillar on governance matters, and management
project committee, which was established to oversee all project activities,
monitoring progress, and managing and reporting risks and deviations.
This process was also informed by the change management strategy which
aimed at creating a fit between IT and human interface during the stages of
the project.

12.1.2

IT INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT
Desktop and laptop environment
The CGE procured new desktops and laptops to replace the old and
unsupported workstations that are out of warranty and maintenance
support. All replaced workstations were decommissioned after the user’s
confirmation and receipt of new workstations in line with asset management.
We have also tested the ease of use, provided onsite training to ensure
that users can navigate Windows 10 environment with ease. We have also
branded all laptops with the Commission’s logo and corporate colours to
promote the Commission’s image.
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Server environment
All servers are operating properly and optimally through a well-maintained
separate rack mounted uninterrupted power supply unit (UPs) powering
and safeguarding all critical systems from power failures, spikes and power
surges. We have in addition coupled the maintenance plans and servicing
of UPs through a service provider to ensure that they are regularly serviced,
tested and maintained to ensure maximum life span, as well as to comply
with the auditor general’s recommendations and schedule. These reports
are made available every quarter to ensure that maintenance is thoroughly
executed and any defects are reported under warranty.
LAN (LAN AREA NETWORK)
All LAN reticulation services were performed internally and provincial
switches have been distributed to all provinces and old switches replaced.
Network points were also tested at all offices to ensure uninterrupted
network connectivity to the core environment.
WAN (WIDE AREA NETWORK)
A new WAN connectivity has been rolled out across all CGE offices, in
partnership with Vox telecoms service provider. The service runs on dual
technology providing ADSL technology as a primary service with a built in
3G technology for fail over service. The network diagram depicted on the
picture below shows the structure of the CGE WAN.
Figure 3
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Collaboration service
The following are the activities that are undertaken in the implementation
of the collaboration services which includes the Cloud- based exchange
service and Office 365.
- Design & implementation roadmap
- Implement services (preparation): Exchange Server Migration, Outlook
Profile Adjustments, Office 365 License Activation and Office Pro
Plus Applications
The collaboration service roll-out plan executed successfully for MS Office 365
migration and implementation. The migration process completed successfully
without any failures or loss of information, all mailboxes are running on Microsoft
office 365 Cloud service with a total of 100 licences procured.
Website
The website re-design project and development process was undertaken
by IT and Communications, which aims to have a cleaner site, with a new
look and feel, layout and design, colour scheme and branding.
There are new developments on:
1. Archive section – selection of relevant information from old CGE site
2. Gallery section – Images of CGE event functions
3. Success stories – highlight of CGE success stories.

12.2.

Communications

Re-organisation of communication strategy
In previous financial years, the communications unit of the CGE had utilised a strategy
that that made prescriptions on media and communication partnerships, with key
consideration on extending the reach of audiences to far-flung areas through community
radio stations, as well as ensuring that the partnerships focused on producing content
that is designed to reflect the mandate of the CGE.
The strategy referred to had been in place for the past three financial years. In the
2014/2015 financial year, the communications unit undertook a process to audit the
performance as well as the tools used to communicate to the broader public using a
variety of media vehicles. The media and communications audit undertaken showed
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an increase in the coverage of CGE’s programmes compared to the previous years.
The findings also presented opportunities on digital media coverage through various
forms of social media. It transpired that more news information on CGE work needs to
be decentralised to other provinces in the regular coverage of CGE work.
The findings and process outlined in the previous paragraph culminated in the review
process of the communications and media strategy of the institution. The reviewed
strategy highlights new opportunities of tapping into the communities through ICTs,
including digital media. New partners for communication programmes are also identified
for future working relations as a means to increase the spread of media stakeholders who
have a keen interest in making a contribution to content on gender equality.
Human rights campaign
Following the successful coverage of the campaign for human rights in the previous
financial year, the same campaign featured in the 2014/2015 financial year. This
campaign was undertaken in partnership with SABC Education and the SABC
Foundation. The campaign aimed at educating the public about gender rights, with
the Equality Act as a reference point. The campaign consisted of radio interviews and
public service announcements which were broadcast in vernacular languages using
the SABC’s Public Service radio stations.
Media and communication partnerships
As already mentioned, all media and communication campaigns of the CGE were undertaken
through partnerships with stakeholders, including broadcasters, as well as content and
production partners.
Broadcast partners
-

SABC

The SABC through SABC Education and its Foundation were a conduit to several channels
for broadcasting purposes. The national broadcaster has been a carrier of content that
was purpose-built for gender- related matters throughout the financial year.
-

NCRF

The National Community Forum (NCRF) is a member institution of community
broadcasters who entered into a partnership with the CGE on behalf of its members,
who are based in different provinces across the country. It was through the NCRF
that the CGE was able to reach communities across the country in various languages
through community radio stations.
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-

Association of Community Television

The Association of Community Television (ACT) is a newly established entity which promotes
the interests of community television stations in South Africa. The CGE collaborated with
the Association during the 16 Days campaign (see the paragraphs below).
Production partner
-

Nemisa

The National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa (Nemisa) is a public entity housed
under the Department of Telecommunication. The entity is a production partner that
makes a contribution to the communication campaigns of the CGE for radio and television.
Nemisa has contributed to the creative direction as well as technical aspects of radio and
television production.
CGE outdoor branding campaign
The CGE, through a collaboration with the private sector, piloted an outdoor campaign
project in the Gauteng province as the first leg. This project was a social responsibility
project, hence the involvement of the private sector. Through the project, the CGE used
a number of public spaces for public messages on gender equality. These messages
were intended to educate the public on the CGE mandate, as well as the means to
obtain assistance for members of the public who may have gender-related queries or
to report gender abuse and discrimination. These messages were painted in outdoor
spaces with permission from the City of Johannesburg. The painting as well as the
artist fees were sponsored by Versus Paints. It is thus envisioned that this project will be
rolled out to other provinces in the next financial year.
Women’s Month campaign
This campaign was carried out by advertising, with the SABC Foundation as a partner.
Throughout the month of August, all SABC radio stations ran the advertising campaign
with messages on women’s empowerment.
16 Days of Activism campaign
The 16 Days of Activism campaign was undertaken through community media. Community
television stations, through ACT, broadcast a three-part documentary series which was produced
by the CGE in collaboration with Nemisa. This series contained information to educate the
public about various institutions that are established to assist victims of gender abuse across
public service institutions, i.e. victim empowerment programmes, the gender desk at SAPS,
NGOs and DSD. This formed part of the awareness campaign during 16 Days of Activism.
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Branding of the organisation
In light of the newly revised strategy on communications as mentioned above, it was
required that the CGE rebrands itself in order to create a top- of-mind awareness
through its brand in all provinces. For this reason, the CGE envisaged re-branding the
institution by enhancing the existing branding and to also brand offices that did not
have any branding previously.
Media relations
The media relations function of the CGE is located within the office of the chairperson and it plays
a critical role in various forms of liaison with the media on topical issues that are gender related.
The media relations role is responsible for current affairs issues in an effort to be
responsive to gender issues as per media and public demand. The function therefore
taps into recent issues that need the public’s attention but, more importantly, to also
shape opinions, views and discourse on gender issues in the South African context.
Press releases and Interviews
Table 12

Press
Releases

Television
Interviews

Newspaper
Interviews

23

62

48

Community
Media
Interviews
51

Mainstream
Media
Interviews
214

Overall
Interviews
375

Listenership – National Radio Stations
Table 13

RADIO STATION

AVERAGE DAY LISTENERSHIP

Umhlobo Wenene

2.793 Million

Lesedi

2.107 Million

Metro

1.955 Million

Motsweding

1.605 Million

Thobela

1.535 Million

RSG

1.073 Million

Ukhozi FM

3.651 Million

East Coast Radio

923 Thousand

5FM

888 Thousand

Ikwekwezi FM

881 Thousand

Jacaranda

879 Thousand

Gagasi 99.5

836 Thousand

Ligwalagwala

621 Thousand

Munghana Lonene FM

926 Thousand

Capricorn FM

711 Thousand

94.7

671 Thousand

Radio 702

979 Thousand

94 94
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Readership
Table 14

NEWSPAPER TITLE
Daily Sun

READERSHIP PER DAY
5 Million

Sunday Times

3.4 Million

City Press

1.8 Million

Rapport

1.3 Million

Sowetan
Illanga
Isoleswe
The Star
Beeld

1.6 Million
59 Thousand
867 Thousand
1 Million
467 Thousand

Daily News

1,5 Million

Die Burger

1.4 Million

The Citizen

13 Thousand

Mail & Guardian

13 Thousand

New Age

13 Thousand

The Cape Argus

90 Thousand

The Times

1.100 Million
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Opinion pieces
Table 15
ARTICLE

MEDIA

On the female body...

The New Age

Does South Africa need Women’s Month?

The New Age

Moving Women Forward

The New Age

A reflection on The Status of Women in the South African Economy report

The New Age

Gender Equality policies should be a living document says CGE

UL Witness

Gender Equality issues linked to youth development

The New Age

Oversight visit by the Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency

The New Age

Does South Africa need Women’s Month?

The New Age

Gender Equality issues linked to youth development

The New Age

Persecute and punish perpetrators of forced marriages
Oversight visit by the Portfolio Committee on Women in the Presidency
Focus on sexual wellness as Men’s day is observed
Women must engage men on reproductive health issues
For the sake of our kids’ future, ANA should be implemented

Sowetan
The New Age
Cape Times
The New Age
Sowetan

Rethinking Customary Marriages Act is about male gratification

The New Age

Son preference has economic effects

The New Age

Meyiwa and young black males’ vulnerability to violent death

Sowetan

Spare the rod and spoil the child

Sowetan

Gender Equality matters have come a full circle

The Star

Legend of women’s football hailed after illustrious career
Gender issues MoU signed
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12.3.		

Human Resources Management Report - 31 March 2016

Personnel costs by salary band
Table 16

SALARY BAND

NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

SUM OF
TOTAL

PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL
PERSONNEL

AVERAGE
PERSONNEL
COST PER
EMPLOYEE
R

R
Skilled (Level 3 - 5)

9

1 763 144

4%

195 905

Highly Skilled (Level 6 - 8)

22

6 585 130

14%

299 324

Highly Skilled Supervision (Level 9 12)

42

25 135 544

52%

598 465

Senior Management (Level 13 - 15)

6

6 264 529

13%

1 044 088

Commissioners

11

8 243 696

17%

749 427

TOTAL PERMANENT

90

47 992 044

99%

533 245

Temporary and Internships

12

726 175

1%

60 515

102

48 718 219

100%

477 630

GRAND TOTAL

Salaries, overtime, home-owners’ allowances and medical assistance by programme
Table 17

SALARY BAND
Administration

HOME
OWNERS
R

LEAVE
PAYOUT
R

39 636

CEO’s office

20 192

OVERTIME

SALARIES

R

R

11 074

10 053 826

MEDICAL
ASSISTANCE
R

GRAND
TOTAL
R

91 824

10 216 553

13 212

321 248

1 604 270

8 448

1 947 178

134 726

25 545

29 962

8 952 690

29 136

9 172 059

Financial
Management

39 636

240 915

178 509

3 962 697

22 950

4 444 707

Human Resources

13 212

21 671

6 571

1 418 098

15 606

1 475 158

Information &
communication

26 424

14 876

3 067 998

22 032

3 131 330

Commissioners
Office

Internal Audit/
monitoring &
evaluation

86 130

Legal services

53 949

72 947

952 000
2 232

Parliamentary
liaison & legislation

84 184

915 057

Public education &
information

39 636

Research & policy
program

26 424

GRAND TOTAL

6 078 798

1 038 130

386 855
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225 584

1 014 232

6 292 110
915 057

5 745

4 468 458

27 540

4 766 963

64 082

5 179 271

49 196

5 318 974

313 051

46 653 165

350 916

48 718 219
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Performance-related rewards
Table 18

SALARY BAND

COUNT OF EMPLOYEE

SUM OF EMPLOYEE AMOUNT
R

Commissioners

-

Middle Management

28

926 554

Senior Management

6

368 758

Staff

31

404 688

GRAND TOTAL

65

1 700 000

Foreign workers
Table 19

COUNTRY OF ORIGIN

NUMBER

Lesotho

1

Zimbabwe

1

Democratic Republic of Congo

1

TOTAL

3

Sick leave
Table 20

SALARY BAND

NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

TOTAL
DAYS
TAKEN

% DAYS WITH
MEDICAL CERTIFICATION

Skilled (Level 3
-5)

9

62

90%

Highly Skilled (6
- 8)

22

89

Highly Skilled
Supervision (9 12)

42
6

Senior
Management ( 13
- 15)

NUMBER
AVERAGE
OF EMCOST PER
PLOYES
EMPLOYEE
USING SICK PER DAY
LEAVE
R

AVERAGE
DAYS PER
EMPLOYEE

5

753

12,4

79%

16

1 151

5,6

211

82%

23

2 301

9,2

6

83%

2

4 015

3,0

Commissioners

11

0

0%

0

2 882

-

TOTAL
PERMANENT

90

368

82%

46

2 051

8,0

12

4

0%

1

233

4,0

102

372

82%

47

1 837

7,9

Temporary and
Internships
TOTAL

98 98
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Annual leave
Table 21

SALARY BAND

Skilled (Level 3 - 5)

NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES WHO
HAVE TAKEN LEAVE

TOTAL DAYS
TAKEN

AVERAGE PER
EMPLOYEE

9

217

24,1

Highly Skilled (Level 6 - 8)

23

548

23,8

Highly Skilled Supervision (Level 9 - 12)

49

957

19,5

6

123

20,5

Senior Management (Level 13 - 15)
Commissioners
TOTAL PERMANENT

Temporary and Internships

GRAND TOTAL

7

90

12,9

94

1935

20,6

100

1980

19,8

NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES PAID
OUT

TOTAL AMOUNT
PAID OUT

6

45

7,5

Leave payout
Table 22

REASON

Termination of service
End of contracts
TOTAL

R

AVERAGE
PAY-OUT PER
EMPLOYEE
R

21

310 959

14 808

3

703 273

234 424

24

1 014 232

42 260

Employment changes
Table 23

TERMINATION TYPE

NUMBER

% TOTAL

Death

1

5%

Resignation

10

48%

Expiry of contract

8

38%

Dismissal - Operational changes

-

0%

Dismissal - misconduct

1

5%

Dismissal - inefficiency

-

0%

Discharge due to illness

-

0%

Retirement

1

5%

Transfers to other public service departments

-

0%

21

100%
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Employment and vacancies by programme as at 31 March 2016.
Table 24

PROGRAMME

Commissioners

NUMBER OF NUMBER OF
VACANCIES
POSTS

1

12

NUMBER
OF POSTS
FILLED

VACANCY
RATE

11

8%

NUMBER OF
POSTS FILLED
ADDITIONAL
TO THE
ESTABLISHMENT
0

Human Resources

2

4

2

50%

0

IT/C

0

5

5

0%

0

Legal - National

1

4

3

25%

0

Research - National

4

12

8

33%

0

Education - National

0

3

3

0%

0

Provincial Co-ordinators

1

9

8

11%

0

Provinces - Legal

2

9

7

22%

0

Provinces - Education

1

9

8

11%

0

Provinces Administrators

0

9

9

0%

0

Provinces - Office
Assistants

1

9

8

11%

0

Finance

0

9

9

0%

0

Parliament

0

2

2

0%

0

PA/Admin - National

1

4

3

25%

0

Driver - National

0

1

1

0%

0

Office Assistant National

0

1

1

0%

0

Internal Audit

0

2

2

0%

0

CEO’s office

0

1

1

0%

0

TOTAL PERMANENT

14

105

91

13%

0

OVERALL TOTAL

14

116

102

12%

0

Temporary & Internships

100 100

0

11

11

0%

0
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Recruitment
Table 25
OCCUPATIONMALE
AL BANDS
AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL

Commissioners

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professionally
qualified

2

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

5

Skilled,
technical and
academically qualified
workers

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

Semi-skilled
and discretionally decision
making

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled and
defined decision making

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

Employees
with disabilities

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Trainees &
Internships

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

3

TOTAL

3

0

0

0

8

0

0

0

11

2

Promotions
Table 26
OCCUPATIONMALE
FEMALE
AL BANDS
AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

TOTAL

Commissioners

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professionally
qualified

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Skilled, technical and academically qualified workers

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

Semi-skilled
and discretionally decision
making

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled and
defined decision making

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Employees with
disabilities

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Trainees &
Internships

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

2
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Terminations
Table 27

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS

MALE

FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

TOTAL
0

Commissioners

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professionally
qualified

3

0

0

0

2

0

1

0

6

Skilled, technical and academically qualified
workers

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Semi-skilled and
discretionally
decision making

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

2

Unskilled and
defined decision making

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

Employees with
disabilities

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Trainees & Internships

1

0

0

0

7

1

0

0

9

TOTAL

6

0

0

0

13

1

1

0

21

3

Disciplinary matters
Table 28

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS

MALE

FEMALE

TOTAL

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Skilled,
technical and
academically
qualified workers

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

Semi-skilled and
discretionally
decision making

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

TOTAL

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2
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Skills Development
Table 29

OCCUPATIONAL BANDS

MALE

FEMALE

TOTAL

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE
0

Commissioners

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior Management

2

0

0

0

1

1

0

1

Professionally
qualified

14

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

18

Skilled,
technical and
academically
qualified workers

6

0

0

0

10

1

1

1

19

Semi-skilled
and discretionally decision
making

4

0

0

0

16

2

0

0

22

Unskilled and
defined decision making

0

0

0

0

9

0

0

Employees with
disabilities

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Trainees &
Internships

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

26

0

0

0

40

4

1

2

73

TOTAL
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT

COMMITTEE
13.1		

13

Audit Committee Report

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
13.1.1.

Audit Committee members and attendance

The Audit Committee for the year under review comprised three external
members and one internal member. The members of the Audit Committee
are listed hereunder. The Audit Committee is required to meet at least four
times a year according to its approved terms of reference (TOR). During the
current year the committee held six (6) meetings.
Table 30
NAME OF MEMBER

DESIGNATION

NUMBER OF MEETINGS
ATTENDED

Chairperson (External)

Six (6)

Mr. Malindi Godfrey Nthakheni

Member (External)

Six (6)

Ms. Refilwe Mocwaledi*

Member (External)

Two (2)

Commissioner Nondumiso
Maphazi

Member (Internal)

Four (4)

Mr. Velile Kweyama

* Ms. Refilwe Mocwaledi was appointed on the 1st of August 2015.

13.1.2.

13.1.3.

Audit committee responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference
in line with the requirements of Sections 38 (1) (a) and 77 of the Public
Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999 and Treasury Regulation 3.1. We
report that the affairs of the Committee were conducted in compliance
with the Terms of Reference referred to above.
Effectiveness of internal control

The Commission has designed a system of internal control to provide costeffective assurance that its goals will be achieved economically, effectively
and efficiently.
In line with the PFMA, the International Standards for the Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors and
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the requirements of the King III Report on Corporate Governance, Internal
Audit provided the Audit Committee and management with assurance as
to whether internal controls are appropriate and effective.
The system of internal control was not entirely effective during the year
under review. Several deficiencies in the system of internal control were
reported by Internal Audit and the Auditor General of South Africa. In
certain areas, the matters reported previously have been addressed.
Despite this, nothing significant and/or material has been brought to
our attention to indicate a total breakdown in the functioning of these
controls until 31 March 2016.
Accordingly, with the exception of the reported deficiencies and deviations,
we can report that the system of internal control over financial reporting
for the period under review was adequate, effective and efficient.
13.1.4.

Internal Audit

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit quarterly reports
to ensure that internal audit activities were conducted in terms of the
approved risk based annual and three-year rolling plan. The Audit
Committee registered its concerns with Management regarding the
adequacy of resources within the Internal Audit function. Management
appointed additional internal auditors at entry level to augment existing
capacity to ensure that plans are implemented as approved.
Management has further committed to consider other sourcing
arrangements to ensure that the work of Internal Audit complies with the
requirements of the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Audit.

13.1.5.

Risk Management

Management is responsible for proactively identifying, evaluating,
managing and monitoring all significant risks faced by the Commission.
The Commission has developed a comprehensive risk management
policy with a view to safeguarding its staff, assets, corporate credibility
and reputation.During the period under review the Audit Committee
has made various recommendations to management regarding areas
of improvement in the management of the risk management processes.
Various improvements have been seen during the year under review in the
identification, monitoring and management of risk facing the Commission.
13.1.5.1.
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In-Year Management and Quarterly Report

The Audit Committee has reviewed the content and quality
of the quarterly financial and performance reports prepared
and issued by the Commission during the year under review,
in compliance with the statutory reporting framework. The
Committee has noted continuous improvement in the quality
of quarterly financial and performance reports submitted by
management for review over time.
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13.1.5.2.

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
financial statements for the 2015/16 financial year with
management. This process included a review of the
accounting policies and practices, and any changes thereto.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
unaudited performance information for the 2015/16 financial
year with management.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
Commission’s compliance with legal and regulatory
provisions for the 2015/16 financial year with management.

13.1.5.3.

13.1.6.

Auditor General’s Report

The Committee has reviewed the Commission’s
implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous
year. We have noted some issues that have identified by
the Auditor General in the previous year have not been
addressed by the end of the financial year for various
reasons which management have stated. Management has
made further commitment to address these few issues as the
Committee expressed concern over this.

Appreciation

We wish to express our appreciation to the Commission officials, Plenary,
the Chairperson of the Commission and the office of the Auditor General
for the support they have provided during the course of the year.

_____________________
Velile Kweyama
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
29 July 2016
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

OVERVIEW

14

14.1 Financial Performance
14.1.1 Overview
The financial spending activities for this reporting period were fundamentally influenced
by the constrained resource allocation following the budgetary reductions proclaimed
by the Minister of Finance during the Medium Term Budget Policy Statement of 2014.
To this end, the baseline budget of the Commission was scaled downward by R3, 1
million, resulting a stagnant annual allocation at R67,7 million; in comparison to the
preceding financial year. In real terms, the Commission operated with a materially
eroded baseline compounded by the effective inflationary pressure consequent upon
the cost of living adjustment on staff salaries in the main.
For the period to 31 March 2016, revenue recorded were R73, 6 million, favourably
comparing to the budget allocation of R67,7 million. Total revenue was marginally
down from R74,7 million recorded in prior period. Correspondingly, total expenditure
incurred in 2015/2016 period was less at R71,5 million than the R73,7 recorded in the
previous financial year. For the reporting period a R2,1 million net surplus was recorded
compared to R968,067 for 2014/2015 period.

14.1.2 Revenue and Income
The main source of revenue for the Commission is a government grant from National
Government, supplemented by income from sundry sources and donor partners. For
the period under review, government was composed of the ordinary allocation of
R67, 7 million (2014/2015; R67, 2 million). The allocation amounts were augmented
by conditional grants from National Treasury to a combined total of R8,5 million for
the two financial years. This conditional grant was recognised systematically over two
years as the attached conditions were being fulfilled. The grant conditions were that
the money should be spent on the acquisition of ICT infrastructure and the renewal
of the motor vehicle fleet for the Commission. The fleet and a small portion of ICT
infrastructure were accordingly purchased in 2014/2015 period for R4, 8 million. This
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portion of the grant was thus recognised as income and the remainder deferred to
the 2015/2016 period where R3,7 million was accordingly recorded following the
successful completion of the ICT infrastructure project. For the period therefore, total
grant income from National Government amounted to R71, 4 million compared to R72
million in 2014/2015 period.
Furthermore, revenue from other sources for R2,2 million (2014/2015; R2,7 million) was
made out by donations and interest income in the main. Of this, donations accounts
for around 70% of the total at R1, 8 million in 2014/2015 and R1,5 million in the current
period. Interest income recorded for the current year was R578, 795 or 24% lower than
R768, 854 earned in the previous financial year. This is mainly as a result of the relatively
lower cash balances held in the bank due to the investment in the afore-mentioned
projects over the reporting period, respectively.

14.1.3 Analysis of Spending Activities
14.1.3.1. Expenditure by economic classification and geography
Table 31
ECONOMIC
CLASSIFICATION/LOCATION

COMMISSIONERS:
GOVERNANCE
& SUPPORT
R

Compensation of
Employees
Head Office

CORPORATE
SUPPORT
SERVICES
R

CURRENT
CURRENT
PERIOD ACTU- PERIOD
ALS
ACTUALS
R
R
9 225 625

10 185 629

9 225 625

10 185 629

Provincial Office
Depreciation &
Amortisation

Head Office

R

29 601 494 48 718 219

TOTAL
ANNUAL
BUDGET

R

TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD
ACTUALS

R

46 714 500

46 554 852

11 618 831

30 740 548

28 123 500

27 972 081

17 982 663

17 982 663

18 591 000

18 582 820

1 629 382

282 600

937 342

1 631 063

1 629 382

282 600

937 342

2 142 417

8 707 458

9 942 198 20 792 073

20 691 900

26 153 386

11 368 042

20 524 149

2 142 417

8 707 458

Provincial Office
GRAND TOTAL

CURRENT
PERIOD
ACTUALS
R

1 631 063

Head Office

Goods & Services

SERVICE
TOTAL
DELIVERY CURRENT
PROGRAM PERIOD
ACTUALS
R

5 903 766

16 753 641

15 597 946

20 646 907

4 038 432

4 038 432

5 093 954

5 506 479

39 543 692 71 435 884

67 689 000

73 645 580

Total spending incurred in the current period was R71, 4 million from
R73,7 million in the previous period. The comparative under-expenditure
is attributable to a once-off spending in the previous period on a Gender
Summit and efficiency gains resulting from cost containment efforts
implemented in the current period. The expenditure for 2015/2016
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period was R3,7 million or 6% above the annual allocation of R67, 7
million from National Treasury. The additional expenditure was however
funded from donor contributions, received in the main in-kind from the
South African Broadcast Corporation (The SABC).
For the reporting period, R49 million was spent on Compensation of
Employees (COE) against an annual budget of R46, 7 million set aside
from the beginning of the financial year. This unfavourable variance
was primarily as a result of the annual salary increase which was settled
a higher rate of 7% than was originally anticipated at around 5%. The
increase in COE in comparison to the figures recorded for the previous
period was also 5%. In the final analysis, the perennial above inflation rise
in COE effectively puts a material strain on the baseline budget for the
Commission in real terms. In contrast, spending on goods and services,
positively impacted upon by cost savings were within the budget,
realising at R20, 8 million whilst budget was set at R20, 7 million. There
has also been a significant comparative drop in spending on goods and
services relative to the figure incurred in the previous financial year.
Although the Commission has presence in all the nine (9) provinces within
the Republic, 70% of expenditure recorded during the year under review
originates from activities carried out from head office. This is mainly
because, apart from head office rendering the administrative support,
there is also significant amount of service delivery and programme
work conducted by functionaries based at head office. The programmes
covers activities such as research, systemic investigations, litigation,
media, Public Education and communication.
Figure 4

Geography and Economic Classification Expenditure for the year to 31 March 2016
30 740 548

17 977 671

17 044 859

4 043 424

COE

G&S
Head Office
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Although the Commission has presence in all the nine (9) provinces
within the Republic, 70% of expenditure recorded during the year under
review originates from activities carried out from head office. This is
mainly because, apart from head office rendering the administrative
support, there is also significant amount of service delivery programme
work conducted by functionaries based at head office. The programmes
covers activities such as research, systemic investigations, litigation,
media, Public Education and communication.
14.1.4.

Table 32

Expenditure by programme and economic classification

COMMISSIONERS:
GOVERNANCE &
ECONOMIC CLASSIFICA- SUPPORT
TION
R
Compensation of Employees

9 225 625

Depreciation & Amortisation
Goods & Services
Grand Total
% of total

CORPORATE
SUPPORT
SERVICES
R

SERVICE
DELIVERY
PROGRAM
R

10 119 689

GRAND
TOTAL

% OF
TOTAL

R

29 601 494

1 629 382

48 718 219

68%

1 629 382

2%

2 142 417

8 775 079

10 170 787

21 088 283

30%

11 368 042

20 524 149

39 543 692

71 435 884

100%

16%

29%

55%

100%

For the 2015/2016, in similar patterns to the prior periods, COE is the
dominant key spending driver in the operations of the Commission since
the Commission generally relies on its human resources to deliver its
legislative mandate to the public and/or Republic as the case may be.
In this period 68% of the incurred expenditure was on COE compared
to 30% on Goods & Services from exchange transactions. Depreciations
and amortisation represented 2% of the total expenditure recorded at
R1, million for the year.
In line with spending prioritisation tactics and strategies of the
Commission, 55% (or R39, 5 million) spent during the current period
was directly linked to the main and core service delivery programme
with a further 16% (R11, 4 million) incurred under the Commissioner
Programme which by and large also fulfils the roles directly prescribed
by the legislative mandate. It is a considered conclusion that over 70% of
the Commission resources are utilised on the core legislated activities as
opposed to programmes that are essentially of administrative nature. The
table below provides a further analysis on the distribution of expenditure
by each unit within the Commission.
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Table 33
ECONOMIC
CLASSIFICATION & UNIT

Compensation of
Employees

COMMISSIONERS:
GOVERNANCE &
SUPPORT
R
CURRENT
PERIOD
ACTUALS
R

9 225 625

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
COMMISSIONERS

CORPORATE
SUPPORT
SERVICES
R

CURRENT
PERIOD
ACTUALS
R

10 119 689

SERVICE
DELIVERY
PROGRAM

CURRENT
PERIOD
ACTUALS
R

29 372 905

9 225 625

EASTERN CAPE
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

TOTAL
ANNUAL
BUDGET

R

R

TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD
ACTUALS

R

2 985 308

COMMUNICATIONS

TOTAL
CURRENT
PERIOD
ACTUALS

R

48 718 219

46 491 500

46 554 852

2 985 308

2 818 200

2 980 668

9 225 625

8 384 100

8 593 467

1 954 476

1 954 476

1 803 700

1 650 549

2 039 360

2 039 360

2 162 800

2 131 882

4 482 369

3 972 500

4 150 504

4 482 369

FREE STATE

1 090 882

1 090 882

2 003 500

1 940 607

GAUTENG

2 297 423

2 297 423

2 303 500

2 279 651

HUMAN RESOURCES

1 475 158

1 475 158

1 437 300

1 933 856

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

1 176 854

1 176 854

1 083 500

1 154 980

KWAZULU NATAL

2 070 161

2 070 161

2 125 800

2 090 711

LEGAL

1 737 833

1 737 833

1 639 200

1 508 727

LIMPOPO

2 176 871

2 176 871

1 480 000

1 602 272

MPUMALANGA

1 990 355

1 990 355

2 073 600

1 908 449

NORTH WEST

2 070 213

2 070 213

1 987 700

1 835 764

NORTHERN CAPE

2 183 931

2 183 931

2 066 000

2 145 194

Parliamentary Unit

1 141 409

1 141 409

899 300

PUBLIC EDUCATION & INFORMATION

1 871 001

1 871 001

1 800 200

1 820 409

RESEARCH

4 690 516

4 690 516

4 065 500

4 178 871

WESTERN CAPE

2 058 473

2 058 473

2 385 100

2 648 291

1 629 382

1 629 382

282 600

937 342

1 629 382

1 629 382

282 600

937 342

21 088 283

20 914 900

26 153 386

2 142 417

1 777 300

5 393 381

3 281 247

3 281 247

1 191 700

2 257 008

498 126

498 126

566 810

823 787

Depreciation &
Amortisation
ALL

Goods & Services

2 142 417

COMMISSIONERS

2 142 417

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
COMMUNICATIONS
EASTERN CAPE
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8 775 079

1 680 822

10 170 787

1 680 822

896 250

1 215 801
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Table 33 continued
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

4 125 180

4 125 180

3 833 250

4 598 476

FREE STATE

436 825

436 825

611 130

592 847

GAUTENG

255 903

255 903

585 620

523 886

HUMAN RESOURCES

1 292 464

1 292 464

1 307 546

2 334 116

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

1 676 613

1 676 613

1 458 280

1 773 804

KWAZULU NATAL

241 733

241 733

521 010

462 302

1 181 407

1 181 407

2 737 800

1 085 934

LIMPOPO

495 564

495 564

524 420

506 797

MPUMALANGA

646 889

646 889

641 564

597 043

NORTH WEST

392 218

392 218

490 550

489 406

NORTHERN CAPE

450 408

450 408

471 600

505 610

Parliamentary Unit

335 804

335 804

1 616 800

PUBLIC EDUCATION & INFORMATION

295 682

295 682

106 950

438 006

1 033 223

1 033 223

892 070

1 550 380

625 757

625 757

684 250

1 004 802

39 543 692

71 435 884

67 689 000

73 645 580

LEGAL

RESEARCH
WESTERN CAPE
GRAND TOTAL

11 368 042

20 524 149

14.2 Financial Position
As at reporting date of 31 March 2016, the net asset position reported in the financial
statements remained strong at R7 million. At total assets balance at R16, 1 million on
31 March 2016 compared to R18, 2 million for the previous period, total liabilities in
parallel went down from R13, 4 million (2014/2015) to R9,1 million at the end of the
current year. These figures illustrate relative strength in solvency; from 136% for prior
period to 177% at the end of the 2015/2016 period.
Between the two financial years, there has been an increase in non-current assets; from
R5 million at the end of the 2014/2015 period to around R7,4 million, mainly resulting
from investments made on ICT infrastructure and motor vehicle fleet replenishment.
In the current year, just over R4 million was spent in the acquisition of property, plant
, equipment and intangible assets. The increase from capital spending was partly set
off by the depreciation and amortisation provision recorded at R1,6 million for the
year. There has been a concomitant reduction in cash and cash equivalent balances
due to cash pay-out made in respect of the mentioned investment in fixed assets;
Cash balances were R13,2 million by the end of 2014/2015 period compared to R8, 1
million as of reporting date. Although this impacted negatively on the cash ratio and by
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extension on the current ratio, liquidity position remained viable with a current ratio of
96% (2015/2016) compared to 99% for the previous period.
Between the two financial years, there has been an increase in non-current assets; from R5
million as at the end of the 2014/2015 period to around R7,4 million, mainly resulting from
investments made on ICT infrastructure and motor vehicle fleet replenishment. In the current
year, just over R4 million was spent in the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. The increase from capital spending was partly set off by the depreciation
and amortisation provision which was recorded at R1,6 million for the year. There has been
a concomitant reduction in cash and cash equivalent balances due to cash pay-outs in lieu
of the mentioned investment in fixed assets; Cash balances were R13,2 million by the end of
2014/2015 period compared to R8, 1 million as of reporting date. Although this impacted
negatively on the cash ratio and by extension on the current ratio, liquidity position remained
viable with a current ratio of 96% (2015/2016) compared to 99% for the previous period.

14.3 Administrative activities
In line with the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)and the relevant
regulations as well as all the related prescripts regularly issued by National Treasury, the
Commission has continued with work to ensure full compliance with the laws and regulations.
This included amongst others, the setting up and improvements to systems of internal
controls, to detect and avoid irregular, fruitless & wasteful expenditure as well as the effective
management of Revenues, Expenditure, Assets and Liabilities in line with the provisions
of the PFMA. In this pursuit, the Commission management successfully undertook and
implemented actions planned to resolve or address the weakness which previously reported
in the regularity audit conducted by the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA).

14.4 Risk Management
The Commission recognises that risk management is an integral part to good corporate
governance. To this end, the Commission has established a Risk Management Committee to
monitor the implementation of Risk Management in a systematic and regular manner, ensuring
the Commission achieves its objectives. Risk management also underpins an organisationwide strategic and operational management philosophy in that risk management is integrated
to business activities undertaken at all levels of the organisation; from planning through to
execution as well as oversight and control.
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The Commission’s Risk Management framework governs the manner in which risk is
identified, assessed and treated to mitigate any potential or probable adverse impact to the
performance of the organisation. The responsibility to management risk is assigned to the
Executive Authority, Executive management and all employees of the Commission, ensuring
that risk management is embedded from the strategic level to the day to day activities of
the CGE. The Commissioners and Executive/Senior management oversee the management
of strategic risks and in the same token, the roles cascades to the operational levels in the
delivery of organisational goals .
The Commission follows a structured approach to identify,evaluate,and manage opportunities,
threats and uncertainty affecting the achievement of the organisational objectives. For the
financial period under review, the Commission engaged in a risk identification process
whereupon a Risk Register and mitigating plans of action were devised. The implementation
of these plans is monitored by the audit Committee and other strategic oversight structures
of the Commission.
The table below reflects the risk status of the organisation and the manner in which mitigation
strategies were implemented to avert the potential adverse consequences gainst the
achievement of the objectives of the Commission.
Table 34
RISK CATEGORY

RISK DESCRIPTION

Operational

Inability to attract
, grow and retain
talent

AVERAGE
OF INHERENT RISK
RANKING

16
Operational

MITIGATING
STRATEGIES

RISK ASSESMENT& RATING

Acceptable with
caution

9

Continue to
source talent,
supported by
retention and
succession plans
coupled with skills
development and
training

Acceptable with
caution

9

Automation of
business processes in the improvement stage of the
ICT strategy

Inefficient case
management
system
16
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Table 34 continued
Operational

Vacancies are not
filled timeously
20

Reputational

Strategic

Financial

Inability to apply
and articulate
CGE’s position on
Gender Equality
matters as well as
other recognised
relevant policy
frameworks
Lack effective
management of information resources and knowledge
Management
Inadequate funding for an effective
deliveray of the
mandate

16

25

25

Acceptable with
caution

9

Heightened
recruitemnt drive
to ensure optimal
functioning of the
organisation

Acceptable with
caution

9

Intra-organisational training and
Public awareness
and Education on
matters related
to Gender within
a Constitutional
democracy.

Acceptable with
caution

9

Develop a knowledge management philosophy
to be leveraged
on the ICT technology.

Acceptable with
caution

9

Leverage effort
with like-minded
institutions and
extra-government
funding.

EXPOSURE RATING

ASSESSMENT

ACTION REQUIRED

High- from 12.5 to 25

Unacceptable

Immediate Implementation of
corrective action plans

Medium - from 6 to 12

Acceptable with caution

Implementation of improvement
opportunities and validation of
controls

Low - from 1 to 5

Acceptable

Validation and optimisation of
controls
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Report on the Financial Statements
Introduction
1.		 I have audited the financial statements of the Commission for Gender Equality set

out on pages 123 to 169, which comprise the statement of financial position as

at 31 March 2016, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes
in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget
and actual figures for the year then ended,as well as the notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements
2.		 The accounting officer, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice and the requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999), and for such
internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement ,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3.		 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based

on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement , including the assessment of the risks of
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material misstatement of the financial statements , whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments , the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5.		 I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of the Commission for Gender Equality as at 31 March 2016 and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance

with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA
Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management
Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
7.		In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to

report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined

objectives for selected strategic objectives presented in the annual performance
report, non-compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my

tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading

but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly,
I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
Predetermined objectives
8.		 I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability
of the reported performance information for the following selected strategic
objectives presented in the annual performance report of the constitutional
institution for the year ended 31 March 2016:
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•

Strategic Objective 1: To ensure the creation and implementation of an

enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment of gender
equality on pages 77 to 79

•

Strategic Objective 2: To protect and promote gender equality by engaging
with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise awareness on issues of

gender equality; challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes;

and take action against infringements of gender rights through the
implementation of appropriate redress on pages 80 to 82.
•

Strategic Objective 3: To monitor state compliance with regional and

international conventions, covenants and charters which have been

acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the objects of the
Commission on page 83

9.		I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of
usefulness and reliability.

10.		I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine
whether it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual
reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with

the planned strategic objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether

indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time

bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for
managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

11.		I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine
whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

12.		I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information for the selected strategicobjectives.

Additional matter
13.		Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the

reported performance information for the selected strategic objectives, I draw
attention to the following matter:
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Achievement of planned targets
14.		Refer to the annual performance report on pages 77 to 83 for information on the
achievement of the planned targets for the year.

Compliance with legislation
15.		I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the constitutional institution
had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial
management and other related matters. I did not identify any instances of

material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the
general notice issued in terms of the PAA.
Internal control
16.		I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements

and compliance with legislation. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in
internal control.

29 July 2016
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Annual Financial Statements
Statement of Responsibility and Approval of the Annual Financial Statements

The accounting officer is responsible for monitoring the preparation and the integrity of the
financial statements and related information included in this annual report. In order for the
accounting officer to discharge these responsibilities, as well as those bestowed on it in terms
of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 29 of 1999 and other applicable legislation, it
has developed and maintained a system of internal controls.
The accounting officer acknowledges that management is ultimately responsible for
the system of internal financial controls established by the Commission for Gender
Equality (hereinafter; CGE) and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong
control environment. To enable the accounting officer to meet these responsibilities,
the Commissioners set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error
or loss in a cost effective manner. These standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls
are monitored throughout the CGE and all employees are required to maintain the
highest ethical standards in ensuring the CGE’s mandate is conducted in a manner that,
in all reasonable circumstances, is above reproach. The focus of risk management is on
identifying, assessing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the CGE.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the CGE endeavours to minimize it by
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are
applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. Monitoring of
these controls includes a regular review of their operations by the accounting officer and
independent oversight by an audit committee.
As part of the system of internal control, the internal audit function conducts operational,
financial and specific audits and co‑ordinates audit coverage with the external auditors.
The external auditors are responsible for reporting on the financial statements.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations of such Statements
issued by the Accounting Practices Board. They are based on appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates.
The accounting officer believes that the Commission for Gender Equality will continue to
be a going concern in the foreseeable future due to the availability of funding from the
National Treasury. For this reason, the accounting officer continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.
The accounting officer approved the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 as set out on pages 123 to 169 on 29 July 2016 which were signed on its behalf by

			
Ms Keketso Maema			
Chief Executive Officer			
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
Notes

2016

2015

R

R

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

9

8 110 679

13 237 070

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

10

575 327

35 156

8 686 006

13 272 226

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

11

6 998 498

4 904 424

Intangible assets

11

397 404

66 641

7 395 902

4 971 065

16 081 908

18 243 291

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions

12

2 457 122

3 220 087

Payables from non-exchange transactions

13

3 879 537

7 942 295

Provisions

14

2 752 651

2 235 934

9 089 310

13 398 316

Total liabilities

9 089 310

13 398 316

Net assets

6 992 598

4 844 975

Accumulated surplus

6 992 598

4 844 975

Total Net Assets

6 992 598

4 844 975

NET ASSETS
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Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes

2016

2015

R

R

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

2

71 434 519

72 013 925

Other income

3

2 192 879

2 652 980

73 627 398

74 666 905

Total revenue
Expenses
Operating expenses

4

18 964 444

24 125 399

Personnel Costs

5

48 718 219

46 554 852

Other administrative expenses

6

2 123 527

1 893 332

Finance costs

7

311

134 654

Assets written off

8

43 892

53 259

Depreciation and amortisation

11

1 629 382

937 342

71 479 775

73 698 838

2 147 623

968 067

Total

Surplus for the year
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2016
Notes

Balance at 31 March 2014
Surplus for the year ending 31 March 2015
Balance at 31 March 2015
Surplus for the year ending 31 March 2016
Balance at 31 March 2016

Annual Report 2015-2016

Accumulated
surplus

Total net
assets

R

R

3 876 908

3 876 908

968 067

968 067

4 844 975

4 844 975

2 147 623

2 147 623

6 992 598

6 992 598
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016
Notes

2016

2015

R 68 441 637

R 69 013 199

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from stakeholders
Grants

2

67 689 000

67 235 000

Interest received

3

578 795

764 855

Donor Income

3

102 202

926 628

Sundry income

3

71 640

86 716

(69 477 050)

(70 635 411)

(69 476 739)

(69 277 402)

7

(311)

(1 358 009)

15

(1 035 413)

(1 622 212)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

11

(3 726 279)

(4 426 360)

Purchase of intangible asset

11

(371 830)

(79 355)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment

11

7 131

-

(4 090 978)

(4 505 715)

-

-

(5 126 391)

(6 127 927)

13 237 070

19 364 997

8 110 679

13 237 070

Cash paid to stakeholders
Personnel & Suppliers
Interest paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash flows from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash flows from financing activities
Net (decrease)/ increase in net cash and cash
equivalents
Net cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of year
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year

126 126
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual on the
Financial Performance for the year ended 31 March 2016
Actual

Approved
Budget

Difference:

2016

2016

R

R

Approved
Budget and
Actual
R

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

71 434 519

67 688 000

(3 746 519)

Other income

2 192 879

2 000 000

(192 879)

Total revenue

73 627 398

69 688 000

(3 939 398)

Operating expenses

18 964 444

20 259 886

1 295 442

Personnel Costs

48 718 219

46 491 500

(2 226 719)

2 123 527

672 614

(1 450 913)

311

-

(311)

43 892

-

(43 892)

1 629 382

2 264 000

634 618

71 479 775

69 688 000

(1 791 775)

2 147 623

-

(2 147 623)

Expenses

Other administrative expenses
Finance costs
Assets written off
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Total expenses
Surplus for the year

Note 18.1. overleaf sets out detailed explanations on variances as outlined
herein and must also be read in conjunction with the chapter 14 in the Annual
report of the Commission for the period ending 31 March 2016.
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual figures on
the Financial Position as at 31 March 2016

Notes

ASSETS

Actual

Approved
Budget

2016

2016

R

R

Difference:
Approved
Budget and
Actual

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

9

8 110 679

7 000 000

(1 110 679)

10

575 327

-

(575 327)

8 686 006

7 000 000

(1 686 006)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

11

6 998 498

7 000 000

1 502

Intangible assets

11

397 404

1 000 000

602 596

7 395 902

8 000 000

604 098

16 081 908

15 000 000

(1 081 908)

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions

12

2 457 122

5 500 000

3 042 878

Payables from non-exchange transactions

13

3 879 537

5 000 000

1 120 463

Provisions

14

2 752 651

4 500 000

1 747 349

9 089 310

15 000 000

5 910 690

Total liabilities

9 089 310

15 000 000

5 910 690

Net assets

6 992 598

-

(6 992 598)

Note 18.2. overleaf sets out detailed explanations on variances as outlined herein
and must also be read in conjunction with the chapter 14 in the Annual report of
the Commission for the period ending 31 March 2016.
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Segment Reporting
The Commission operates its affairs through three sub-programmes. The Corporate
Services and Commissioners’ sub-programmes are considered predomately
administrative. The third sub-programme is considered a segment that focuses on
the core service delivery objectives of the Commission. The strategy deployment and
delivery of the services are carried out through service offices in thenine(9) provinces
of the Republic. The Line function departments at head offices,based in Johannesburg
also render services which are directly contributing to the delivery in the main segment
as defined in GRAP18. The segment’s main activities are to roll out the legislative
mandate ranging from Public Eudcation & awareness on gender rights, Research and
Monitoring of gender related policy and practice issues as well as the protection and
advancement of gender equality within the private and public sector.

Head Office

Commissioners:
Governance &
Support
R

Operating
Expenses

11 368 042

2 089 089

Asset written off

Corporate
Support
Services
R

(53 059 357)

7 907 687

Income

53 328

Personnel

9 225 625

Property Plant and equipment

Provincial Office

(73 627 398)

5 444 027

11 368 042

(24 168 718)
15 440 803
43 892
311

(73 627 398)

10 119 689

11 395 234

30 740 548

22 021 095

22 021 095

519 783

519 783

17 977 671

17 977 671

1 629 382

3 523 641

Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

(53 059 357)

8 110 679

39 543 692

575 327

Property, plant and
equipment

3 212 974

Total liabilities

9 089 310
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17 522 597

683 336

Other operating
expenses

Intangible assets

R

867 081

Operating
Expenses

Cash and cash
equivalents

R

311

Other operating
expenses

Grand Total

Total

43 892

Finance cost

Personnel

Service Delivery
Program

397 404

1 603 745

1 629 382
3 523 641

(2 147 623)
8 110 679
575 327

3 785 524

6 998 498
397 404

9 089 310
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Accounting Policies for the period ending 31 March 2016
16. Statement of compliance
These annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), as issued by the Accounting
Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management
Act, (Act No 29 of 1999).

16.1		

Reporting entity

The CGE is an institution established in terms of Chapter Nine of the Constitution Act
(Act No. 108 of 1996) of the Republic of South Africa, and is responsible for
•

The promotion for the respect of gender equality and

•

Protection, development and attainment of gender equality

Its additional mandate is further provided for in the Commission on Gender Equality
Act (Act No. 39 of 1996) as amended.
The primary objective of Chapter Nine institutions, including the CGE, is to strengthen
constitutional democracy.
The core business of the CGE is:•

To promote gender equality and

•

To advise and make recommendations to Parliament and any other legislature with
regard to any laws or proposed legislation that affects gender equality and the
status of women

For the purpose of reporting its activities as amongst others is contemplated in the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, section 181 and the Public Finance
Management Act of 1999 ;
The principal accounting policies, applied in the preparation of these annual financial
statements, are set out below. These accounting policies are consistent with those applied
in the preparation of the prior year annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise.
•

Consideration was made on whether the accounting policy is reasonable, given the
circumstances of the CGE and noted that it is important and reasonable as well.

•

Details of any changes in the accounting policies are provided in the note on
Changes in accounting policies
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16.2		

Basis of preparation

The Annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting
and incorporate the historical cost conventions as the basis of measurement, except
where otherwise indicated.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies
for material transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with
paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.
16.2.2

16.2.3

16.2.4

16.2.5

Functional and presentation currency

These Annual financial statements are presented in South African Rands, which
is the CGE’s functional currency. All financial information presented in South
African Rands has been rounded to the nearest rand, unless otherwise stated.
Offsetting

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where
offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that the
entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
The going concern basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumption

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimated
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised and in any future periods affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements is
given in the following notes:
Trade Receivables

The measurement of receivables is derived after consideration of
the
allowance for doubtful debts. Management makes certain
assumptions regarding the categorisation of debtors into groups with
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similar risk profiles so that the effect of any impairment on a group of
receivables would not differ materially from the impairment that would
have been determined had each debtor been assessed for impairment on
an individual basis. The determination of this allowance is predisposed to
the utilisation of estimates, assumptions and management judgements. In
determining this allowance, the estimates are made about the probability
of recovery of the debtors based on their past payment history and risk
profile.
Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are determined with reference to the
useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives
and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of
the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use,
its current use, expected future use and the entity’s expectations about
the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In
evaluating how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life
and residual value, management considers the impact of technology and
minimum service requirements of the assets.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised over their useful life taking into account
residual values, where appropriate. The useful life of the assets and their
residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a
number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological
innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual
value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the
remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.
Impairment of non-cash generating assets

The CGE assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the CGE estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. In testing for, and determining the
value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on
the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash
flows (in the case of cash-generating assets). For non-cash-generating
assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost,
restoration cost, or service units of the asset, depending on the nature of
the impairment and the availability of information.
Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are
recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial position on a basis
of an estimate reliably estimated by management. Provisions are present
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obligations determined on the probability that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligations.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognised as liabilities
because they are either:
•

Possible obligations, as it has yet to be confirmed whether the CGE
has a present obligation that could lead to an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential; or

•

Present obligations that do not meet the recognition criteria of
a liability either because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.
According to GRAP, the term “contingent” is used for liabilities and assets
that are not recognised because their existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the CGE.

16.3		
		
		

Standards of General Recognised Accounting 		
Practice effective for financial periods 			
commencing on or after 1 April 2016

Table 35
STANDARD

SUMMARY AND IMPACT

EFFECTIVE DATE

GRAP 20 – Related Parties

This standard ensures that the financial Issued by the ASB – June 2011
statements contain disclosures necessary to Effective date - To be determined
draw the attention to the possibility that the by the Minister of Finance
reporting entity’s financial position and surplus/deficit may have been affected by the
existence of related parties and transactions
and outstanding balances from such parties.
The impact on the financial results and disclosure is considered to be minimal.

GRAP 32 – Service conces- The objective of this Standard is to pre- Issued by the ASB – August of 2013
sion arrangements
scribe the accounting for service conces- Effective date - To be determined
sion arrangements by the grantor and a by the Minister of Finance
public sector entity
No significant impact is expected on the financial results
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Table 35 Continued
STANDARD

SUMMARY AND IMPACT

EFFECTIVE DATE

GRAP 105 –Transfer of This standard shall be applied prospec- Issued by the ASB with an effunctions between entities tively to a transaction or event that in- fective date – 1 April 2015
under common control
volves a transfer of functions when the
No impact on CGE
transfer date is on or after the initial
adoption of the Standard.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.
GRAP 106 – Transfer of
functions between entities
not under common control

This standard shall be applied prospec- Issued by the ASB with an eftively to a transaction or event that in- fective date – 1 April 2015
volves a transfer of functions when the
No impact on CGE
acquisition date is on or after the initial
adoption of the Standard.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

GRAP 107 – Mergers

This standard shall be applied prospec- Issued by the ASB with an eftively to a transaction or event that in- fective date – 1 April 2015
volves a merger when the merger date
No impact on CGE
is on or after the initial adoption of the
Standard.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

16.4		
16.4.1

Revenue Recognition
Other Income

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential
during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net
assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest
is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and the
amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest is recognised, in
surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
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16.4.2

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential
received and receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets,
other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future
economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to
be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or
service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the
purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that
future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to
the transferor if not deployed as specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a
binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by
entities external to the reporting entity.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an
asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also
recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect
of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an
asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises
an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are
recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity has complied with any
of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To
the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, a
liability is recognised.
Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of
the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an
asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset
measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also
required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date,
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and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue.
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because a condition is satisfied, the
amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
16.4.3

Transfers

Apart from services in kind, which are not recognised, the constitutional institution
recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet
the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

16.4.4

16.5		

Gifts and donations, including goods and services in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and
revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service
potential will flow to the constitutional institution and the fair value of the
assets can be measured reliably.

Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and
would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure,
incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any
applicable legislation including the Public Finance Management Act.
Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure that has been condoned or will not be recovered
from employees will be included in the Statement of Financial Performance, and where the
expense is recoverable from the employee, the necessary debtor is created.
Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

16.6		
16.6.1

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment comprise of computer equipment, furniture
and fittings, office equipment and motor vehicles and are stated at historical
costs less accumulated depreciation.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
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When parts of item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate components of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated accordingly.
16.6.2

16.6.3

Repairs and maintenance

Maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of
assets nor appreciably prolong their useful lives, are expensed during the
financial year in which they are incurred.
Subsequent expenditures

Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the
asset being replaced and capitalises the new component.
Subsequent expenditure including major spare parts and servicing equipment
qualify as property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

16.6.4

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged against the assets over the useful lives of an asset
from the date the asset is available for use.
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Components of assets
that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful
lives are depreciated separately. The depreciable amount is determined after
taking into account an assets’ residual value, where applicable.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
The assets bought specifically for a project and intended for donation at
the end of the project’s life are depreciated over the life of the contract
as the residual value at that point will be nil.

16.6.5

Useful lives

The following are the estimated useful lives of the different categories of
assets and which are depreciated on the straight-line method over the
following periods:
Computer equipment

5-8 years

Office furniture
Office equipment
Motor vehicle

10 years
5-10 years
5-10 years

On an annual basis, at the beginning of the financial year, management
assesses the useful lives for each class of assets.
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16.6.6

16.6.7

De-recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset
is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service
potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Impairment

The CGE tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible
impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount
of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and
an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.
Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the
carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period that
the impairment is identified. An impairment is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised.
A reversal of the impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

16.7		

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
16.7.1

Initial recognition

The CGE recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position
only when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service
potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or
fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially
recognised at cost.
Where an intangible asset is acquired by the CGE for no or nominal
consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be
equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset
or monetary assets or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets,
the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired
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item’s fair value is not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount
of the asset(s) given up.
Intangible assets consist of computer software. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Purchased computer software and the direct costs associated with the
customisation and installation thereof, are capitalised and amortised over
estimated useful lives of the assets from the date that they are available for use.
16.7.2

Amortisation

Each item is amortised over its useful life once it is available for use.
Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values, and amortisation method are
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

16.7.3

16.7.4

16.8		

Useful lives

Intangible assets are amortised over the following periods, considered to
be their estimated useful lives: Computer software 5 – 9 years.
De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when
there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the
asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible
asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Impairment of non - monetary assets

At each reporting date, the CGE reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense in the statement of
financial performance.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
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had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in the statement
of financial performance.

16.9
16.9.1

Leases
Recognition

Assets subject to operating leases are those wherein, substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the lessee
through the lease and are not recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position. The operating lease expense is recognised over the course of
the lease arrangement.
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date; namely
whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

16.9.2

16.9.3

Measurement

The lease expense recognised for operating leases is charged to the
Statement of Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. To the extent that the straight-lined lease payments
differ from the actual lease payments the difference is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Position as either lease payments in advance
(operating lease asset) or lease payments payable (operating lease liability)
as the case may be. This resulting asset and / or liability is measured as the
undiscounted difference between the straight-line lease payments and
the contractual lease payments.
De-recognition

The operating lease liability is derecognised when the entity’s obligation
to settle the liability is extinguished. The operating lease asset is
derecognised when the entity no longer anticipates economic benefits to
flow from the asset.
Leases that the CGE enters into as a lessee, and where the lessor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset,
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged against revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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16.10

Employee benefits

16.10.1 Defined contribution plan

Contributions made towards the fund are recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period that such
contributions become payable. This contribution expense is measured at
the undiscounted amount of the contribution paid or payable to the fund.
A liability is recognised to the extent that any of the contributions have not
yet been paid. Conversely an asset is recognised to the extent that any
contributions have been paid in advance.

16.10.2 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the CGE is
demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a
formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement
date. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised if the
CGE has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable
that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be
estimated reliably.

16.10.3 Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits encompass all those benefits that become
payable in the short term, i.e. within a financial year or within 12 months
after the financial year. Therefore, short term employee benefits include
remuneration, compensated absences and bonuses.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance as services are rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits,
which are recognised when the specific event occurs. These short term
employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted costs in the period
the employee renders the related service or the specific event occurs.
Short-term employee benefits including annual leave are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under shortterm cash plans if the CGE has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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16.11

Financial instruments

16.11.1 Initial recognition

Financial instruments are recognised initially when CGE becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial instruments or their component part are classified on initial
recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial liabilities are recognised
using trade date accounting.

16.11.2 Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset or a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair
value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
The CGE measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial
recognition using the following categories defined in paragraph .14:
(a) Financial instruments at fair value.
(b) Financial instruments at amortised cost.
(c) Financial instruments at cost.
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an
impairment review.

16.11.2.1

16.11.2.2
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Financial assets

The CGE’s principle financial assets are accounts receivable
and cash and cash equivalents, which are classified as
financial instruments at amortised cost.
Receivable from non-exchange transactions

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and subsequently stated at amortised cost, less
provision for impairment. All receivables are assessed at least
annually for possible impairment. Impairments of receivables
are determined in accordance with the accounting policy for
impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through
the use of an allowance account.
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Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are
identified as irrecoverable. Amounts receivable within 12
months from the reporting date is classified as current.
Interest is charged on overdue accounts.
16.11.2.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.
Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that
are held with registered banking institutions with maturities
of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held
on call with banks.

16.11.2.4

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost,
comprising original debt less principle payments and
amortisations.
The CGE’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.

16.11.2.5

16.11.2.6

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
Payables from non-exchange transactions

Short-term payables from non-exchange transactions are
stated at nominal values. The non-exchange payables
arise from legislative, mainly employee taxes payable to
state agencies and/or contractual agreements, other than
exchanges, entered into willingly by employees of the
Commission.

16.11.2.6.1
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The CGE derecognises a financial asset (or where
applicable part thereof) only when:
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•

The right to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

•

The CGE retains the right to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or

•

The Commission has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either
i.

Has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset or

ii.

Has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same customer on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the surplus or deficit for the year.
16.11.3 Offset of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of financial position only when the CGE has a legally enforceable
right to set off recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

16.11.4 Impairments

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an
impairment review. The CGE assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
For financial assets held at amortised cost:
The entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the entity determines that no objective evidence of impairment
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exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in the collective
assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets’ original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus
or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss shall be reversed either directly or by adjusting an allowance account.
The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that
exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
16.11.5 Risk Management of Financial Assets and Liabilities:

It is the policy of the CGE to disclose information that enables the user
of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks
arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed on the
reporting date.
Risks and exposure are disclosed as follows:
Credit Risk

Each class of financial instrument is disclosed separately. Maximum
exposure to credit risk not covered by collateral is specified. Financial
instruments covered by collateral are specified.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Sufficient cash is maintained
to manage the CGE’s liquidity risk.
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Interest Risk

Interest rate risk originates from the uncertainty about the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuates because of
changes in market interest rates. Management has assessed the impact
of interest rate risk on the operations of the entity and considers the
risk to be negligible.
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rate and equity prices will affect the entities
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

16.12

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that it will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

16.13

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CGE; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

16.14

Change in estimate

A change in accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset
or liability, or related expense, resulting from reassessing the expected future benefits
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and obligations associated with that asset or liability. Estimates are revised when new
information becomes available which indicates a change in circumstances upon which the
estimates were formed. The Commission accounts for the changes in estimate prospectively
in the financial statements. The effect of change is incorporated in the period in which
the estimates are revised. As a result, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and
associated expense or income are adjusted in the period of change in estimate.

16.15

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or to
exercise significant influence or join the party in making financial and operating decisions.
A party is related to the CGE if directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the
party controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Commission.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling activities of the CGE. All individuals from Management up
to the Commissioners are key management individuals in their dealings with the CGE.
Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the standard.
The objective of the standard and financial statement is to provide relevant and reliable
information and therefore materiality is considered in the disclosure of these transactions.

16.16

Comparatives

Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified
in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and
the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change
in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as
is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

16.17

Events after the reporting date

All adjusting events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between reporting
date and the date when the financial statements are issued have been reported and
adjusted for in the financial statements.
Those events that are indicative of conditions that came into existence subsequent to
reporting date have not been adjusted for.
The CGE will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect
adjusting events after the reporting date once the event occurred.
The CGE will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate its financial effect or a statement
that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where
non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.
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2016

2015

R

R

2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfers from National Government

67 689 000

67 235 000

3 745 519

4 778 925

71 434 519

72 013 925

Interest received

578 795

764 854

Donations received in cash

102 202

926 628

Donations received in kind

1 440 242

874 782

71 640

86 716

2 192 879

2 652 980

57 208

54 216

693 371

623 607

Office Cleaning, Maintenance, Plants &
Security

1 082 424

1 226 471

Telecommunication Expenses

2 290 549

2 503 918

1 061

(18 800)

Advertising and media outreach

394 246

481 127

Courier services

248 544

240 650

5 725 038

8 233 436

3 484 161

2 760 277

Printing and photocopying

577 828

941 542

Subscriptions

317 627

70 536

Publicity functions and conference *

565 776

2 694 495

Audit fees

2 325 588

2 526 086

Consulting fees

1 201 022

1 787 840

18 964 444

24 125 399

Conditional grant from National Government (ref.note
21)

3 Other income

Sundry income

4 Operating expenses
Bank Charges
Computer Servicing, Internet & Website

Bad debts/(recovered)

Travel expenses

**

Report writing, printing and publishing *

** Key to CGE operating model, includes travelling to communities we serve accross the Republic.
This consumes a significant amount of financial resources.
*
Refer to note 18.1. for further explanations
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5 Personnel Costs
Basic

35 341 016

33 538 054

Medical aid-company contribution

355 416

405 915

Unemployment Insurance Fund

169 704

173 462

2 207 924

1 626 126

535 447

1 067 907

2 285 779

2 154 058

310 937

382 185

Provident fund-company contribution

4 117 805

3 845 789

Allowances

2 963 440

2 863 923

430 750

497 433

48 718 219

46 554 852

Performance bonus - provision
Provision for leave pay
Salary bonus - 13th Cheque
Overtime

Company contribution other

Notes:
The Commissioners and key management’s remuneration is included in Note 16 as
contained in this report.
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2016

2015

R

R

6 Other administrative expenses
Staff training and development

374 758

613 107

Legal fees

846 847

456 021

68 417

25 615

500 549

319 089

Office consumables and refreshments

206 197

172 423

Operating lease expenses

126 759

307 078

2 123 527

1 893 332

311

1 358 009

Maintenance, repairs and running costs
-Property and buildings
-Other maintenance repairs and running costs

7 Finance cost
Total cash outflow - interest paid during period
Interest portion in respect of preceeding periods

(1 041 291)

Interest portion in respect of 2014/2015

(182 064)

Interest paid current portion
Interest paid current portion

311

134 654

8 Assets written off and disposals (Refer to disposals in Note 11)
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Book value
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &
equipment
Loss on disposal

1 410 547

75 443

(1 366 655)

(22 184)

43 892

53 259

(7 131)
36 761

53 259

8 106 121

13 225 667

4 558

11 403

8 110 679

13 237 070

9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank
Cash on hand
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10 Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Other receivables

196 182

513 346

Prepaids & subscriptions

448 189

-

Less: Impairment allowance

(69 044)

(478 189)

575 327

35 156
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2016

2015

R

R

10,1 Receivables: Ageing
Current (0 - 30 days)
31 - 60 days

102 989

3 461

11 800

-

61 - 90 days
+365 days

81 394

509 884

196 182

513 346

69 044

478 189

69 044

478 189

478 189

530 324

1 061

-

(410 206)

(52 135)

69 044

478 189

Impairment allowance:
10,2 Ageing
+365 days

Reconciliation of impairment
10,3 allowance
Balance at beginning of year
Increase in impairment provision for doubtful debts
Recovered
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class
of receivable mentioned above. The entity does not hold any collateral as security.
The credit quality of receivables can be assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. Repayment agreements have been entered into with
those long outstanding receivables, where applicable whilst other receivables are
collected through litigation processes.

Note11: Property, Plant and Equipment
Reconciliation of carrying
value 2016
Opening net carrying
amount

Office
equipment
R

Motor
vehicles
R

Office
furniture
R

Computer
equipment
R

Total
R

108 116

4 034 389

361 449

400 469

4 904 424

2 005 574

6 040 179

3 414 995

6 876 079

18 336 828

(1 897 458)

(2 005 790)

(3 053 546)

Additions

123 202

-

9 343

3 593 733

3 726 279

Depreciation

(31 234)

(934 764)

(65 754)

(556 562)

(1 588 314)

Disposals carrying amount

(8 482)

-

(17 837)

(17 573)

(43 892)

(214 649)

-

(88 134)

(1 107 764)

(1 410 547)

206 167

-

70 298

1 090 190

1 366 655

191 603

3 099 626

287 202

3 420 067

6 998 498

1 914 128

6 040 179

3 336 204

9 362 049

20 652 560

(1 722 525)

(2 940 553)

(3 049 002)

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Cost
Gross disposal accumulated
depreciation
Closing net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
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Note 11 continued
Assets fully depreciated and still in use as at 31 March 2016
Category

No. of items

Gross carrying
amounts

Computer Equipment

273

5 134 213

Office Equipment

203

1 532 109

33

40 679

509

6 707 000

Office Furniture
Totals

154 154

Annual Report 2015-2016

Commission for Gender Equality

Notes to the annual financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Note11: Property, Plant and Equipment
Reconciliation of carrying
value 2015

Opening net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Additions

Office
equipment
R

Motor
vehicles
R

Office
furniture
R

Computer
equipment
R

Total
R

136 035

373 201

466 257

480 459

1 455 951

1 986 933

1 765 080

3 414 995

6 818 903

13 985 911

(1 850 898) (1 391 879) (2 948 738)

(6 338 444) (12 529 959)

24 640

4 275 099

-

126 621

4 426 360

Depreciation

(48 585)

(613 911)

(104 807)

(157 325)

(924 628)

Disposals carrying amount

(4 665)

-

-

(48 595)

(53 259)

(5 999)

-

-

(69 444)

(75 443)

1 335

-

-

20 850

22 184

107 425

4 034 389

361 449

401 160

4 904 424

2 005 574

6 040 179

3 414 995

6 876 079

18 336 828

Cost
Gross disposal accumulated
depreciation
Closing net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
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Note 11 continued
Assets fully depreciated and still in use as at 31 March 2015
Category

No. of items

Gross carrying amounts

Computer Equipment

368

6 117 102

Office Equipment

210

1 712 499

Totals

578

7 829 601

156 156
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11,2

Change in accounting estimate

Included in depreciation for 2015/16 is an effect from a change in estimate of
R102, 325 arising
from the management decision to change the residual values in terms of
GRAP 17.
The change will result in a increase of depreciation in future periods, for the
following categories of PPE items:
2015

2016

Current

Future (Increase)

Motor Vehicles

102 325

(102 325)

Total decrease/(Increase)

102 325

(102 325)
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Note 11.3: Intangible assets
									
									

2016		 2015
R			
R

Opening net carrying amount						

66 641 		

-

Gross carrying amount							
Accumulated amortisation						

357 924
(291 283)

278 569
(278 569)

Additions								

371 180

79 355

Amortisation								

(41 067)

(12 714)

Disposal carrying amount							
- 		
Gross disposal carring amount						
-278 569 		
Gross Accumulated disposal amortisation				
278 569 		

0
0

Closing net carrying amounts						

397 404

66 641

Gross carrying amount							
Accumulated amortisation						

451 185
(53 781)

357 924
(291 283)

Fully amortised items still in use
Number of fully amortised assets that are still in use			
Gross carrying amounts of the						
fully amortisd assets still in use

158 158

- 		
-

7
278 569
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2016

2015

R

R

12 Payables from exchange transactions
Trade creditors
Accruals

1 983 902

2 274 405

473 221

945 682

2 457 122

3 220 087

3 879 537

4 196 778

-

3 745 518

3 879 537

7 942 295

553 790

544 998

2 198 860

1 690 936

2 752 651

2 235 934

544 997

518 367

(2 276 986)

(2 127 428)

2 285 779

2 154 058

553 790

544 997

1 690 936

1 504 691

(1 700 000)

(1 439 881)

2 207 924

1 626 126

2 198 860

1 690 936

13 Payables from non- exchange transactions
Payroll creditors
Conditional grant (also refer to note 21)

14 Provisions
Provision for annual bonus
Provision for performance bonus

Provision for annual bonus
Balance at the beginning of the year
Less utilised during the year
Raised during the year
Provision for performance bonus
Balance at the beginning of the year
Less utilised during the year
Raised during the year

The annual bonus is paid to the general staff, management and Commissioners in December of each year.
The bonus to staff is a fringe benefit in terms of the respective contracts of employment whilst management
and Commissioners are on a total cost to company (CTC).
On the other hand, the performance bonus is payable to staff and management in terms of the Performance
management and Development policy of the Commission. The provision for the annual bonus is estimated on
the basis of the salary level at reporting date and shall be payable at the end of the calendar year contingent
upon the fulfilment of obligations set out in the employment contract and the policies of the Commission. The
performance bonus is payable within the ensuing 12 months’ period after the reporting date and is determined
on the basis of an objective assessment of individual staff member’s performance during the period. The
provision is estimated to the current figures subject to the finalization of the assessment as referred above.
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15

Net cash flows from operating activities

2016

2015

R

R

2 147 623

968 067

1 629 382

937 342

43 892

53 259

Contribution to provision

516 717

212 875

Impairment loss provision

1 061

(52 135)

(3 745 519)

(4 778 925)

Operating surplus before working capital
changes

593 157

(2 659 517)

Decrease/ (Increase) in receivables

(540 171)

116 114

(1 088 399)

921 191

(1 035 413)

(1 622 212)

Surplus for the year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Assets written off

Other income - conditional grant(ref. note 21)

Increase/(Decrease) in payables
Cash ( utilised)/ generated from operations
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17. Related Parties
17.1. Key management remuneration
The CGE is a schedule 1 Constitutional Institution in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended). Although the CGE is an independent
institution, created under chapter 9 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
the CGE has defined relationships with other entities that fall within the national sphere
of government.
Unless specifically disclosed, the transactions between the CGE and these entities are
concluded on an arm’s length basis. There are no restrictions in the CGE’s capacity
to transact with any entity. Fees paid to commissioners and executive management
remuneration are as rendered hereunder:
Table 36
COMMISSIONERS

SALARIES
R

ALLOWANCES
R

2016

2015

TOTAL
R

TOTAL
R

LH Bata

738 432

85 874

824 306

766 638

MA Botha (part-time)

481 596

7 000

488 596

441 296

-

-

-

71 362

719 158

96 837

815 995

766 638

-

-

-

241 098

N Maphazi

737 650

74 654

812 304

766 638

NG Mazibuko (part-time)

426 120

6 865

432 985

449 514

W Mgoqi

737 650

77 583

815 233

766 638

T Mpumlwana

798 037

88 573

886 610

825 435

L Nare

809 650

16 683

826 333

766 638

PLF Nzimande (part-time)

369 639

2 170

371 809

170 658

M Shozi

953 165

88 241

1 041 406

971 277

PS Sobahle (part-time)

455 466

8 400

463 866

336 599

7 226 563

552 880

7 779 443

7 340 430

A Gouws (part-time)
JL Hicks
NEP Loyilane (part-time)

TOTAL

Annual Report 2015-2016

161

Commission for Gender Equality

Notes to the annual financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016
Table 37
MANAGEMENT

OFFICE

K Anirudhra

SALARIES
R
HoD

ALLOWANCES
R

723 203

140 108

2016

2015

TOTAL
R

TOTAL
R

863 311

818 172

J De Klerk

HoD

785 400

78 000

863 400

827 084

K Maema

CEO

1 193 820

90 000

1 283 820

1 192 677

P Moholola (resigned
Dec 2014)

HoD

-

-

-

681 764

M Putu

CFO

842 330

60 000

902 330

849 692

TJ Rapoo

HoD

828 178

36 000

864 178

828 194

MM Van Niekerk

HoD

864 178

-

864 178

828 271

5 237 109

404 108

5 641 217

6 025 854

TOTAL

17.2. Related party transactions with government institutions
Listed below are public sector entities which the Commission transacted with during
the reporting period:
1. The Department for Women in the Presidency
2. The National Department of Public Works
3. Telkom South Africa Ltd.
4. South African Broadcasting Corporation
5. South African Revenue Services
6. Unemployment Insurance Fund
7. Compensation Fund
8. Services Sector, Education and Training Authority
9. Government Printing Works
10. The South African School of Government
The transactions occurred in accordance with the established government-wide
operating parameters
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18. Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure
18.1. Irregular expenditure

During the Financial year 2008/09, 2009/10 and preceding period, the CGE did not
have supply chain management unit as required by PFMA Act and Treasury Regulations,
as a result Irregular expenditure was incurred. An SCM unit was duly established during
the 2010/11 year. At the time of reporting the irregular expenditure cumulatively
amounted to R33 765 345 and was still to be regularised by the Relevant Authority.
In this case, an application, with revised figures, including transactions incurred for
2014/2015 period was made to National Treasury to grant approval for condonation.

18.2.

Opening balance:

33 765 345

32 723 675

Transactions deemed irregularly
incurred during the year

-

1 041 669

Total irregular expenditure incurred

33 765 345

33 765 345

Interest and penalties
paid

311

134 654

Expenditure transactions from which value
was not derived from wireless data use by
staff members.

245 338

-

245 649

134 654

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

In accordance with provisions of the Public Finance Management Act, in particular
sections 84 of the Act, upon discovery of irregularities, investigations were conducted
to determine liability or otherwise against officials and/or service providers. Furthermore,
additional measures were undertaken to strengthen systems of internal controls in a manner
enabling the Commission to fulfil its obligations whilst fully complying with applicable laws
and regulations. The amounts herein are not recoverable from employees, whomsoever
and as a matter of course, the figures were not recognised as revenue and receivable in the
financial statements of any of the reporting periods.
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19. Budget Information
19.1. Reconciliation of the budget with surplus in the statement of financial
performance.
Table 38
INCOME OR
EXPENDITURE
LINE
Non-exchange
revenue

BUDGET

ADJUSTMENT
TO BUDGET
R

R
(69 688 000)

Other income

AVAILABLE
BUDGET
R

ACTUAL
EXPENDITURE
R

UNDER / (OVER)
EXPENDITURE
R

(69 688 000)

(71 434 519)

1 746 519

-

-

-

(2 192 879)

2 192 879

(69 688 000)

-

(69 688 000)

(73 627 398)

3 939 398

20 259 900

-

20 259 900

18 964 444

1 295 456

672 600

-

672 600

2 123 527

(1 450 927)

46 491 500

-

46 491 500

48 718 219

(2 226 719)

Finance costs

-

-

-

311

(311)

Assets written off

-

-

-

43 892

(43 892)

2 264 000

-

2 264 000

1 629 382

634 618

69 688 000

-

69 688 000

71 479 775

(1 791 775)

(2 147 623)

2 147 623

Total
Operating
expenditure
Other
administrative
expenses
Personnel costs

Depreciation &
amortisation
TOTAL

OPERATING
SURPLUS FOR
THE PERIOD
TO 31 MARCH
2016

19.1.1.
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Summary results – Detailed narration on final figures/next draft

For the reporting period, a net surplus of R2,1 million was recorded. The
surplus is attributable to the recognition of a grant conditionally granted
by National Treasury in June of 2013. The initial portion of the grant was
recognised in the 2014/2015 year whilst the residue and final portion
thereof recognised in the current year for R3,7 million in the statement
of financial position. In essence, disregarding the special grant, the
Commission generated a net operating deficit of R1,8 million (or 3% of
the annual allocation of R69, 7 million). The operating results were diluted
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further by other income (to a total of R2, 2 million) from interest earned
on cash and cash equivalents balances held during the period as well as
donations received from third parties.
During the period under review, transfers from National Treasury amounted
to R67, 7 million, augmented by the conditional grant referred above which
was a non-cash transaction reclassified from accumulated surplus account
as the condition for recognition was met. The Donor income recorded
was in the main received in kind from The South African Broadcasting
Corporation (SABC) for Public Service Advertisements on the work of the
Commission. Further to other donations, interest income of R578, 795 was
earned from the bank, comparatively lower than realised in the previous
period due to reducing cash balances held in the bank. The total income
recorded was therefore R73, 6 million against total expenditure of R71, 5
million, culminating in a reported surplus of R2,1 million for the financial
period ending 31 March 2016. The expenditure analysis is as ensues in the
paragraphs that follow;
19.1.2.

19.1.3.

19.1.3.

Operating expenditure

For the period under review, the operating expenditure category reflected
a saving of R1, 3 million mainly due to under-expenditure realised on
travel and accommodation expenses. The savings were realised primarily
from efficiency gains generated by cost containment measures instituted
during the year.
Personnel costs

The remuneration bill to employees and commissioners for year was R48,
7 million compared to a budget of R46, 5 million. This represented a 4.8 %
over-expenditure mainly explained by the cost of living adjustment which
realised at a rate significantly above the projected 6% per annum. The salary
increase for general staff was 7,6% whilst anticipated in the budget to be
within the official consumer price index (CPI) range of 3 to 6% per annum.
Administrative

An over-spending R1, 4 m was recorded mainly due to the unforeseen
spending on legal expenses. During the reporting period, the Commission
engaged the services of legal firms for representation during litigations on
matters relating to the core-function as well as corporate affairs. Furthermore,
vehicle expenses realised by over R200, 000 above budget as a result of
higher energy costs compared to previous period and/or above the figures
anticipated at the time of budgeting.

Annual Report 2015-2016

165

Commission for Gender Equality

Notes to the annual financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

19.2. Analysis of the Actual and Budget information on the financial position as
at 31 March 2016
19.2.1.

19.2.2.

Current assets and Current liabilities

The working capital employed by the Commission averages R5, 8 million
per month (or R70 million per annum, equal to the annual budget allocation
from National government). During the course of the current period, the
Commission, in relative terms compared to previous period, discharged
its payment obligations on current liabilities within shorter turnaround
times. The liquidity between the current and previous period remained in
parity (1:1) despite the fact that cash and cash equivalents reduced from
R13, 2 million (in 2014/2015) to R8, 1 million. The excess cash held in the
previous period was utilised for the investment in non-current assets as
was outlined in the Capital expenditure budget for 2015/2016 year.
Non-current assets

The Capital Expenditure budget and its corresponding spending for the
year ending 31 March 2016 was estimated to increase the fixed asset base
to R7 million, increasing by a further R4 million from the previous year.
The budget and investment were mainly for the replenishment of ICT
infrastructure. The investment retained the solvency in compensation for
the reduction in cash or liquidity.

20. Risk Management of Financial Assets and Liabilities
In ordinary course of operations, an entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. It is therefore a policy of CGE to
disclose information that enables the user of its financial statements to evaluate the
nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments to which the CGE is exposed
on the reporting date.
Interest rate risk

The CGE’s exposure to the interest rate is limited, as the CGE has no significant interest
bearing liabilities. Furthermore, other than cash held in the bank account, the CGE has
no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk

The CGE’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments.
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The CGE manages the liquidity risk through an on-going review of future commitments
and the cash flows arising from allocations by National Treasury
The financial liabilities maturity analysis of the CGE, for the reporting period shows
contractual cash outflows on an undiscounted basis as below. The balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
2016

Table 39
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

CURRENT INTEREST
RATE

DUE IN LESS THAN
A YEAR

DUE IN TWO TO
FIVE YEARS

Trade and other payables

9%

R 2 457 122

-

Other payables

0%

R 3 879 537

-

CURRENT INTEREST
RATE

DUE IN LESS THAN
A YEAR

DUE IN TWO TO
FIVE YEARS

Trade and other payables

9%

R 3 220 087

-

Other payables

0%

R 7 942 295

-

2015

Table 40
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and other receivables.
The CGE only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and
limits exposure to any other counter party. The CGE banker’s credit rating was listed
as F3 for short term and BBB - for long term as was rated by Fitch Rating Ltd during
December of 2015.
Currency risk

Foreign exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The CGE is not exposed to any
material foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. The CGE does
not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.
Price Risk

The Commission is not exposed to equity securities price risk because there are no investments
held by the CGE and classified as either for sale or at fair value through surplus or deficit.
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21. Events after the reporting date
At the time of reporting, there were no favourable or unfavourable events, known by
management to have an actual or potential effect on the financial statements.

22. Contingencies
The surplus funds generated from operating activities of any particular financial year
must be surrendered to National Treasury, unless a specific approval is granted by
National Treasury upon application for retention is made by the entity. The Commission,
consecutively in the proceeding periods, made an application in accordance with
National Treasury Instruction Note 3 of 2015 (as amended and its predecessor) to
retain surplus funds accumulated in the equity account. National Treasury, on June
2013, granted the Commission a right to use R8,5 million of the accumulated surplus
funds; with conditions limiting the expenditure to the procurement of ICT infrastructure
and the replenishment of motor vehicle fleet. The funds were disbursed over a twoyear period, where R4,8 million was spent and recognized in 2014/2015 period and
the remainder of R3,7 million in the current year. Furthermore, during 2015/2016,
the Commission received a permission to utilise an additional R2,1, million from the
accumulated funds accounts to fund current spending pressures arising from budgetary
reductions implemented pursuant to the proclamation by the Minister of Finance in
the Budget Policy Statement of 2014. The above referred instruction notes does not
require that entities surrender surplus funds generated from interest income earned by
the entity from non-trading activities. For the operating period of 2015/2016 financial
year, the Commission generated R593, 200 cash surplus of which R578, 800 thereof
was interest income and therefore not susceptible to surrender to National Treasury
but automatic retention and future unencumbered use for ordinary business activities
of the Commission.

23. Financial Instruments
Categories of Financial Instruments
Except as detailed in the following table, CGE management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
financial statements approximate their fair values:
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2016

2015

R

R

Notes
Financial assets at amortised cost
Carrying amount
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

9
10

R 8 686 006

R 13 272 227

8 110 679

13 237 070

575 327

35 156

R 6 336 659

R 11 162 382

R 8 686 006

R 13 272 227

8 110 679

13 237 070

575 327

35 156

6 336 659

11 162 382

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Carrying amount
Trade and other payables

12&13

Current financial assets
Fair value
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

9
10

Current financial liabilities
Fair value
Trade and other payables
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ABBREVIATIONS &

ACRONYMS

17

Table 41
ACCORD

African Centre for Constructive Resolution and Disputes

ACT

Association of Community Television

AGDI

African Gender Development Index

ANN

African News Network

ARM

African Rainbow Minerals

AU

African Union (AU) Women,

AWPS

African Women Progress Scoreboard (AWPS)

BCEA

Basic Conditions of Employment Act

CCMA

Commission for Conciliation Mediation and Arbitration

CD

Constitutional Development

CEDAW

Convention on the Elimination of all Forms of Discrimination Against Women

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CGE

Commission for Gender Equality

COGTA

Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs

COSATU

Congress of South African Trade Unions

CRL

Cultural, Religious, Linguistic Rights Commission

CSO

Civil Society Organisations (CSOs)

DDG

Deputy Director General

DOE

Department of Education

DOJ & CD

Department of Justice and constitutional development

DSD

Department of Social Development

EAP

Employment Assistance Programme

EEA

Employment Equity Act

ELRC

Education Labour Relations Council

ENCA

E-News Channel Africa

EO

Education Officer

FBO

Faith-based Organisation

170
170

Annual Report 2015-2016

Commission for Gender Equality

FISD

Forum for Institutions that Support Constitutional Democracy

GEPF

Government Employment Pension Fund

GFP

Gender Focal Person

GSI

The Gender Status Index (GSI)

HRI

Her Rights Initiative

HOD

Head of Department

IEC

Independent Electoral Commission

HSRC

Human Science Research Council

IMC

Inter-Ministerial Committee

IT

Information Technology

JCPSC

Justice, Crime Prevention and Security

LAN

Lan Area Network

LGBTI

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Intersex

LO

Legal Officer

MOU

Memorandum of Understanding

NAP

National Action Plan

NCPL

Northern Cape Provincial Legislature

NCRF

National Community Radio Forum

NDP

National Development Plan

NEMISA

National Electronic Media Institute of South Africa

NGO

Non – Government Organisation

NICSA

National Interfaith Council of South Africa

NPA

National Prosecuting Authority

OSW

Office of Status of Women

PANSALB

Pan South African Language Board

PEPUDA

Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PHTL

Provincial Houses of Traditional Leadership

PPSA

Public Protector South Africa

PSC

Public Service Commission

PWMSA

Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa

SABC

South African Broadcasting Cooperation

SACC

South African Council of Churches

SADTU

South African Democratic Teachers Union

SAFA

SA Football Association
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SAHRC

South African Human Rights Commission

SALGA

South African Local Government Association

SALRC

South African Law Reform Council

SANTACO

SA National Taxi Council

SAPS

South African Police Services

SARS

South African Revenue Services

STC

Specialized Technical Committee (STC) AU

SWEAT

Sex Workers Education and Advocacy Task Force

TNA

New Age

TOR

Terms of Reference

UFS

University of Free State

UIF

Unemployment Insurance Fund

UN

United Nations (UN) agencies,

UNECA

United Nations Economic Commission for Africa

UNESCO

The United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization

UNFPA

United Nations Population Fund

VE

Victim Empowerment Forum

WAN

Wide Area Network

WLC

Women’s Legal Centre

WGDD

Women, Gender and Development Directorate
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